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Continued growth Future advantage

2009 HGHUGHTS

Sixth consecutive year of positive

operating results

$131.4 million total revenue

$63.1 million products

$68.3 million services

Total revenue up 8.2 percent from

$121.4 million in 2008

$8.7 million net income up 99.2

percent from 2008

Diluted EPS of $047 up 104.3

percent from 2008

$65.0 million cash and short-term

investments as of December 31 2009

18.3 percent of revenue spent on RD

orders $1M
up 75% over 2008

Key new Partner resellers

Spanlink

TRCA Technology Resource

Center of America LLC
IBM

Interaction SIP Station TM

Interaction MonitorTM

Interaction Conference TM

Integration with RightNow

Technologies

Gartner Inc Leaders Quadrant

2009 Magic Quadrant for Contact

Center Infrastructure Worldwide

report

Gartner Inc Visionaries Quadrant

2009 Magic Quadrant for Unified

Communications report

Top 500 Global Software Services

Companies list ninth consecutive year

listed 2009 ranking 194 Software

Magazine

2009 Fastest Growing Public

Companies second consecutive year

listed 2009 ranking 161h overall 5th

fastest growing technology company
Fortune Small Business Magazine

2009 North American Product

Differentiation Innovation Award

Frost Sullivan

2009 North American Competitive

Strategy Leadership Award

Frost Sullivan

To our Sharehoders

With the economys lackluster performance in 2009 very few businesses in the

communications industry can say this we grew We actually increased our revenues

8.2 percent over the previous year

Heading into 2009 we were cautious with our outlook and understood the need to

control expenses Yet we also recognized that it was time to gain competitive

ground Thats why we continued investing in research and development and why

we aggressively began marketing our Interaction Process AutomationTM IPA
solution for business process automation We believe IPA will be groundbreaking

and that it can completely change how businesses automate processes by utilizing

their communications platform Frost Sullivan validated our claim by honoring IPA

with its 2009 North American Product Differentiation Innovation Award We officially

released the IPA product in February of 2010

Along with IPA we introduced our new Interaction SIP StationlM endpoint device as

an affordable and reliable alternative to desk phones Interaction MonitorTM which

allows organizations to monitor and troubleshoot the Interactive Intelligence solution

remotely and Interaction ConferenceTM to eliminate the need for costly outsourced

conferencing services Integration with RightNow Technologies for our contact center

and enterprise solutions was another highlight for us

We achieved notable wins in 2009 with our Communications as Service CaaS

offering for contact centers posting very strong year-over-year order and revenue

growth Last year also marked our first acquisition of product company when we

acqu red AcroSoft Corp With AcroSofts established application suite for content

management and strong position in the insurance industry we were able to elevate

our own standing as the only vendor able to provide communications content

management and business process automation as single unified platform

The nteractive nteHigence Advantage and Future

We believe our achievements in 2009 positioned us well for the future Our IPA

solution has already generated tremendous amount of excitement It has the

potential to forever change how organizations view communications technology and it

certainly separates us from the pack Were working on additional disruptive

technology that we believe will make us the vendor of choice for organizations striving

for excellence

We re also gratified at the success of our CaaS initiative Clearly many organizations

are turning to the cloud to simplify their IT infrastructure and were right there on the

crest of that wave In 2010 weve already begun offering our CaaS services in Europe

as well as North America

Were proud of what weve been able to accomplish in the most difficult of economic

circumstances and we dont intend to slow down We have momentum are optimistic

about our future and look forward to providing exciting challenges for our employees

and increasing value for our customers partners and shareholders

Donald Brown M.D

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

2009 UC Innovation Award second

consecutive year TMC Labs
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PART

SPECIAL NOTE ABOUT FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

Certain statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K contain forward-looking information as defined

in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 as amended

and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended the Exchange Act that involves risks

and uncertainties which may cause actual results to differ materially from those predicted in the forward-looking

statements Forward-looking statements can often be identified by their use of such verbs as expects

anticipates believes intend plan may should will would will be will continue will

likely result or similar verbs or conjugations of such verbs If any of our assumptions on which the statements

are based prove incorrect or should unanticipated circumstances arise our actual results could materially differ

from those anticipated by such forward-looking statements The differences could be caused by number of

factors or combination of factors including but not limited to those set forth in the Item 1A Risk Factors

section of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

ITEM BUSINESS

Company Overview

Interactive Intelligence Inc Interactive Intelligence we us or our was formed in 1994 as an

Indiana corporation and maintains its world headquarters and executive offices at 7601 Interactive Way
Indianapolis IN 46278 Our telephone number is 317 872-3000 We are located on the web at

http//www.inin.com We file annual quarterly and current reports proxy statements and other documents with

the United States Securities and Exchange Commission the SEC under the Exchange Act These periodic and

current reports and all amendments to those reports are available free of charge on the investor relations page of

our website at http//investors.inin.com

Unified Business Communications Solutions

We are leading provider of software application suites for Voice over Internet Protocol VoIP business

communications and are increasingly leveraging our leadership position in the worldwide contact center market

to offer our solutions to enterprises Businesses and organizations including those that employ remote and

mobile workers utilize our solutions in industries including but not limited to teleservices financial services

banks credit unions accounts receivable management insurance higher education healthcare retail

technology government and business services Our innovative software products and services are designed for

Multichannel contact management and business communications voice and messaging using the

Session Initiation Protocol SIP global communications standard that supports VoIP

Business process automation BPA using communications-based approach and

Content management including document as well as workflow management

With our single software platform organizations can replace various traditional multipoint communications

products Our solutions incorporate full-featured media server media gateways SIP proxy and SIP station voice

device for Internet Protocol IP-based communications networks and infrastmctures Customers can deploy our

solutions on-premises or in Communications as Service CaaS model using hosted data center

Our solutions integrate with business systems and end-user devices enhance the mobility of todays remote

workforce scale to thousands of users manage content in large volumes provide communications and data

security and satisfy range of business communications and interaction management needs for

The Contact Center

Enterprise IP Telephony

Business Process Automation



By implementing our all-in-one solutions businesses are able to unify multichannel communications media

phone fax e-mail web chat content and information automate business processes enhance workforce

performance and productivity improve customer service processes and readily adapt to changing market and

customer requirements Contact centers can leverage our platform to support thousands of agents including

remote Work-at-Home agents and handle inbound outbound and blended inbound/outbound interactions at

one location or throughout multi-site contact center operations Our enterprise IP telephony solutions provide call

control and messaging for mid- and large-sized business enterprises with 100 to several hundred thousand users

with the ability to scale user counts up or down as needed Enterprises contact centers and other organizations

can utilize our BPA solutions to automate processes using an approach that incorporates communications

functionality such as routing quality monitoring and the ability to indicate employee availability

Innovation and Value

We have long been recognized for our innovative bundled contact center and enterprise application

solutions Our single integrated platform and all-in-one application suites allow contact centers and business

enterprises to automate queue and manage multichannel communications media Contact centers can leverage

this same software platform for predictive outbound dialing workforce management quality monitoring post-

call customer satisfaction surveys call and screen recording and agent scoring interaction tracking speech

recognition content management and other enhanced contact management and compliance capabilities

Though many commumcations vendors continue to migrate toward software oriented solutions they still

largely follow traditional proprietary legacy approaches and offer combination of hardware centric public

branch exchange PBX phone systems automated call distributors ACD voice mail systems interactive

voice response IVR systems and associated equipment In contrast our umfied platform is architected on

open standards software developed to run on the Microsoft Windows Microsoft Windows operating

system and industry standard servers enabling organizations to reduce both the number of systems and the cost

of expensive communications equipment from proprietary vendors

The added value of our open software approach is in the clear migration path it provides to VoIP using the

SIP standard for networked voice and data In addition to VoIP this open approach enables broader integration to

business systems such as insurance policy and claims administration systems as well as end user devices such

as telephones and headsets while reducing overall costs for network management system admimstration new

apphcation deployments and functionality upgrades Our solutions have established integration with many

popular busmess applications for customer relationship management CRM enterprise resource planning

ERP and other
processes enabling customers to fully integrate and automate their specific business rules

with minimal customization

Continued Global Success and Recognition

Our software has been licensed since 1997 We market and distribute solutions around the globe directly to

customers and through channel of approximately 300 value-added partners Our software applications are

available in 18 languages and are installed in 91 countries

Our partners and certain customers become certified through our professional education curriculum

Customers are supported by our global support network of company technical professionals and implementation

partners

We have been an ISO 90012000 Certified company since January 2005 and obtained our re-certification in

May 2009 marking our fourth consecutive year
of compliance Being certified ISO 90012000 gives assurance to

our customers and partners that we are able to satisfy ISO requirements by having in place the means to

continuously improve our business processes



Other recent company recognitions include the following

Gartner Inc Leader Quadrant 2009 Magic Quadrant for Contact Center Infrastructure

Worldwide report

Gartner Inc Visionaries Quadrant 2009 Magic Quadrant for Unified Communications report

Number 194 in the Top 500 Global Software Services Companies list ninth consecutive year listed

Software Magazine

2009 Fastest Growing Public Companies second consecutive year listed Fortune Small Btsiness

Magazine

2009 North American Product Differentiation Innovation Award Frost Sullivan

2009 North American Competitive Strategy Leadership Award Frost Sullivan and

2009 UC Innovation Award second consecutive year TMC Labs

Industry Overview and Current Developments

BPA VoIP eServices content management and the increased use of various media types in

communications continue to cause major shift in business communications technologies Organizations in

many industries and in increasing numbers are moving from one-dimensional hardware-based PBX phone

systems to multichannel software platforms that support broad list of applications Such platforms incorporate

IP telephony and unified communications approach to bnng networks information and voice and data

applications together enabling organizations to reduce ôommunications equipment costs and automate processes

to improve organizational effectiveness We have followed an open standards all-in-one software approach since

1994 to develop our industry-leading solutions

The Convergence of Voice and Data

In technology trend for new commumcations system purchases IF technologies have allowed many
businesses to transmit voice traffic from circuit switched networks and bulky hardware equipment to more agile

converged voice and data networks applications servers and lower cost end user devices One result of this

transition is that traditional PBX phone system hardware which many established PBX vendors are slowly

phasing out of their products is being replaced by software based IF PBX solutions We provide such software-

based solutions along with other vendors such as Avaya Inc Avaya Cisco Systems Inc Cisco Genesys

Telecommunications Laboratones Inc Genesys and Aspect Software Inc Aspect

UnWed Communications

According to industry analysts at Gartner Inc unified communications are the direct result of

convergence in communication networks and applications Microsoft has defined unified communications as

solution that bridges the gap between telephony and computing to deliver real-time messaging voice and

conferencing to the desktop environment The term unified communications has also been defined iti other

ways primarily by vendors that package collections of products for voice data conferencing video and mobility

into single offerings The convergence of voice and data communications typically on IP netWorks leveraging

open standards software platforms and integrated application suites is new standard for people groups
and

organizations to communicate Unified communications products based on software solutions and equipment

such as servers gateways and IP-based phones and end-user devices are proving to reduce administration costs

over their proprietary hardware counterparts while at the same time enabling organizations to facilitate the

integration and use of enterprise communication methods such as presence management conferencing

messaging and other unified features in addition to voice Many unified communications offerings are stand

alone products or part of portfolio of integrated applications and platforms In addition to being positioned in



the Visionaries Quadrant of Gartner Inc.s 2009 Magic Quadrant for Unified Communications report

Datamonitor rated our unified communications solutions in the leaders category of its September 2008 report

Business Trends Contact Center Investments in Developed Markets

Business Process Automation and Communications-Based Process Automation

We believe business process automation will improve companys competitive position in the global

marketplace and strengthen its foundation for growth Our applications have long taken an intelligence-based

approach to automation beginning with the ability to unify and handle multichannel interactions in the same

manner and followed thereafter with features such as multichannel queuing skills-based agent routing speech-

enabled interactive voice response IVR and auto attendant
processes

structured according to an

organizations business rules More recently and more specifically Communications-Based Process Automation

CBPA has combined these established communications automation practices with the automation of formal

business
processes

such as help desk personnel formulating and tracking customer trouble tickets or human

resources staff handling employee time-off requests We are elevating this communications-based approach to

automating business and interaction processes with full-featured process
automation product solution as well

as with our post-call satisfaction
survey product and the ongoing automation of interaction management

functionality now deployed in our solutions

Internet-Based Interactions

Businesses and their customers have long utilized voice commumcations media such as the telephone voice

mail and the fax machine to interact The Internet has also expanded commumcations media to include additional

channels for e-mail web chat sessions web callback requests VoIP calls text messages Short Message Service

SMS and even videos With improved customer service as an ongoing objective many companies are

deploying web-oriented applications for e-mail management plus knowledge management and web auto response

for customer inquiries and frequently asked questions FAQs web collaboration and other online services to

raise service levels Though many online services are unified in an applications approach most companies still

support online media channels using separate e-mail platforms web servers chat servers and other disjointed

equipment that can lead to inconsistencies and inefficiencies across customer touch points

Communications as Service

CaaS is communications specific way of implementing many of the benefits of Software as Service on

subscnption basis With most CaaS offenngs service providers maintain the core commumcations system in

their own data centers and extend system functionality to customer sites The benefits of the CaaS model

commonly referred to as hosted services or on demand services include small or no capital expenditures for

on-premise equipment at customer locations and lower costs for deployment The CaaS model also offers faster

implementation and go live times provides monthly variable-cost structure often referred to as pay as you

go and requires less user overhead to maintain compared to infrastructures where application servers reside at

service provider data centers Organizations additionally benefit as service providers implement sOlutions

monitor security and provide disaster
recovery support as part of their services

The Continued Expansion from Call Centers to Contact Centers

Conventional call centers consist of phone banks and agents handling inbound and outbound calls While

relegated to single communications channel these call-only centers nevertheless required multipoint systems

consisting of PBX ACD and an automated attendant to handle voice-based interactions along with optional

systems such as an IVR system predictive outbound dialer and call logger Most call centers also were forced

to spend time and money to integrate their disparate phone system devices In continuing movement away from

conventional call center operations contact centers are incorporating all-in-one communications technologies

that pair e-mail web interaction and messaging capabilities alongside phone calls to offer more contact options

for customers along with awider range of service and support channels



The Ongoing Need to Integrate Telecommunications and Information Systems

In most businesses telecommunications and information systems are distinct components of

communications infrastructure Yet to interact internally and externally and to do so more effectively businesses

must be able to use both of these systems together in seamless manner Many vendors offer computer telephony

integration CTI middleware products and services to integrate various types of telecommunications devices

with information technology to bring the two sides together For example in contact center CTI-based

application can enable data window to appear on an agents workstation and present information about caller

at the same time the agents telephone or headset rings For customer service in particular such screen pops
allow agents to view customer account information usually maintained in CRM or ERP applications

Broader Integration to Business/Data Systems and End-User Devices

With the increasing emphasis on business
processes automation is essential to broadening the integration

capability between communications platform and business applications information systems databases

knowledge bases and end-user devices such as phone sets headsets hand-held devices cell phones and laptop

computers Compared to traditional communications hardware systems and CTI open standards solutions such

as ours designed for IP networks and consisting of IP-based applications and industry-standard servers increase

such integration capability to wider
range of business systems and low-cost IP devices for users across an

organization Especially within dispersed multi-site organizations integration is easier to accomplish since

different locations can leverage local and wide area IP networks to integrate business system servers use SIP

connections from the same network to integrate IP phones and devices at the desktop and use wireless

connections to equip mobile workers Organizations that rely on separate PBX ACD and associated equipment
for communications are not afforded the same integration flexibility

Content Management

Content management has grown increasingly important for organizations in such industries as insurance

financial services and healthcare that circulate large amounts of information internally and externally

Government agencies and other organizations tasked with managing confidential data are also putting greater

emphasis on content management as they continue to archive information in larger volumes Much like the new
breed of software-based solutions for converged voice and data communications and BPA many contemporary

solutions for content management are server-based applications End-users of content management systems can

typically range from enterprise business users to contact center agents insurance agents and claims adjusters

banking loan officers healthcare professionals human resource personnel and other users who routinely must

access documents and information in the office or remotely outside the office To meet the diverse needs of these

end-users the virtual file cabinet approach of content management solution allows organizations to easily

define file management structures and retrieval processes specific to their business and user requirements

The Mobile Workforce

While traditional cell phones and laptop computers have enabled mobile workers for years sophisticated

hand-held devices and smart phones have more recently combined voice functions with web capabilities and

growing number of mobile applications for managing calls and messages viewing documents and presentations

placing product orders and tracking shipments With such technology making workforce mobility increasingly

more productive and with more businesses supporting mobile employees we believe solutions will continue to

introduce enhanced mobile client interfaces and applications for capabilities such as presence management find-

me/follow-me calendar access conferencing and text messaging to improve user availability and workforce

collaboration

Remote Work-at-Home Agents

In the same way technology has enabled the mobile workforce in growing numbers VoIP and more reliable

Internet-based voice and data capabilities have become particularly important in contact centers where remote



Work-at-Home agents effectively augment on-premise personnel In its September 2008 report on contact

center business trends industry analyst Datamonitor noted that the demand for home agents could increase

throughout 2009-2010 as contact centers look to reduce costs and take advantage of virtualization technologies

for agent outsourcing In addition to savings from requiring less physical office space the scheduling and

geographic flexibility of at-home agent programs tends to curb the high agent turnover rates common in most

contact centers which in turn reduces the time and cost of constantly having to hire and train new agents

Virtualization also allows contact center especially multi-site and multinational centers to recruit agents from

much broader global base increasing the ability to find skilled and experienced agents in specific geographic

areas as needed

Enhanced Security for Voice Communications as well as Data

As IP telephony becomes more prevalent in business communications the potential of attacks to an IP

communications system makes security critical priority for businesses and contact centers worldwide

particularly for healthcare providers financial institutions government agencies public companies and other

organizations that manage confidential voice and data communications over an IP network Open standards

including SIP provide rigorous approach to user authentication and message encryption in VoIP environment

as do standards such as the Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard which allows businesses that utilize

VoIP technologies to safeguard confidential data stemming from credit card transactions While many standards

focus on security SIP is the most regulated given the actions of the Internet Engineering Task Force IETF
which continuously introduces amends and strictly monitors SIP security specifications worldwide Our

solutions leverage the SIP security standard specification All-in-one IP communications application suites

improve security inherently in that they pre-integrate applications on single platform for all voice and data

functions and allow organizations to reduce the number of systems and access points for potential attacks by

streamlining security down to central underlying platform Single software-based platforms likewise extend

security mechanisms to all critical points between an IP network and the desktop allowing organizations to

deploy virtual private networks virtual local area networks access lists authentication Transport Layer

Security Secure Real-time Transport Protocol and encryption mechanisms from the network to their IP

communications systems application server gateway data servers and phone devices

Migration from Voice Mail to Unified Messaging and Enhanced Messaging

Unified messaging efficiently combines voice mail fax and e-mail messages in an end-users unified

inbox with messages accessible via the desktop web browser handheld device or even the telephone using

Text-to-Speech technology With certain of the current voice mail and fax systems now reaching outdated status

and with e-mail now commonly used communication medium more enterprises are upgrading to unified

messaging solutions that integrate with existing PBXs equipped for IP telephony and VoIP Many of these IP

PBXs natively support e-mail and directory servers that are already components in most technology and

telecommunication infrastructures allowing an organization to protect much of its technology investment as they

make the move to unified messaging solution Also as workers become more mobile organizations are

studying the value of enhanced messaging which supplements unified messaging with features such as

customizable personal call rules and greetings for users follow-me call routing real-time presence management

speech- and browser-based voice mail access workgroup capabilities and more Our solutions for enterprise IP

telephony as well as for the contact center include core functionality both for unified messaging and enhanced

messaging to meet diverse messaging needs in organizations of all kinds

Social Media

We believe social media channels can be beneficial for branding and marketing-related public relations

campaigns and to similardegree for networking with customers partners and prospects According to

December 29 2009 report published by Gartner Inc Gartners Top Predictions for IT Organizations and Users



2010 and Beyond New Balance Facebook alone is expected to have more than one billion users by 2011

largely resulting from the more than 15000 websites mobile devices and applications that have already

implemented the Facebook Connect application programming interfaces and protocols to interface with

Facebook the more than 350000 active applications now on the Facebook platform and the more than one

million developers who leverage the platform Given the worldwide reach and potential prospect base of social

networking sites such as Facebook MySpace Twitter Linkedln and others many vendors in the

communications industry have already extended their marketing programs to include these sites and take

advantage of the exposure they can provide As social media technologies continue to gain in popularity and in

functionality we will continue to balance the use of these channels with other existing online initiatives executed

via our own web site www.inin.com and industry channel sites such as www.tmcnet.com

Target Markets

The Contact Center

We are listed in the Gartner Inc Leaders Quadrant 2009 Magic Quadrant for Contact Center

Infrastructure Worldwide report which is the third consecutive year that we have been included in the Leaders

Quadrant We remain an industry leader in helping contact centers move from traditional time division multiplex

phone equipment multipoint call center technology and CTI to pre-integrated application solutions for

multichannel contact management developed on open standards for VoIP Our scalable all-in-one contact center

platform and application suite enables contact centers to intelligently automate route monitor record track and

report on phone calls as well as fax e-mail and web interactions whether in single location or across multi-site

operations Contact centers can also easily license our pre-integrated add-on applications for predictive dialing

workforce management screen recording and multichannel recording and agent scoring business process

automation automated post-call satisfaction surveys content management and other enhanced functionality

For self-service automation in the contact center environment including speech-enabled IVR and e-mail

auto response technologies we offer full range of solutions that help organizations support their sales and

service objectives while standardizing customer service options and reducing operations costs Among the more

popular self-service applications our customers have implemented are FAQ auto response via e-mail and

IVR-based processes for order status inquiries

As on-demand CaaS offerings continue to take hold in the contact center market our contact center platform

and application suite is already positioned to deliver ACD IVR multimedia queuing recording real-time

supervisory monitoring and other critical services via the CaaS model and VoIP with local control for services

implementation and administration

Enterprise IP Telephony

Leveraging our strength in the contact center sector has enabled us to offer IP telephony both to mid-sized

business enterprises and to larger enterprises In positioning our contact center solution for enterprise

requirements organizations from 100 or more users and up to 5000 ACD agents can implement single scalable

platform solution for IP PBX ACD IVR multimedia queuing messaging business process automation content

management mobile access and other capabilities that meet the needs of enterprise business users and

workgroups as well as contact center agents With the messaging component of our enterprise IP telephony

solution enterprises can leverage our platforms integrated IF PBX call processing and voice mail functionality

to support unified messaging voice mail e-mail and fax in one inbox plus enhanced messaging features such as

find-me/follow-me customizable call rules calendar access and SMS

We offer single highly-scalable multichannel IP telephony and messaging platform that allows

organizations to route live communications to desk phones mobile phones smart phones and other telephony

enabled handheld devices and that also allows users to manage their inbox for e-mail voice mail and fax

messages For VoIP our platforms open inherent IP architecture paves straightforward migration path to VoIP

10



for organizations looking to make the move to IP telephony or who choose to integrate our platform to an

existing PBX phone system and move to VoIP at later time In addition our solution offers practical

replacement option for certain existing voice mail systems that now are nearing outdated status By providing

flexible choose-by-function deployment and licensing options for features and users organizations can configure

and centrally administer the precise IP telephony and messaging environment needed by department or

enterprise-wide Our single IP platform/adaptable applications approach has been successfully deployed by

enterprises and organizations such as banks insurance companies healthcare providers service providers and

other customer service-oriented companies along with organizations that maintain mobile and remote

workforces and/or thousands of messaging users

Business Process Automation

From its inception our core software platform was developed as process automation platform to automate

and unify phone calls faxes e-mails and web interactions and to manage all of these media types with features

including multichannel queuing skills-based routing and speech-enabled IVR and auto attendant
processes

structured according to an organizations business rules As an outgrowth of our platforms automation

capability CBPA inherently extends our communications automation practices to the automation of formal

business processes such as employees of an insurance company processing claim or banking loan officer

reviewing and approving customers online application for new car loan With this established

communications-based approach to automation and with our Interaction Process AutomationTM JPA
application we are leveraging our platform technology to provide business process automation product solution

for contact centers and enterprises in virtually any industry looking to automate key business and interaction

processes

In particular the IPA solution allows an organization to capture prioritize route escalate and track each

step in work
process to improve process efficiency and consistency by minimizing the latency and human error

common in most processes that are executed manually IPA can be applied to horizontal
processes

such as

approving time-off requests by human resources group or to vertical
processes

such as processing loan

application at bank or credit union As an intelligent application the principles of IPA stem from technology

proven in contact centers including presence to determine an employees availability to receive new work

assignment and routing and queuing to route work through each step of the defined process with speed and

precision all while maintaining full integration with each associated communication activity

Content management is also component of our positioning in the business process automation market

primary benefit of our platforms open architecture has always been the ability it gives organizations to integrate

databases information systems business systems CRM packages and other data repositories to manage
information critical to their business operations Additionally our integrated module for knowledge management

and e-mail auto response has continued to provide straightforward solution for automating information

management process and FAQ auto responses allowing agents in contact centers and service-oriented enterprises

to effectively offload the manual and time-consuming task of answering customer inquiries Through our

acquisition of AcroSoft in May 2009 we are also now able to offer an established application product suite for

creating managing distributing and delivering business-critical content across an enterprise In conjunction with

businesss automated
processes AcroSoft applications work in unison for content management workflow

processing work management and reporting By integrating these capabilities with our platforms

communications and business process automation features this whole solution will extend greater content

management functionality to our existing customers in the contact center market and to our customers in the

insurance industry and similar vertical markets in which document management is becoming increasingly

critical

Other Target Markets

Two additional markets that we believe are essential in supplementing our primary target markets are

content management and enterprise messaging In May 2009 we acquired AcroSoft Corporation AcroSoft
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and its established lineup of document management workflow management and associated products adding

number of advanced document management capabilities to our all-in-one communications software suite

AcroSofts business focused on the insurance industry which is recognized market for our integrated

communications process automation and content management solutions Other vertical industries in which

organizations are tasked with managing large volumes of customer and business information such as the

healthcare industry represent additional potential markets for our solutions

Our Scalable All-in-One Platform Single-System Approach Products Customer Support and Services

Scalable All-in-One Platform Single-System Approach

We provide comprehensive solution of contact management business communications business
process

automation and content management applications developed to run on our pre-integrated Interaction Center

Platform multichannel event-processing platform and the Microsoft Windows operating system Our platform-

based software solutions do not require multipoint hardware or integrations to third-party products or CTI

middleware and for communications are capable of processing thousands of interactions per
hour

Automating Business Communications

As true all-in-one solution for voice data and process automation the Interaction Center Platform does not

require separate systems or integration This all-in-one approach allows contact centers and enterprises to process

communications consistently across various media channels telephone calls e-mails faxes voice mail

messages Internet chat sessions IP telephony calls SMS messages and generic media such as trouble tickets

Organizations can apply business rules across media channels and types for uniform customer service processes

and end-to-end tracking and reporting that improves workforce performance and service quality

Our platform provides single point of system management to simplify administration and maintenance

eliminates multiple hardware boxes to reduce equipment costs and complexity and is flexibly deployed as

PBXIIP PBX or with an organizations existing PBXIIP PBX

These differentiating characteristics of our integrated software solutions allow businesses to more

effectively communicate internally and externally and to do so at much lower total cost of ownership

compared to legacy hardware systems and CTI products Strategic advantages of our all-in-one single-system

approach to unified business communications are described further in the following sections

Automating Interaction Processes and Business Processes

From the beginning the Interaction Center Platform was designed to queue and distribute variety of

communications objects via automated processes Now with the emergence of CBPA as business technology

the Interaction Center Platform provides logical and proven foundation for automating the business rules

information and voice and data interaction components that drive most business processes

Scalable Standards-Based All-Software Architecture and IP Capabilities

Our software applications incorporate native IP capabilities based on the international SIP communications

standard developed by the IETF and adopted by number of industry leaders Unlike proprietary PBX phone

systems and associated legacy hardware that other vendors often advertise as IF-enabled our core platform and

application solutions are inherently architected on SIP and open standards throughout eliminating the costly SIP

extension lock-ins required when using proprietary communications hardware systems to support VoIP To

further reduce costs our software runs on standard commodity servers with no need for expensive and unreliable

voice board hardware allowing organizations to scale to more users and distributed office locations

incrementally by adding servers to their network and licensing new users rather than having to install more
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equipment or add systems to an existing infrastructure The open standards capabilities of our solutions also

allow businesses to make use of wide variety of low-cost IP soft phones and telephone devices including our

Interaction SIP StationTM product gateways including our Interaction Gateway and other components from

number of different vendors

Broader Range of Functions No Need to Integrate Disparate Technologies

With traditional legacy communications systems contact center and business enterprise operations must

typically implement separate multipoint products into their infrastructure such as PBX for phone calls web

server for chat and other systems for additional voice and data functions To work together these systems often

require significant complex integration hardware middleware and customization services Our pre-integrated

application suites instead offer single software solution for common communications features in the contact

center and the enterprise PBXJIP PBX telephony e-mail processing ACD IVR web interaction event

processing inbound and outbound fax conferencing multichannel recording and screen recording quality

monitoring and more To protect existing system investments businesses can use our software applications to

supplement their PBX with web-based interaction management unified messaging IVR departmental contact

center services and other phone system functions Our solutions also include supervisory features to view

communications statistics in real time supplemented by workforce management coaching features interaction

tracking and end-to-end reporting to improve operational performance

Open Architecture and Greater Compatibility with Leading Technologies

To accommodate our standards-based approach to business conmiunications we developed our Interaction

Center Platform on an open architecture completely different from traditional telecommunications systems that

are based on proprietary closed architecture Traditional systems limit an organizations ability to readily adapt

to change or to customize communications processes specific to their users and customers With proprietary

systems even simple changes such as adding new employee or changing an employees location can require

costly and time-consuming efforts Our solutions are built using industry-standard server network and software

components such as Intels microprocessors the Microsoft Windows operating system and gateways from

select list of certified vendors including our own Interaction Gateway offering Our open platform architecture

allows organizations to easily configure our applications to meet precise communications requirements and to

flexibly make hardware or software modifications as necessary Our products also easily interact with popular

technology products that include

E-mail servers such as Microsoft Exchange Server IBM Lotus Notes and Novell GroupWise

Database systems from Microsoft Oracle Corporation Oracle and IBM

Mainframe systems including those that support 3270 and 5250 terminal emulation

Web servers from Apache Digital Corporation IBM WebSphere and Microsoft

Network management systems including HP OpenView IBM Tivoli NetView and Computer

Associates International Inc.s Unicenter TNG

CRM and ERP systems such as those from RightNow Technologies Salesforce.com Microsoft

Oracle/Siebel SAP Corporation SAP and others and

Enterprise directories including Microsoft Active Directory Novell NDS e-Directory and SunliPlanet

Directory Server

Greater Ability to Utilize the Internet

With online and mobile initiatives playing an increasingly significant role for sales and marketing in many
businesses our solutions provide number of web-based interaction options These options include e-mail FAQ
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auto response web chat and callback requests online forms VoIP calls and conferencing Such options are

increasingly important for effective e-commerce initiatives eServices online customer service and the

availability of mobile employees as consumers continue to use the Internet and mobile devices to conduct

business transactions

Greater Ability to Configure Communications to Meet Specific Needs

Our core Interaction Center Platform includes the built-in Interaction Designer graphical application

generator which allows an organization to structure and deploy applications for required interaction processes

and integrate specific business rules into those processes In addition to deploying applications quickly and with

minimal configuration organizations can use the pre-built tool sets in Interaction Designer to configure specific

routines for nearly any aspect of their communications processing This capability allows organizations to bypass

expensive customization programming and still tailor communications processes for their customers employees

and other users using single design environment to structure dial plans call distribution rules IVR menus web

services voice mail system menus fax applications and other communications applications

Greater Ability to Manage Customer and Business Information and Documents

Our AcroSoft Documents product for document and information management is client-server component

that provides view of various electronic file formats in user-defined virtual cabinet Users can manipulate

and manage document and folder views using an assortment of functions accessible from the AcroSoft

Documents application The AcroSoft Documents application complements an organizations data and business

processing practices as stand-alone application working in tandem with other systems or can be interfaced into

processing application AcroSoft AnyWhere-Documents is our web-based document management solution that

offers many of the same functions as AcroSoft Documents including the ability to organize files upload

documents annotate images view multiple file types and implement overall security all from within

web-based interface accessible from anywhere that an Internet connection is available

Lower Total Cost of Ownership

We believe our pre-integrated applications-based solutions result in lower total cost of ownership

compared to traditional multipoint communications systems with similar functionality Our all-in-one platform

and application solutions are developed specifically to replace costly hardware equipment reduce energy

consumption and simplify configuration and ongoing administration while delivering enhanced multichannel

communications features The ability to deploy an application suite on single server or group of servers and

license new features and users rather than procure additional hardware products provides additional cost control

by eliminating excessive integration costs from different vendors Also contributing to lower total cost of

ownership is that our solutions reduce end-user training with their intuitive Windows-driven environment and

reduce the time and expense typically required to manage changes in multi-component business

communications system

Business Strategy

We intend to continue building our brand awareness to increase our penetration in the contact center and IP

PBX markets During 2010 we will begin licensing our IPA product for business process automation and aim to

become more established in the market for content management with our initial focus on the insurance industry

We also plan to emphasize our new packaged approach to professional services market these services and

enhanced product functionality to existing customers and focus on growing our CaaS offering as viable option

that allows an organization to pay for communications solution on monthly subscription basis Our strategy

for achieving this overall mission includes multiple objectives described as follows
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Market More Effectively to Our Existing Customers and Go Up-Market in the Contact Center Market

Our existing customers have long represented core revenue stream for new application solutions services

and our business overall Our existing customers also provide input on our products which assists in our

development efforts Throughout 2010 we intend to market recently-released application solutions to these

established customers such as the Interaction SIP StationTM device to replace more expensive SIP phones

Interaction ConferenceTM for premise-based conferencing that replaces third-party hosting services integration

with RightNow Technologies for call control in RightNows CRM application the Interaction FeedbackTM

solution for automated post-call satisfaction surveys and the Interaction MonitorTM client/server module for full-

time off-site system monitoring and administration We further anticipate an interest from existing customers for

our IPA application solution for business process automation for our AcroSoft content management application

solutions and for the fixed-cost packaged offerings for our professional services In the contact center market in

particular we intend to leverage our services and these recently released products to continue moving up-market

to compete for larger customers We anticipate that our marketing activities will include promotional campaigns

and special offers for our existing customer base executed primarily via e-mail and call campaigns conducted by

our Lead Team and inside sales personnel

Offer Our Interaction Process Automation Application as Communications-Based Process Automation Solution

Communications-enabled business process CEBP solutions are currently offered by other vendors

These CEBP solutions initiate simple notifications via e-mail or the telephone For example banks use CEBP

technologies to issue an alert e-mail or phone call whenever customers database record indicates an account

balance less than defined threshold CEBP does not automate the entire business process

Our Interaction Center Platform technology with our Interaction Attendant and graphical call flow

manager provides unique foundation for business process automation Leveraging our established platform

during early 2010 we intend to begin offering our IPA application as CBPA solution that differs significantly

from the current vendor offerings With our IPA solution the communications system becomes the process

automation platform As an example of CBPA while our solution is able to handle the outbound notifications of

the current offerings bank could also use our solution to queue up new mortgage applications submitted online

and route the application along with all work tasks and due dates to the next available underwriter much as

contact center would route an incoming call to the first available agent or an agent skilled in particular product

or language

Enhance Our BPA Offering with Content Management with Focus on the Insurance Vertical

Our acquisition of AcroSoft in May 2009 allows us to offer an established product suite for creating

managing distributing and delivering business-critical content throughout an organization AcroSoft product

applications provide capabilities for content management as well as workflow processing work management
document scanning e-mail monitoring for e-mail boxes fax monitoring and reporting AcroSoft also offers

implementation training and consulting services By integrating AcroSofts applications with the

communications and process automation features of our core Interaction Center Platform technology we intend

to position this all-in-one solution to contact centers and enterprises with specific emphasis during 2010 on

growth in the insurance vertical market Traditionally some of the largest users of BPA and content management

solutions insurance providers uniquely move information as well as communications among persons and

locations by way of claims applications from prospective customers and other means With our single platform

and integrated applications for the contact center enterprise IP telephony and business process automation an

insurance organization can manage communications and information using one complete solution from single

vendor rather than with multiple systems from multiple vendors With content management as an added BPA

component we believe this comprehensive offering will differentiate us from and more effectively position us

against our competitors
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Promote Our Packaged Service Offerings

During 2010 we intend to continue promoting our professional services as packaged offerings As tightly-

defined fixed-cost services these packages are intended to help our customers control costs for implementation

system configuration technical support managed support and administration and ongoing education and are

intended to eliminate the series of open-ended service engagements that many legacy vendors require for their

multipoint hardware systems We believe that these packaged service offerings will more effectively position us

against our competitors

Rapidly Grow Our CaaS Customer Base

In its December 2008 Market Trends Forecast for North American Hosted Contact Center Market 2007-

20 13 report Gartner Inc noted that the 2008 to 2009 economic slowdown should favor hosted contact center

adoption The report forecasts the North American hosted contact center market to increase from $104 million

in 2007 to $361 million by 2013 yielding 23% compound annual growth rate Moving forward our Interactive

Intelligence Customer Interaction Center CIC all-in-one communications software suite positions us to

capitalize on opportunities in the growing hosted or CaaS market In addition to providing robust contact center

features CIC is inherently architected for VoIP critical component of the CaaS model for the services delivery

redundancy and highest reliability that CaaS-based offerings require

By providing contact center services with local control our CaaS offering enables us to offer an option that

we believe no one else in the industry provides Specifically our local control deployment VoIP model allows

contact center to use its own telephone lines choose the best-suited telephone signal carrier and maintain voice

traffic on its own network With control over call recordings on their network and in file storage systems

contact center will be able to encrypt recordings for greater security For data local control allows contact

centers to manage information in their database server to distribute as they like Most of all contact centers

maintain their own dedicated virtual server in our data center allowing them to run their selected applications

with complete isolation from all other CaaS customers ensuring that no other customer can corrupt data or

disable another system as is possible with shared tenant solutions offered by our competitors

Our CanS offerings currently include Interactive Contact Center Services ICCS along with Interactive

Notification Services INS ICCS provides IVR and ACD plus call recording screen pop integration and

multimedia routing for e-mail and text chat Agents and supervisors also get desktop client for call control

desktop faxing unified messaging and real-time
presence

and monitoring INS allows organizations to automate

outbound messages such as appointment reminders and time-sensitive announcements that typically require

manual calling We believe these comprehensive CaaS offerings will differentiate us from our competitors

Continue Our Innovation and Enhance Our Core Product Offerings

Forward-thinking has been the cornerstone of our company We will continue to leverage our knowledge of

contact center telecommunications IP and
process

automation technologies to improve our solutions with

enhanced functionality maintainability security mobility scalability and broader integration We also will

continue to improve and add to our global offerings for VoIP and unified business communications with our own

media server gateways and SIP proxy By continuing to invest in research and development of new and existing

products for contact centers enterprises and VoIP infrastructures we intend to improve our technology to

address the requirements of large-scale organizations with thousands of users

Expand in Our Market for Enterprise IP Telephony

For the enterprise markets we serve our strategy is to appeal to broad audience of customers and partners

around the world by providing whole solutions for business communications We maintain offices and

dedicated field marketing managers throughout the world and intend to focus our marketing efforts to execute

our global corporate marketing objectives in the enterprise market as well as the contact center market
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For enterprise IP telephony and IP PBX needs we will market our pre-integrated CIC offering to mid-sized

to larger enterprises of 100 to 15000 users especially those that employ growing mobile workforces that require

contact center and workgroup capabilities and that see the need for more scalable unified communications

infrastructure using VoIP In addition to features such as IF PBX/PBX call processing ACD unified messaging

and voice mail presence management mobility recording conferencing IVR and customer self-service and

eService automation our standards-based CIC for the Enterprise dCfor the Enterprise solution leverages

the SIP communications standard to provide clear-cut migration path to VoIP As an all-in-one solution CIC

for the Enterprise eases implementation and simplifies maintenance for information technology staff by

centralizing administration in single interface and by reducing the complexity associated with CTI To reduce

equipment costs an all-software IP option allows organizations to deploy our CIC for the Enterprise solution

using standard off-the-shelf servers By positioning CIC more strongly as solution for enterprise needs during

2010 and by offering advanced optionally available contact center-style features such as workiorce

management WFM and customer satisfaction surveys we intend to provide more robust and scalable IP

telephony offering for business communications within an enterprise In doing so we believe that we will

increase our market share in the IP telephony market

We have enhanced and will continue to offer our Messaging Interaction CenterTM MId solution for

enterprise messaging by positioning it as combined application server/telephony user interface solution to

deliver advanced voice and IP capabilities alongside its messaging features With these enhancements we

believe MIC offers clear path to VoIP messaging through cost-effective easy to use system that is easy to

install and administer

Leverage our Relationships with Multi National Partners to Open New Selling Opportunities

To reach broader geographic customer base and expand our markets we intend to work closely with our

partner organizations worldwide Our partners include approximately 300 firms that are focused on contact

center and/or enterprise telephony Along with the name and brand recognition of these partners we will

leverage their marketing capabilities to bring attention to our brand We believe that working in conjunction with

companies such as these will provide us with opportunities worldwide

Develop Effective Relationships with Companies in Specific Vertical Industries

In the last several years we have attracted an increasing number of customers in higher education

healthcare financial services banks and credit unions insurance teleservices and other industry-specific

markets To further penetrate these markets our strategy is to leverage our existing business relationships with

customers and partners in these industries and build new relationships with other established companies in the

vertical segments we serve To supplement our vertical market offerings we will work alongside these

companies as well as with our partners who specialize in specific industries to create custom applications and

solutions most notably in the financial services sector and will present such offerings throughout our entire

partner channel

Increase Awareness of our All-in-One Solution and Launch Aggressive Replacement Programs

Our Interaction Center Platform technology and pre-integrated application suite solutions have offered

true all-in-one system for unified business conimunications since being initially designed in 1994 and first

implemented in 1997 It is this approach that many of our competitors have tried to replicate often by acquiring

products from other companies and/or attempting to develop similarplatform and supported applications We

intend to market directly to our competitors customers to make them aware of our all-in-one application

solutions as viable replacement for their existing systems With the economic uncertainty that many of our

competitors now face we believe that our fmancial position and our continuous introduction of new forward-

thinking products position us to attract these customers
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Our Products

We have developed comprehensive product solution to serve the contact management and business

communications needs of organizations in our three target markets

The Contact Center

Enterprise IP Telephony

Business Process Automation

It is important to note that our pre-integrated application solutions as well as the core Interaction Center

Platform that supports them are designed expressly to work with one another as fully-integrated all-in-one

solutions that require no third party products or CTI Because our products are not acquired from other vendors

our customers avoid the complexities and costs of trying to integrate disparate multipoint systems that were not

originally designed to work together

Interactive Intelligence Customer Interaction Center

Unified Communications from Single Integrated Platform for the Contact Center

CIC gives contact centers and enterprises single platform and pre-integrated all-in-one application

solution for IP telephony highlighted by multimedia ACD to uniformly manage phone calls faxes e-mails and

web interactions CICs inherent PBX/IP PBX call processing voice mail fax server and unified messaging
further enhance performance and customer service for agents supervisors and business users The

SIP-architected CIC provides straightforward migration path for VoIP and is well-suited for contact centers

including remote agents CIC also serves as communication solution for enterprises and multi-site

organizations including mobile workers CIC can be deployed as an on-premise product or provided through

CaaS deployment model

Interactive Intelligence Customer Interaction Center for the Enterprise

Enterprise IP Telephony for Mid-Sized and Larger Enterprises

CIC for the Enterprise is complete all-software IF PBX phone and communications system architected for

SIP-supported VoIP The CIC for the Enterprise solution is targeted at businesses from 100 to 15000 users

whether in one location or in distributed branch offices and with needs to support mobile workgroups and/or

contact center operations In one system CIC for the Enterprise includes IP PBX call processing ACD
automated attendant voice mail operator console find-me/follow-me built-in fax server and web chat and web
callback The CIC for the Enterprise software additionally offers features including real-time

presence

management and remote access with pre-integrated unified messaging IVR and Interaction Client integrations

for Microsoft applications optionally available Also optionally available are advanced contact center-style

features such as WFIvI and customer satisfaction
surveys

Messaging Interaction CenterrM

Voice Mail Unified Messaging Enhanced Enterprise Messaging SIP-supported VoIP

MIC personifies enterprise messaging with its choose by function capability on one integrated platform

Users on the same system can have different capabilities ranging from voice mail to unified messaging to

enhanced messaging features that include one-number find-me/follow-me universal web-based message access

and system administration message notification options personal settings options and calendar and contact

management capabilities MIC also offers call screening user-defined call handling rules automatic callback

and desktop faxing and fax navigation MIC allows organizations of up to hundreds of thousands of users to

replace legacy voice mail implement unified messaging take advantage of VoIP using the SIP standard or

leverage all of these capabilities in one solution
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Functionality included in CIC that can be managed by configuration settings and license keys is identified in the

following sections

Interaction Process AutomationTM

The IPA module integrates to and leverages the CIC platform to automate business processes based on

CIC multichannel communications queuing and routing capabilities This approach termed communications-

based process automation or CBPA enables IPA to keep track of work flowing throughout an organization

including progress people skills qualifications availability and resources IPA automatically prioritizes and

routes work to qualified and available workers regardless of location For clarification business process

automation or BPA is the market IPA is the product and CBPA is the approach the IPA solution takes to

automating processes

Interaction ConferenceTM

Organizations can deploy the Interaction Conference solution at their site via our core Interaction Center

Platform technology providing scalable independent conferencing infrastructure to eliminate expensive

per-minute charges offered by outsourced conferencing solutions Interaction Conference accommodates

conference meetings of any size

Interaction Dialer

Interaction Dialer leverages the CIC platform for outbound and blended predictive dialing and provides call

scripting multi-site campaign management intelligent campaign staging compliance options and more Version

3.0 of the Interaction Dialer application also works with our Interaction Gateway for SIP-based outbound dialing

that scales to higher call levels per hour

Interaction Director

Interaction Director pre-integrates to multiple CIC servers to route calls to the location that can best handle

those calls at that time single Interaction Director server can process hundreds of thousands of calls per hour

Interaction EasyScripterTM

Interaction EasyScripter integrates to Interaction Dialer for easy web-based scripting at all user levels

including for non-technical users

Interaction FeedbackTM

Interaction Feedback integrates to CIC to automate post-call IVR-based customer satisfaction surveys

including survey development and results scoring

Interaction Optimizer

Interaction Optimizer supports workforce management forecasting scheduling and real-time adherence for

contact centers

Integration to Microsoft Office Communications Server OCS 2007

OCS leverages CIC Interaction Client functionality to give users the ability to call other users and

originate conference calls between any OCS client Interaction Client or external party OCS and Interaction

Client users can also transfer calls and record calls and conference calls on demand via the Interaction Client

Shared users can additionally leverage an integrated office communicator contacts list in the Interaction Client

to initiate chats and launch OCS instant messages and video calls
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CRM application integrations for our core Interaction Center Platform are as follows

We offer integrations to CRM and help desk products from RightNow Technologies Salesforce.com

Consona CRM formerly Onyx BMC Remedy FrontRange Solutions HEAT Oracle/Siebel and SAP
that enable call functions such as click to dial call pickup disconnect hold transfer conference and other voice

capabilities

Pre-integrated add-on modules for CIC and CIC for the Enterprise are identified in the following sections

Interaction Client

Interaction Clients call control and
presence management functionality can be integrated into widely used

Microsoft application solutions including Microsoft Outlook Microsoft Dynamics CRM and Dynamics GP
With the Outlook application users are able to utilize Outlooks same powerful features for Mail and Contacts

plus integrated call control recording presence interaction tracking and ACD that routes web chats e-mail and

generic objects such as online documents In addition Contact and Journal screen pops allow users to manage

their phone calls and availability in the Outlook interface Dynamics CRM and GP users also get access to voice

functionality via pre-integrated Interaction Client call control toolbar and screen-popped customer account

information each time call is received

Interaction MonitorTM

Interaction Monitor is clientlserver solution to remotely observe and administer the servers gateways and

other associated devices in an Interaction Center CIC CIC for the Enterprise and MIC network configuration

For Interaction Center system administrators as well as for partners and sales engineers who maintain Interaction

Center servers for their customers Interaction Monitor fully automates the monitoring process in single

environment 24 hours day days week

Interaction SupervisorTM

Interaction Supervisor pre-integrates to CIC and to the CIC for the Enterprise solution to provide single

real-time interface for monitoring agent user and workgroup activities along with interaction events and

Interaction Center system and queue statistics

Interaction Tracker

Interaction Tracker is full interaction/contact history management application that works with CIC and

CIC for the Enterprise to track multimedia interactions and allows authorized users to resolve new contacts and

search for and view historical interaction-based information Interaction Tracker can function as customer

interaction tracking system but can also be integrated with packaged CRM solutions and/or special purpose

customer information management systems

Interaction Recorder

Interaction Recorder offers complete quality assessment control in one environment for recording and

archiving phone calls e-mails faxes and web chats In addition CIC users can capture interactions with

Interaction Recorders screen recording capability Scoring features in the Interaction Recorder application

simplify quality processes and out-of-the-box reports facilitate measuring individual and group scoring results for

performance
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For self-service automation

e-FAQ

e-FAQ provides users across enterprises and contact centers seamless integrated gateway to vital up-to-date

information that employees and customers alike can query as needed using their choice of communication channels

to ensure rapid data delivery The e-FAQ application uses linguistic analysis to clarify incoming questions search

for matches and instantly reply when an appropriate match is found e-FAQ web-based e-FAQ Knowledge

ManagerTM simplifies authoring and centralizes administration reporting and testing e-FAQ built-in editor

interface and sample response templates further streamline the authoring and implementation process

For the mobile workforce

Interaction Mobile OfficeTM

Interaction Mobile Office integrates to the dC CIC Enterprise and MIC application solutions to extend

each system to mobile users By leveraging the Interaction Mobile Office applications speech-enabled telephone

user interface users can change presence management settings and access Microsoft Exchange-based voice

mails e-mails faxes corporate directories and calendars from wherever they are located

For voice mail and unified messaging enhancement

Interaction Message Indicatormt IMI
IMI monitors Microsoft Exchange Server 2007 Unified Messaging mailboxes for the presence of voice mall

messages IMI initiates the message waiting indicator on users desktop phone and discontinues the message

waiting indicator when new voice mails have been reviewed IMI is engineered to work with all third-party

phone systems and with our CIC for the Enterprise and CIC application solutions

We also have developed SIP and VoIP solutions that enhance our software offerings including the following SIP

appliances and end points

Interaction Gateway

Interaction Gateway makes it possible to configure Interaction Dialer version 2.4 and higher and CIC for

SIP-supported outbound predictive dialing increased call volume capacity and advanced call analysis for

outbound dialing By supporting the high-volume outbound capacities of multiple Interaction Dialer servers the

Interaction Gateway appliance is targeted to teleservices firms and businesses that offer blended inbound/

outbound dialing services to their customers

Interaction Media ServerTM and Interaction SIP ProxyTM

The Interaction Media Server and Interaction SIP Proxy for CIC and CIC for the Enterprise is available in

version 2.4 and version 3.0 and increases Interaction Center system perfonnance by moving audio recording

processing and compression to this appliance Interaction Media Server features which utilize our next-

generation Interaction Over Networks technology also allow organizations to support supervisory monitoring

recording at remote sites and the playback of recorded music during ACD wait states Interaction SIP Proxy

likewise allows organizations employing the SIP communications standard for VoW to support all SIP methods

and status codes comply with SIP specifications and more effectively balance and route SIP-based messages

Interaction SIP StationTM

The Interaction SIP Station is simple and compact communications device that works in conjunction with

our Interaction Client desktop client and soft phone to replace an IP desk phone By using standard headset

with the Interaction SIP Station in lieu of handset users get basic call-control functions for pick-up/disconnect

volume emergency speed-dial and mute
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Hardware

As part of our product solutions we sell servers gateways and telephone handsets Some customers

licensing our dC software require that we deliver certain hardware such as servers and telephone handsets and

occasionally networking hardware as part of the solution In addition we have developed our Interaction Media

Server Interaction SIP Proxy Interaction Gateway and Interaction SIP Station appliances as combination of

hardware and our software

AcroSoft application products and associated services for content document management as related to our BPA
market offering include

AcroSoft Documents

AcroSoft Documents is our client-server document management component that provides comprehensive
view of various electronic file formats in user defined virtual cabinet Users can manipulate and manage
document and folder views using an assortment of features and functions accessible from the application The

AcroSoft Documents offering works as stand-alone solution in tandem with other systems or seamlessly

interfaced into processing application to complement data and business processing

Other AcroSoft Products

The web-based AcroSoft AnyWhere-Documents solution offers many of the same functions as AcroSoft

Documents including the ability to organize files upload documents annotate images view multiple file types

and implement overall security all from within web-based interface

For workflow management AcroSoft products include AcroSoft WorkFlow to determine where notifications

should be sent at any given time during the business processing cycle the web-based AcroSoft AnyWhere

Work Queue product to create online inboxes for users to access linking all users together in single automated

workflow process and AcroSoft WorkManagement which allows users to track activity related to documents and

folders as well as processes and applications outside the AcroSoft suite of products

Research and Development

Leveraging technology is part of our strategic position and we continue to invest substantial percentage of

our revenue in research and development Our research and development group is comprised of professionals

with backgrounds in telecommunications software and hardware This combination of diverse technical and

communications expertise contributes to our competitive advantage with differentiated technology approach
series of packaged customer solutions are available from this group such as integration to SAP Corporation

Oracles Siebel Inc and Microsoft Dynamics CRM These solutions allow partners to quickly install

sophisticated applications for customers

We are both Microsoft Certified Developer as well as Microsoft Certified Solutions Provider These

designations provide us early access to Microsoft technology and the opportunity to develop products quicker

that effectively interoperate with Microsoft products

Research and development expenses were $24.1 million $21.5 million and $17.0 million in 2009 2008 and

2007 respectively Our research and development group is structured as technical teams each of which follows

formal processes for enhancements release management and technical reviews Research and development

expenses include testing department that is
increasingly utilizing automated techniques to stress test significant

portions of our core software We continue to make research and development priority in our business in order

to remain on the forefront of innovation

Customer Support and Services

We recognize the importance of offering quality service and
support to our partners and customers Our

partners provide valuable initial support and implementation services to many of our customers We provide
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wide range of services and support to both partners and customers via our Worldwide Services teams including

Professional Services Support Services Managed Services and Education Services These services teams are

described in more detail in the following sections

Professional Services

Our Professional Services team takes an innovative approach to the delivery of our services This team

handles strategic accounts and enhances partner expertise on advanced offerings such as predictive dialing

speech recognition and third-party CRM integrations Our Professional Services team can also among other

things help integrate our products to applications such as Salesforce.com embed call control into in-house

applications and speech-enable IVR applications The system configuration services and ad-hoc consulting

services from our Professional Services team work to ensure that the customer has the solution that drives their

business to success The Professional Services team works closely with new partners as they implement our

products at their sites and is often involved with the early release of our products to assist in new release

implementations We are continuing to invest in this team as we provide more consulting services and

implementation services for strategic customers globally

Support Services

Our Support Services team offers global technical support for our partners and customers 24 hours day

days week by phone fax e-mail web chat and from our website We have support centers at our world

headquarters in Indianapolis Indiana and in the United Kingdom and Malaysia Other secondary support

resources are available in California and Virginia in the United States and in the Netherlands Australia and

Japan We utilize our CIC products leveraged with technologies such as knowledge base CRM and the Internet

to maximize the effectiveness of our support services

Our Support Services team is divided into regions that align with our worldwide sales teams Interactions

are routed to the respective region based on the customer location This enables Support Services team members

to better know their customers and offer quality support services The engineers on our Support Services team are

also specialists They focus their efforts on very specific areas of our offerings allowing them to develop

deeper knowledge set This enables us to do skills-based routing that directs the customer to the best engineer

based on their domain thus reducing the time to resolve the problem We use Interaction Director to route

incidents globally in follow-the-sun manner

Managed Services

With our growing base of strategic partners and end customers we now offer Managed Care Program in

which an assigned Managed Services team of knowledge experts provides off-site support and day-to-day

support on-site within our customers locations We use Interaction Monitor to enable our engineers to have

constant view of the health of the customer system Our goal is to provide proactive system management

Communications as Service

As mentioned in previous sections our customers can deploy our solutions as an on-premise system at their

site or as hosted services CaaS model using hosted data center Along with the contact center and

notification services our CaaS offering provides our services also include hosted disaster recovery for business

organizations of all kinds that require backup systems for inbound and outbound communications

Education Services

Our Education Services team is also divided into regions that align with our worldwide sales teams and

provides technical certification and advanced instruction through on-site courses classroom presentations and
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web-based training This team develops and maintains course curriculum for formal certification programs such

as sales product installation troubleshooting system administration and custom design Web-based training

courses offer enhanced topics such as reporting system administration and computer-based user training All of

our partners are required to maintain updated certifications to license and support our products Classes are also

offered to all of our end customers to encourage the most effective use of the applications We have moved our

classroom sessions to VoIP structure and focused our Education Services resources on the IP-based Interaction

Center This enables our partners and our end customers to build deeper understanding of the networking

infrastructure and telephony technology of the future

Marketing

Our marketing team is organized by five departments Product Management Solutions Marketing Market

Communications Lead Management and the Marketing Services Group

Our Product Management team is responsible for coordinating activities with our development teams to

define product requirements and to manage the process for market requirements product development approvals

pricing definitions release scheduling and beta test coordination The Product Management team oversees the

product management process from product concept through the end of the beta test cycle

Our Solutions Marketing team focuses on the marketing and promotion of our solutions to customers

prospective customers and partners as well as to industry analysts Their responsibilities include product

promotional activities market positioning of new and updated products Internet content and other solutions-

related events and actions

Our Market Communications team manages media and industry analyst relations primarily through

regularly-scheduled briefings with magazine editors and industry analysts and by participating in various media

events such as tradeshows and seminars

Our Lead Management team drives all lead-generation activities resulting from tradeshows seminars and

web-based marketing programs and utilizes purchased lists of prospective customers This team leverages joint

marketing activities with strategic partners such as Intel Corp Intel Microsoft and Polycom Inc to generate

qualified leads for partners as well as our Territory Managers This Lead Management team additionally

organizes our annual User Forum customer conference and Partner Conference

Our Marketing Services Group is responsible for all print collateral and associated materials for tradeshows

marketing seminars promotions advertising brand awareness customer and partner relations and other

company functions Field Marketing Managers throughout Europe the Middle East and Africa EMEA and

the Asia-Pacific APAC regions are aligned with our Marketing Services Group and are responsible for

similarbrand awareness marketing and advertising functions in their respective areas

Global Distribution and Sales

We distribute our products through partners and direct arrangements with end-user customers In 2009 75%
of total product orders were received through partners

We assign geographic or account responsibilities to Territory Managers who manage partners and direct

customer opportunities

As of December 31 2009 we had 49 Territory Managers and maintained global channel network of

approximately 300 partners with
presence in over 91 countries

For the growing VoIP and IP telephony market our distribution channel is anchored by knowledgeable and

experienced converged partners who understand voice and data networking
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In the Americas we license and distribute mainly through our partners In certain countries principally the

United States and Canada we also maintain certain direct customers primarily with major corporations or in

areas lacking adequate partner relationships We utilize our Territory Managers supplemented by lead generation

and our inside sales teams to generate potential opportunities In EMEA and APAC we license and distribute

our solutions principally through joint strategy between our Master Distributors and partners at the Elite and

Premier Partner levels as defined below Our EMEA headquarters are located near London England and our

APAC headquarters are located in Kuala Lumpur Malaysia

Our partners are supported by Program Managers regional Channel Enablement Managers Licensing

Specialists and other roles related to sales support services and education/certification

Within our program framework our principal partner level designations include

Master Distributors are partners with an existing channel that are staffed with the resources to provide

sales implementation services support and bundled solutions hardware and software to our Elite and

Premier level partners as described in the following sections and their customers Master Distributors

identify prospective Elite and Premier Partners and assist in promoting our partner programs

Requirements of this partner level include call center expertise and focus expertise in voice

convergence solution selling an enterprise and telephony experienced sales force with Microsoft

competencies and large existing installed base of customers Master Distributors provide support

services to Premier and Elite Partners and have strong regional presence with dedicated local and/or

regional sales and technical resources

Elite Partners provide full-scale marketing sales services and support for one or more of our products

By acquiring requisite sales technical and support certifications Elite Partners earn the highest

margins possible through implementation support and other services in addition to sales We also

assign Territory Manager to each Elite Partner for continuous oversight Elite Partners also receive all

marketing and business development advantages of our Partner Enablement Program Elite Partner

candidates can begin at the Elite level by obtaining all appropriate sales and technical certifications or

can migrate from the Premier Partner designation by satisfying Elite-level certification requirements

Premier Partners focus on marketing and sales and receive product training along with marketing and

business development support Premier Partners are required to be sales certified which requires taking

certain sales courses that we offer and successfully passing sales examination administered by us We

assign Territory Manager to each Premier Partner to provide ongoing assistance The Premier Partner

level permits partners to grow their customer base while providing the framework to earn technical

certification build service and support practice for our products and ultimately move to the Elite

Partner level where revenues and margin potentials are much greater

Referral Agents generate
leads and are compensated for each qualified lead that results in an order

Referral agents can earn referral fees for identifying potential leads and are not required to earn

technical certifications Referral Agents can transition to the Premier Partner designation by

completing sales training and investing in the Premier levels required demonstration and internal use

Interaction Center communications system

We also have Channel Ready team that extends beyond the software aspects of our solution to the

hardware Our Channel Ready team takes the final product and produces an image that enables the partner to

install solutions faster and easier provide back-up and recovery for normal maintenance and reduce the cost of

ongoing support Our Channel Ready team works with hardware providers globally and has built relationships

that enable us to provide full solution for our partners This team also develops appliances that use our

software such as the Interaction Media Server and Interaction Gateway

Our Technical Sales team is responsible for demonstration facilities systems and services at our

Indianapolis Indiana headquarters and regional offices throughout the U.S and around the world This team
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builds and maintains demonstration scripts and provides training to Our partners and internal sales teams All of

our partners are granted access to our systems and services for live customer demonstrations on global basis

and are assisted by our Technical Sales team as needed to perform demonstrations Our Technical Sales team

further assists with marketing efforts and presentations at industry tradeshows regional seminars and events

including our annual partner conference and global user forum

Customers and Geographic Areas of Operations

As of December 31 2009 we had licensed our products to more than 3500 customers in the Americas

EMEA and APAC No customer or partner accounted for 10% or more of our revenues in 2009 2008 or 2007
One partner accounted for 13% of our accounts receivable as of December 31 2009 but no customer or partner

accounted for more than 10% of our accounts receivable as of December 31 2008 or 2007 No material part of

our business is dependent upon single customer or partner or small group of customers or partners Therefore

the loss of any one customer or partner would not have material adverse effect on our operations

See Note 11 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item of this Annual Report on

Form 10-K for financial information about each of the geographic areas in which we operate

Supplier Relationships

We rely on third parties for several components in the delivery of our complete solution including general

purpose servers third-party software third-party hardware appliances telephone end-points and integration to

various vendors hardware and software systems Our reliance upon these third parties comes with some amount

of risk primarily due to the possibility of these suppliers being acquired or discontinuing product we rely on or

failure to renew terms of contracts with these suppliers In addition some of the third-party software is licensed

from our competitors or such suppliers could become our competitors in the future which may complicate our

relationships with these suppliers In many cases however we maintain relationships with several different

suppliers and therefore believe alternatives could be available if supplier would cease doing business with us
We feel that the risks are further mitigated by the revenue that we generate for these third-party suppliers and the

length of notice that we would most likely receive from the suppliers if any of the products were discontinued

Competition

The markets for our application-based solutions are highly competitive Competition is typically based on

various factors including breadth of product line price ease of installation ease of use depth of functionality

product roadmap total cost of ownership return on investment integration with other applications security

reliability and scalability We differentiate ourselves from our competitors by enabling customers to choose to

deploy many of our solutions on-premise or as CanS model using hosted solution offering an all-in-one

platform adhering to industry standards and providing broad set of applications for the business enterprise

Also contributing to our competitive strengths are our growing installed base of customers new products such as

Interaction SIP Station Interaction Conference Interaction Feedback and IPA as well as enhancements to our

Interaction Optimizer offering Our competitive position in the last twelve months has also potentially benefitted

from the acquisition of major competitor Nortel Networks Corporation Nortelby another competitor

Avaya which created additional sales opportunities for us as Avaya announced that some products would be

discontinued resulting in general customer uncertainty

Our competitive position varies in each of our three markets In the contact center market we are considered

leader by third-party analyst firms based on the breadth of our product line our completeness of visions and our

ability to execute We compete successfully with our contact center competitors including those companies that

are considerably larger in size stronger emphasis by us in CaaS offerings for the contact center market has

introduced several new competitors most of which are smaller less established vendors
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In the enterprise telephony market we have small market share in the
pure IP PBX market segment

However when our IP PBX product is sold in conjunction with our other solutions such as our contact center

solution resulting in more of unified communications offering our competitive position is stronger Our primary

competitors in the contact center and enterprise telephony markets have great deal of overlap between the two

segments with small number of competitors being exclusive to either one or the other of the two markets

The business process automation market can be divided into two submarkets process automation and

content management We are new to the process automation market and compete both with traditional

telecommunications vendors such as AvayalNortel and Genesys and to lesser extent traditional business

process management suite vendors such as IBM Lombardi Software Inc Savvion Inc and Oracle We entered

the content management market in part through our acquisition of AcroSoft which added industry domain

expertise as well as larger installed base of insurance customers

In the contact center market our primary competitors are Aspect AvayalNortel and Cisco Significant

enterprise IP telephony competitors include Alcatel-Lucent Avaya Cisco Siemens AG and ShoreTel Inc For

enterprise messaging we compete mainly with Avaya Cisco Intervoice Inc and Applied Voice Speech

Technologies Inc In each market we also compete with recent entrants and various specialized vendors

Intellectual Property and Other Proprietary Rights

We own numerous patents and patent applications that we consider valuable components of our business

To protect our proprietary rights we rely primarily on combination of

copyright patent trade secret and trademark laws

confidentiality agreements with employees and third parties and

protective contractual provisions such as those contained in licenses and other agreements with

consultants suppliers partners and customers

As of December 31 2009 we and our subsidiaries held 12 patents and have filed other patent applications

relating to technology embodied in our software products In addition we and our subsidiaries hold 16 United

States and 72 foreign trademark registrations and have numerous other trademark applications pending

worldwide as well as common law rights in other trademarks and service marks We and our subsidiaries also

hold 18 registered copyrights and have numerous other applications pending

While we currently hold patents and have filed other patent applications relating to certain technology

which we have developed we do not believe that we are significantly dependent on any one of these patents We
hold trademark and copyright registrations domestically and worldwide and have numerous other applications

pending worldwide for the name Interactive Intelligence and several of the names used for our products We
consider the trademark for the Interactive Intelligence name the most significant trademark or copyright held

because of the impact the Interactive Intelligence name has on the markets awareness of and identification

with us The Interactive Intelligence trademark registration expires in 2017 in the United States and can be

renewed beyond that date In addition we have entered into license arrangement with one large competitor for

certain technologies that we utilize in our solutions Without the license arrangement in place we may be subject

to litigation that could result in significant expense to us resulting from our use of these technologies The license

arrangement extends through 2026

Environmental

Compliance with federal state and local provisions regulating the discharge of material into the

environment or otherwise relating to the protection of the environment has not had material effect upon our

capital expenditures earnings or competitive position We believe the nature of our operations have little if any
environmental impact We therefore anticipate no material capital expenditures for environmental control

facilities for our current fiscal year or for the foreseeable future
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Employees

As of February 26 2010 we had 654 employees worldwide including 207 in research and development

173 in client services 177 in sales and marketing and 97 in administration Our future performance depends in

significant part upon the continued service of our key sales marketing technical and senior management

personnel and our continuing ability to attract and retain highly qualified personnel Competition for such

personnel is intense and we may not be successful in attracting or retaining these individuals in the future

We believe that we have corporate culture that attracts highly qualified and motivated employees We

emphasize teamwork flexible work arrangements local decision-making and open communications Certain key

employees have been granted stock options We do not have any employees represented by labor union We
have not experienced any work stoppages We consider our relations with our current employees to be good

ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS

The following factors among others could cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in

forward-looking statements made in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and presented elsewhere by management

from time to time Such factors among others may have material adverse effect on our business financial

condition and results of operations and you should carefully consider them It is not possible to predict or

identify all such factors Consequently you should not consider any such list to be complete statement of all

our potential risks or uncertainties Because of these and other factors past performance should not be considered

an indication of future performance

The Overall Economic Climate Could Result in Decreased Demand for Our Products and Services

Our products typically represent substantial capital commitments by customers and involve potentially

long sales cycle As result our operations and performance depend significantly on worldwide economic

conditions and their impact on customer purchasing decisions In this current economic climate current or

prospective customers are reviewing the allocation of their capital spending budgets to communication software

services and systems which has resulted and may continue to result in our current or prospective customers

delaying and/or reducing their capital spending related to information systems Some of the factors that could

influence the levels of spending by our current or prospective customers include availability of credit labor and

healthcare costs consumer confidence and other factors affecting spending behavior These and other economic

factors could have material adverse effect on demand for our products and services and on our financial

condition and operating results

Our Quarterly Operating Results Have Varied Significantly

Our operating results may vary significantly from quarter to quarter and depend on number of factors

affecting us or our industry including many that are beyond our control As result we believe that

period-to-period comparisons of our operating results should not be relied on as an indication of our future

performance In addition our operating results in future quarter or quarters may fall below expectations of

securities analysts or investors and as result the price of our common stock may fluctuate

Because we do not know if or when our partners and current or potential customers will place orders and

finalize license agreements we cannot accurately forecast our licensing activity our revenues and our operating

results for future quarters We recognize revenues from different licenses over different periods depending on the

satisfaction of the requirements of relevant accounting literature including Financial Accounting Standards

Board FASB Accounting Standards Codification ASC Topic 985 Software and Topic 605 Revenue

Recognition As result our quarterly revenues and operating results depend on many factors including the type

of license the size quantity and timing of orders received for our products during each quarter the delivery of

the related software or hardware and our expectations regarding collection If large number of orders or several
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large orders do not occur or are deferred or delayed our revenues in quarter could be substantially reduced

This risk is heightened by the significant investment and executive level decision-making typically involved in

our customers decisions to license our products Since large portion of our operating expenses including

salaries and rent is fixed and difficult to reduce or modify in short time period our business financial

condition or results of operations could be materially adversely affected if revenues do not meet our expectations

Our limited number of products changes in pricing policies the timing of development completion and

announcement and sale of new or upgraded versions of our products are some of the additional factors that could

cause our revenues and operating results to vary significantly from period to period

We May Pursue Acquisitions That by Their Nature Present Risks and That May Not be Successful

In the future we may pursue acquisitions to diversify our product offerings and customer base or for other

strategic purposes We have limited prior history of making acquisitions and we cannot assure you that any future

acquisitions will be successful The following are some of the risks associated with acquisitions that could have

material adverse effect on our business financial condition or results of operations

We cannot assure that any acquired businesses will achieve anticipated revenues earnings or cash

flow

We may be unable to integrate acquired businesses successfully and realize anticipated economic

operational and other benefits in timely manner particularly if we acquire business in market in

which we have limited or no current expertise or with corporate culture different from our own If we

are unable to integrate acquired businesses successfully we could incur substantial costs and delays or

other operational technical or financial problems

Acquisitions could disrupt our ongoing business distract management divert resources and make it

difficult to maintain our current business standards controls and procedures

We may finance future acquisitions by issuing common stock for some or all of the purchase price

This could dilute the ownership interests of our shareholders We may also incur debt or be required to

recognize expense related to intangible assets recorded in future acquisitions

We may be competing with other firms many of which have greater financial and other resources to

acquire attractive companies making it more difficult to acquire suitable companies on acceptable

terms

We may not generate
sufficient cash from operations and our growth could be limited unless we are

able to obtain capital through additional debt or equity financings These financings may not be

available as required for acquisitions or other needs and even if financing is available it may not be on

terms that are favorable to us or sufficient for our needs In addition if we complete an equity

financing the issuance of shares of our common stock would dilute your ownership interest in our

company

We Are Exposed to Fluctuations in the Market Value of Our Money Market Funds and Investments The

Financial Pressure on Investment Institutions Managing Our Investments or the Failure of Such Entities

May Lead to Restrictions on Access to Our Investments Which Could Negatively hnpact Our Balance of

Cash and Cash Equivalents thus Affecting Our Overall Financial Condition

We maintain an investment portfolio of various holdings and maturities These securities are recorded on

our consolidated balance sheets at fair value This portfolio includes money market funds notes bonds and

commercial paper of various issuers If the debt of these issuers is downgraded the carrying value of these

investments could be impaired In addition we could also face default risk from some of these issuers which

could cause the carrying value to be impaired Financial institutions have been under significant pressure over the
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past several quarters Should one or more of the financial institutions managing our invested funds experience

increased financial pressure resulting in bankruptcy or the threat of bankruptcy access to our funds may be

restricted for period of time and may also result in losses on those funds

Our cash and cash equivalents are highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less

at the time of purchase We maintain the cash and cash equivalents with reputable major financial institutions

Deposits with these banks exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance limits or similar limits in

foreign jurisdictions While we monitor daily the cash balances in the operating accounts and adjust the balances

as appropriate these balances could be impacted if one or more of the financial institutions with which we
deposit fails or is subject to other adverse conditions in the financial or credit markets To date we have

experienced no loss or lack of access to our invested cash or cash equivalents however we can provide no

assurance that access to our invested cash and cash equivalents will not be impacted by adverse conditions in the

financial and credit markets

We Have Lengthy Product Sales Cycle Which May Contribute to Variability of Quarterly Operating
Results

We have generally experienced lengthy initial sales cycle which can last six to nine months and

sometimes longer The lengthy sales cycle is one of the factors that has caused and may in the future continue to

cause our product revenues and operating results to vary significantly from quarter to quarter which may in tum

affect the market price of our common stock The lengthy sales cycle also makes it difficult for us to forecast

product license revenues Because of the unique characteristics of our products and our prospective customers

internal evaluation
processes decisions to license our products often require significant time and executive-level

decision making We believe that many companies currently are not aware of the benefits of interaction

management software of the type that we license or of our products and capabilities For this reason we must

provide significant level of education to prospective customers about the use and benefits of our products
which can cause potential customers to take many months to make these decisions As result sales cycles for

customer orders vary substantially from customer to customer Excessive delay in product sales could materially

adversely affect our business financial condition or results of operations

The length of the sales cycle for customer orders depends on number of other factors over which we have

little or no control including

customers budgetary constraints

the timing of customers budget cycle

concerns by customers about the introduction of new products by us or our competitors and

downturns in general economic conditions including reductions in demand for contact center services

Our Inability to Successfully Manage our Increasingly Complex Supplier and Other Third-Party

Relationships Could Adversely Affect Us

As the complexity of our product technology and our supplier and other third-party relationships have

increased the management of those relationships and the negotiation of contractual terms sufficient to protect our

rights and limit our potential liabilities have become more complicated and we expect this trend to continue in

the future In addition because we offer whole product solution this has added complexity to our supplier

relationships We license from third parties technology that is embedded in our products Some of these third

parties that license
technology to us are our competitors or could become competitive with us in the future

Certain license
agreements permit either party to terminate all or portion of the license without cause at any

time Further some of the license agreements provide that upon acquisition of us by certain other third parties

we would have to pay significant fee to continue the license As result our inability to successfully manage
these relationships or negotiate sufficient contractual terms could have material adverse effect on us
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For certain of our orders we supply hardware to support the implementation of our software We are

dependent on third parties for the supply of hardware components to our customers If these hardware

distributors experience financial operational or quality assurance difficulties or if there is any other disruption in

our relationships we may be required to locate alternative hardware sources We are also subject to the following

risks related to our hardware distribution system

cancellations of orders due to unavailability of hardware

increased hardware prices which may reduce our gross profit or make our products less price

competitive and

additional development expense to modify our products to work with new hardware configurations

We cannot assure you that we would be able to locate alternative technology or hardware sources in timely

manner on terms favorable to us or at all Even if we and/or our distributors are successful in locating

alternative sources of supply alternative suppliers could increase prices significantly In addition alternative

technology or hardware components may malfunction or interact with existing components in unexpected ways
The use of new suppliers and the modification of our products to function with new systems would require

testing and may require further modifications which may result in additional expense diversion of management

attention and other resources inability to fulfill customer orders or delay in fulfillment reduction in quality and

reliability customer dissatisfaction and other adverse effects on our reputation business and operating results

Existing and New Reseller Partners are Critical to Continued Growth

Our ability to achieve revenue growth in the future will depend in part on our success in maintaining

productive relationships with our existing and future reseller partners and in recruiting and training additional

reseller partners We rely primarily on these partners to market and support our products and plan on continuing

to rely heavily on such partners in the future We continue to expand our partner and distribution networks and

may be unable to attract additional partners with both voice and data expertise or appropriate partners that will be

able to market our products effectively and that will be qualified to provide timely and cost-effective customer

support and service We generally do not have long-term or exclusive agreements with our partners and the loss

of specific larger partners or significant number of partners could materially adversely affect our business

financial condition or results of operations In addition due to the current economic conditions the risk of failure

of specific partner or significant number of partners is increased which failure could also materially

adversely affect our business financial condition or results of operations

We Face Competitive Pressures Which May Have Material Adverse Effect on Us

The market for our software applications is highly competitive and because there are relatively low barriers

to entry in the software market we expect competitive pressures to continue to be risk to our ongoing success

in the market In addition because our industry is evolving and characterized by rapid technological change it is

difficult for us to predict whether when and by whom new competing technologies or new competitors may be

introduced into our markets Currently our competition comes from several different market segments including

computer telephony platform developers computer telephony applications software developers and

telecommunications equipment vendors Additionally alternative deployment strategies such as software as

service are offered by certain companies We cannot provide assurance that we will be able to compete

effectively against current and future competitors in these segments or in new segments with new types of

competitors In addition increased competition or other competitive pressures may result in price reductions

reduced margins or loss of market share any of which could have material adverse effect on our business

financial condition or results of operations

Many of our current and potential competitors have longer operating histories significantly greater

resources greater name recognition and larger installed base of customers than we do Competitors may be able

to respond to new or emerging technologies and changes in customer requirements more effectively than we can
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or devote greater resources to the development promotion and sale of products than we can In addition for

number of our larger competitors the product segment in which they currently compete with us is small portion

of their overall offering These competitors might be willing and able to dramatically cut prices in our segment in

order to protect or grow other segments that are more important to their overall business Current and potential

competitors have established and may in the future establish cooperative relationships among themselves or

with third parties including mergers or acquisitions to increase the ability of their products to address the needs

of our current or prospective customers If these competitors were to acquire significantly increased market

share it could have material adverse effect on our business financial condition or results of operations

Our Future Business Prospects Depend in Part on Our Ability to Maintain and Improve Our Current

Products and Develop New Products

We believe that our future business prospects depend in large part on our ability to maintain and improve

our current software applications and to develop new software applications on timely basis Our software

applications will have to continue to achieve market acceptance maintain technological competitiveness and

meet an expanding range of customer requirements As result of the complexities inherent in our applications

major new applications and application enhancements require long development and testing periods We may not

be successful in developing and marketing on timely and cost effective basis application enhancements or new

software applications that respond to technological change evolving industry standards or customer

requirements We may also experience difficulties that could delay or prevent the successful development

introduction or marketing of application enhancements and our new applications and application enhancements

may not achieve market acceptance Significant delays in the general availability of new releases of our software

applications or significant problems in the installation or implementation of new releases of our applications

could have material adverse effect on our business financial condition or results of operations

If We Are Unable to Maintain the Compatibility of Our Software With Certain Other Products and

Technologies Our Future Business Would be Adversely Affected

Our software must integrate with software and hardware solutions provided by number of our existing and

potential competitors For example our products must integrate with phone switches made by the telephone

switch vendors and computer telephony software applications offered by other software providers These

competitors or their business partners could alter their products so that our software no longer integrates well

with them or they could delay or deny our access to software releases that allow us to timely adapt our software

to integrate with their products If we cannot adapt our software to changes in necessary technology it

may significantly impair our ability to compete effectively particularly if our software must integrate with the

software and hardware solutions of our competitors

Decline in Market Acceptance for Microsoft Technologies on Which Our Products Rely Could Have

Material Adverse Effect on Us

Our products currently run on Microsoft Windows operating systems Our web client interfaces are

supported on certain browsers which run on Windows Mac and Linux decline in market acceptance for

Microsoft technologies or the increased acceptance of other server technologies could cause us to incur

significant development costs and could have material adverse effect on our ability to market our current

products Although we believe that Microsoft technologies will continue to be widely used by businesses we

cannot assure you that businesses will adopt these technologies as anticipated or will not in the future migrate to

other computing technologies that we do not currently support In addition our products and technologies must

continue to be compatible with new developments in Microsoft technologies We cannot assure you that we can

maintain that compatibility or that we will not incur significant expenses
in connection therewith
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If Our Customers Do Not Perceive Our Products or the Related Services Provided by Us or Our Partners

to Be Effective or of High Quality Our Brand and Name Recognition Will Suffer

We believe that establishing and maintaining brand and name recognition is critical for attracting retaining

and expanding customers in our target markets We also believe that the importance of reputation and name

recognition will increase as competition in our market increases Promotion and enhancement of our name will

depend on the effectiveness of our marketing and advertising efforts and on our success in providing high-quality

products and related services including installation training and maintenance neither of which can be assured If

our customers do not perceive our products or related services to be effective or of high quality our brand and

name recognition would suffer which could have material adverse effect on our business financial condition or

results of operations

Our Products Require Wide Area Networks and We May be Unable to Sell Our Products Where

Networks Do Not Perform Adequately

Our products also depend on the reliable performance of the wide area networks of businesses and

organizations including those that employ remote and mobile workers If enterprise customers experience

inadequate performance with their wide area networks whether due to outages component failures or otherwise

our product performance would be adversely affected As result when these types of problems occur with these

networks our enterprise customers may not be able to immediately identify the source of the problem and may

conclude that the problem is related to our products This could harm our relationships with our current enterprise

customers and make it more difficult to attract new enterprise customers which could negatively affect our

business

Our Products Could Have Defects for Which We Are Potentially Liable and Which Could Result in Loss

of Revenue Increased Costs Loss of Our Credibility Harm Our Reputation or Delay in Acceptance of

Our Products in the Market

Our products including components supplied by others may contain errors or defects especially when first

introduced or when new versions are released Despite internal product testing we have in the past discovered

software errors in some of our products after their introduction Errors in new products or releases could be found

after commencement of commercial shipments and this could result in additional development costs diversion

of technical and other resources from our other development efforts or the loss of credibility with current or

future customers This could result in loss of revenue or delay in market acceptance of our products which

could have material adverse effect on our business financial condition or results of operations

Our license agreements with our customers typically contain provisions designed to limit our exposure to

potential product liability and some contract claims However not all of these agreements contain these types of

provisions and where present these provisions vary as to their terms and may not be effective under the laws of

some jurisdictions product liability warranty or other claim brought against us could have material adverse

effect on our business financial condition or results of operations

Our software runs on Windows 2000 or Windows 2003 server and for telephone call processing uses voice

processing boards or third-party VoW media processing software such as Intel HMP software Our server software

also operates in complex network environment with database servers e-mail servers and other third party systems

Because of this complexity our software may be more prone to performance interruptions for our customers than

traditional hardware-based products Performance interruptions at our customer sites many of which currently do

not have back-up systems could affect demand for our products or give rise to claims against us

We May Not Be Able to Protect Our Proprietary Rights Adequately Which Could Allow Third Parties to

Copy or Otherwise Obtain and Use Our Technology Without Authorization

We regard our software products as proprietary In an effort to protect our proprietary rights we rely

primarily on combination of copyright trademark and trade secret laws as well as patents licensing and other
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agreements with consultants suppliers partners and customers and employee and third-party non-disclosure

agreements These laws and agreements provide only limited protection of our proprietary rights It may be

possible for third party to copy or otherwise obtain and use our technology without authorization third party

could also develop similar technology independently In addition the laws of some countries in which we license

our products do not protect our software and intellectual property rights to the same extent as the laws of the

United States Unauthorized copying use or reverse engineering of our products could materially adversely

affect our business results of operations or financial condition

Certain Provisions in Agreements That We Have Entered Into May Expose Us to Liability for Breach

That Is Not Limited in Amount By the Terms of the Contract

Certain contract provisions principally confidentiality and indemnification obligations in certain of our

license agreements could expose us to risks of loss that in some cases are not limited by contract to specified

maximum amount If we fail to perform to the standards required by these contracts we could be subject to

additional liability and our business financial condition and results of operations could be materially and

adversely affected

Infringement Claims Could Adversely Affect Us

Third parties have claimed and may in the future claim that our technology infringes their proprietary rights

As the number of software products in our target markets increases and the functionality of these products

overlap we believe that software developers may face additional infringement claims

Infringement claims even if without merit can be time consuming and expensive to defend third party

asserting infringement claims against us or our customers with respect to our current or future products may
require us to enter into costly royalty arrangements or litigation or otherwise materially adversely affect us

Changes in Corporate Taxes or Adverse Outcomes Resulting from Examination of Our Income Tax

Returns Could Adversely Affect Our Results

Our provision for income taxes could be adversely affected by changes in the valuation of our deferred tax

assets and liabilities by earnings being lower than anticipated in countries that have lower tax rates and higher

than anticipated in countries that have higher tax rates by expiration of or lapses in the research and development

tax credit laws by transfer pricing adjustments including the post-acquisition integration of purchased intangible

assets from certain acquisitions into our intercompany research and development cost sharing arrangement by

tax effects of nondeductible stock option expense by tax costs related to intercompany realignments or by

changes in tax laws regulations and accounting principles including accounting for uncertain tax positions or

interpretations thereof If amounts included in tax retums are reduced or disallowed it would reduce our

carryforward losses and tax credits and the amount of expected future non-cash income tax expense used by

management and investors Judgment is required to determine the recognition and measurement attributes

prescribed in FASB ASC Topic 740 Income Taxes FASB ASC 740 In addition FASB ASC 740 applies to

all income tax positions including the potential recovery
of previously paid taxes which if settled unfavorably

could adversely impact our provision for income taxes or additional paid-in capital Further as result of certain

of our ongoing employment and capital investment actions and commitments our income in certain tax

jurisdictions is subject to reduced tax rates and in some cases is wholly exempt from tax Our failure to meet

these commitments could adversely impact our provision for income taxes In addition we are subject to the

examination of our income tax returns by the U.S Internal Revenue Service and other tax authorities We have

also recorded state and local income tax incentives as reduction of certain operating expenses and if those

incentives were to be disallowed we may be required to record additional expense We regularly assess the

likelihood of adverse outcomes resulting from these examinations to determine the adequacy of our provision for

income taxes There can be no assurance that the outcomes from these continuous examinations will not have an

adverse effect on our operating results and financial condition
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We Depend on Key Personnel and Will Need to Retain and Recruit Skilled Personnel for Which

Competition Is Intense to Conduct and Grow Our Business Effectively

Our success depends in large part on the continued service of our key personnel particularly Dr Donald

Brown our Chief Executive Officer and largest shareholder The loss of the services of Dr Brown or other key

personnel could have material adverse effect on our business financial condition or results of operations Our

future success also depends on our ability to attract train assimilate and retain additional qualified personnel

Competition for persons with skills in the software industry is intense particularly for those with relevant

technical and/or sales experience We cannot assure you that we will be able to retain our key employees or that

we can attract train assimilate or retain other highly qualified personnel in the future

Our International Operations Involve Financial and Operational Risks Which May Adversely Affect Our
Business and Operating Results

Our international operations require significant management attention and financial resources to establish

and operate including hiring appropriate personnel and recruiting effective international partners Non-North

American revenues accounted for 27% 27% and 25% of our total revenues for the
years

ended December 31
2009 2008 and 2007 respectively We intend to continue to emphasize our international operations and we may
enter additional international markets Revenues from international operations may be inadequate to cover the

expenses of those operations Risks inherent in our international business activities may include the following

economic and political instability

unexpected changes in foreign regulatory requirements and laws

tariffs and other trade barriers

timing cost and potential difficulty of adapting our software products to the local language in those

foreign countries that do not use the English alphabet such as Japan Korea and China

lack of acceptance of our products in foreign countries

longer sales cycles and accounts receivable payment cycles

potentially adverse tax consequences

restrictions on the repatriation of funds

acts of terrorism and

increased government regulations related to increasing or reducing business activity in various

countries

Our international revenues are generally denominated in United States dollars with principally the

exception of some European partners and customers Our international expenses are generally denominated in

local foreign currencies Although foreign currency transaction gains and losses haye been immaterial to date

fluctuations in exchange rates between the United States dollar and other currencies could have material

adverse effect on our business financial condition or results of operations and particularly on our operating

margins and net income To date we have not sought to actively hedge the risks associated with fluctuations in

exchange rates but we may more actively undertake to do so in the future Any hedging techniques we

implement in the future may not be successful Exchange rate fluctuations could also make our products more

expensive than competitive products not subject to these fluctuations which could adversely affect our revenues

and
profitability in international markets

Our Stock Price Has Been and Could Continue to Be Highly Volatile

Our stock price has been and could continue to be highly volatile due to number of factors including

actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operating results

announcements by us our competitors or our customers

35



changes in financial estimates of securities analysts or investors regarding us our industry or our

competitors

technological innovations by others

the operating and stock price performance of other comparable companies or of our competitors

the availability for future sale or sales of substantial number of shares of our common stock in the

public market and

general market or economic conditions

This risk may be heightened because our industry is continually evolving characterized by rapid

technological change and is susceptible to the introduction of new competing technologies or competitors

In addition the stock market has experienced significant price and volume fluctuations inthe recent past

that have particularly affected the trading prices of equity securities of many technology companies including us

These price and volume fluctuations often have been unrelated to the operating performance of the affected

companies In the past following periods of volatility in the market price of companys securities securities

class action litigation has sometimes been instituted against that company This type of litigation regardless of

the outcome could result in substantial costs and diversion of managements attention and resources which

could materially and adversely affect our business financial condition or results of operations

Changes Made to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and Other Legislative Changes May Impact

Our Business

Revisions to generally accepted accounting principles will require us to review our accounting and financial

reporting procedures in order to ensure continued compliance with required policies From time to time such

changes may have short-term impact on our reporting and these changes may impact market perception of our

financial condition In addition legislative changes and the perception these changes create can have material

adverse effect on our business

Failure to Maintain Effective Internal Controls in Accordance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

of 2002 Could Have Material Adverse Effect on Our Business Operating Results and Stock Price

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 imposes certain duties on us and our executives and directors We are also

required to comply with the internal control over financial reporting requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes

Oxley Act Our efforts to comply with the requirements of Section 404 have resulted in increased general and

administrative expense and diversion of management time and attention from revenue-generating activities to

compliance activities and we expect these efforts to require the continued commitment of significant resources

If we fail to maintain the adequacy of our internal controls we may not be able to ensure that we can

conclude on an ongoing basis that we have effective internal control over financial reporting Failure to maintain

effective internal control over financial reporting could result in investigation by regulatory authorities and could

have material adverse effect on our business and operating results investor confidence in our reported financial

information and the market price of our common stock

We May Not Sustain Profitability

We have been profitable for the past six consecutive years Prior to 2004 we historically incurred losses and

may do so again in the future At December 31 2009 we had accumulated net losses since inception of $19.1

million We intend to continue to make significant investments in our research and development sales and

marketing and services operations
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Anti-Takeover Provisions in Our Organizational Documents and Indiana Law Make Any Change in

Control of Us More Difficult May Discourage Bids at Premium over the Market Price and May

Adversely Affect the Market Price of Our Stock

Our Restated Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws contain provisions
that may have the effect of

delaying deferring or preventing change in control of us may discourage bids at premium over the market

price of our common stock and may adversely affect the market price of our common stock and the voting and

other rights of the holders of our common stock These provisions include

the division of our board of directors into three classes serving staggered three-year terms

removal of directors only for cause and only upon 66 2/3% shareholder vote

prohibiting shareholders from calling special meeting of shareholders

the ability to issue additional shares of our common stock or preferred stock without shareholders

approval and

advance notice requirements for raising business or making nominations at shareholders meetings

The Indiana corporation law contains business combination provisions that in general prohibit for five

years any
business combination with beneficial owner of 10% or more of our common stock unless the holders

acquisition of the stock was approved in advance by our board of directors The Indiana corporation
law also

contains control share acquisition provisions that limit the ability of certain shareholders to vote their shares

unless their control share acquisition is approved

Malicious Human Actions and/or Catastrophic Events May Disrupt Our Operations and Harm Our

Operating Results

Despite our implementation
of network security measures our servers are vulnerable to computer viruses

break-ins and similardisruptions from unauthorized tampering with our computer systems Any such event

could have material adverse effect on our reputation and our business operating results and financial

condition In addition the continued threat of terrorism and heightened security and military action in response to

this threat or any future acts of terrorism may cause further disruptions to the economies of the United States

and other countries and create further uncertainties or otherwise materially harm our business operating results

and financial condition Likewise events such as widespread blackouts could have similarnegative impacts To

the extent that such disruptions or uncertainties result in delays or cancellations of customer orders or the

manufacture or shipment of our products our business operating results and financial condition could be

materially and adversely affected

disruption or failure of our systems or operations in the event of major earthquake weather event

terrorist attack or other catastrophic event could cause delays in completing sales providing services or

performing other mission-critical functions catastrophic event that results in the destruction or disruption of

any of our critical business or information technology systems could harm our ability to conduct normal business

operations and our operating results

We Cannot Predict Every Event and Circumstance That May Impact Our Business and Therefore the

Risks and Uncertainties Discussed Above May Not Be the Only Ones You Should Consider

The risks and uncertainties discussed above are in addition to those that apply to most businesses generally

In addition as we continue to grow our business we may encounter other risks of which we are not aware at this

time These additional risks may cause serious damage to our business in the future the impact of which we

cannot estimate at this time
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ITEM lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None

ITEM PROPERTIES

Our world headquarters are located in approximately 200000 square feet of space in two office buildings in

Indianapolis Indiana We lease the space under an operating lease agreement and amendments which expire on
March 31 2018 In addition to our world headquarters we occupy product distribution center in Indianapolis
Indiana and three regional offices in the United States which are located in Hemdon Virginia Irvine California
and Columbia South Carolina We also lease offices for each of our Canada EMEA and APAC operations in

Montreal Quebec Berkshire United Kingdom and Kuala Lumpur Malaysia respectively and have several
other office leases throughout the United States and in 11 other countries We also rent office space for sales
services development and international offices under month-to-month leases All of these leases are short-term

operating leases In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 840 Leases FASB ASC 840 rental expense is

recognized ratably over the lease period including those leases containing escalation clauses

We believe that all of our facilities including our world headquarters regional offices and international
offices in EMEA and APAC are adequate and well suited to accommodate our business operations We
continuously review space alternatives to ensure we have adequate room for growth in the future

ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The information set forth under Legal Proceedings in Note 12 of Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements included in Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K is incorporated herein by reference

iTEM RESERVED
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PART II

ITEM MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER

MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

Our common stock is traded on The NASDAQ Global Market under the ticker symbol ININ The following

table sets forth for the quarterly periods indicated the high and low common stock prices per share as reported

by The NASDAQ Global Market

2009 2008

Quarter Ended High Low High Low

March31 9.62 5.82 $26.99 $11.00

June 30 13.85 8.80 13.71 10.88

September 30 20.50 12.26 12.37 6.60

December31
24.00 15.60 9.48 5.51

As of February 26 2010 there were 118 registered holders of record of our common stock

We have never declared or paid cash dividends on our common stock and do not expect to declare or pay

any cash dividends in the foreseeable future We currently intend to retain future earnings if any to finance

operations and to expand our business Any future determination to declare or pay cash dividends will be at the

discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend upon our financial condition operating results capital

requirements and other factors that our Board of Directors deem relevant

Share Repurchase Program

On July 28 2008 our Board of Directors approved share repurchase program pursuant to which we could

purchase shares of our common stock up to maximum aggregate purchase price of $10.0 million During the

third and fourth quarters of 2008 we repurchased 1204454 shares of our common stock under this share

repurchase program at an aggregate cost of $10.0 million The Board has not authorized any additional amounts

under the share repurchase program and we did not repurchase any of our equity securities during 2009
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative total return to shareholders of our common stock from
December 31 2004 through December 31 2009 with the cumulative total return over such period of the
Standard Poors 500 Stock Index the SP 500 Index and ii the Research Data Group Software Composite
Index the RDG Software Composite Index The graph assumes an investment of $100 on December 31 2004 in

each of our common stock the SP 500 Index and the RDG Software Composite Index and the reinvestment of
all dividends The performance shown is not necessanly indicative of future performance The

comparisons
shown in the graph below are based on historical data and we caution that the stock price performance shown is

not indicative of and is not intended to forecast the potential future performance of our common stock

Information used in the graph was obtained from Research Data Group source believed to be reliable but we
are not responsible for any errors or omissions in such information
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2004

Interactive Intelligence Inc $100.00

SP 500
100.00

RDG Software Composite 100.00

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

$113.33 $498.22 $585.56 $142.44 $410.00

104.91 121.48 128.16 80.74 102.11

98.74 113.28 131.87 78.34 119.34

The preceding Performance Graph and related information shall not be deemed soliciting material or to

be filed with the SEC nor shall such information be incorporated by reference in any filing of Interactive

Intelligence Inc under the Exchange Act or the Securities Act of 1933 whether made before or after the date
hereof and irrespective of any general incorporation language in any such filing

The remaining information required by Item
concerning securities authorized for issuance under our

equity compensation plans is set forth in or incorporated by reference to Part III Item 12 of this Annual Report
on Form 10-K
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ITEM SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected consolidated financial data in thousands except per share amounts is qualified in

its entirety by and should be read in conjunction with Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial

Condition and Results of Operations and our Consolidated Financial Statements and the Notes thereto contained

in Items and respectively of this Annual Report on Form 10-K There were no cash dividends declared per

common share

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Total revenues $131418 $121406 $109901 $83044 $62937

Gross profit 91564 82268 74648 59071 47374

Operating income 14441 6948 8106 5007 2389

Net income 8640 4338 17456 10248 2108

Net income per share

Basic 0.51 0.24 1.00 0.62 0.13

Diluted 0.47 0.23 0.91 0.56 0.13

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data

As of December 31

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Cash and cash equivalents and short-term

investments 64979 45510 46327 $27086 $15127

Net working capital 54149 35504 37073 14449 3177

Total assets 132668 105183 103438 66775 38398

Total shareholders equity
67 607 47 247 48 619 24 278 793
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations is

intended to provide investors with an understanding of our past performance our financial condition and our

prospects and should be read in conjunction with other sections of this Annual Report on Form 10-K including

Part Item Business Part II Item Selected Financial Data and Part II Item Financial Statements and

Supplementary Data Investors should carefully review the information contained in this
report under Part

Item 1A Risk Factors The following will be discussed and analyzed

Overview

Business Strategy

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Financial Highlights

Historical Results of Operations

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Overview

Interactive Intelligence Inc Interactive Intelligence we us or our was formed in 1994 as an

Indiana corporation and maintains its world headquarters and executive offices at 7601 Interactive Way
Indianapolis IN 46278 Our telephone number is 317 872-3000 We are located on the web at

http//www.inin.com We file annual quarterly and current reports proxy statements and other documents with

the SEC under the Exchange Act These periodic and current reports and all amendments to those reports are

available free of charge on the investor relations page of our website at http//investors.inin.com

We are leading provider of software application suites for VoIP business communications and are

increasingly leveraging our leadership position in the worldwide contact center market to offer our solutions to

enterprises Businesses and organizations including those that employ remote and mobile workers utilize our

solutions in industries including but not limited to teleservices financial services banks credit unions accounts

receivable management insurance higher education healthcare retail technology government and business

services Our innovative software products and services are designed for

Multichannel contact management and business communications voice and messaging using the SIP

global communications standard that supports VoIP

BPA using communications-based approach and

Content management including document as well as workflow management

With our single software platform organizations can replace various traditional multipoint

communications products Our solutions incorporate full-featured media server media gateways SIP proxy
and SIP station voice device for IP-based communications networks and infrastructures Customers can deploy

our solutions on-premises or in CaaS model using hosted data center

Our solutions integrate with business systems and end-user devices enhance the mobility of todays remote

workiorce scale to thousands of users manage content in large volumes provide communications and data

security and satisfy range of business communications and interaction management needs for

The Contact Center

Enterprise 1P Telephony

Business Process Automation
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By implementing our all-in-one solutions businesses are able to unify multichannel communications media

phone fax e-mail web chat content and information automate business processes enhance workforce

performance and productivity improve customer service processes and readily adapt to changing market and

customer requirements Contact centers can leverage our platform to support thousands of agents including

remote Work-at-Home agents and handle inbound outbound and blended inbound/outbound interactions at

one location or throughout multi-site contact center operations Our enterprise IP telephony solutions provide call

control and messaging for mid- and large-sized business enterprises with 100 to several hundred thousand users

with the ability to scale user counts up or down as needed Enterprises contact centers and other organizations

can utilize our BPA solutions to automate processes using an approach that incorporates communications

functionality such as routing quality monitoring and the ability to indicate employee availability

Our management monitors certain key measures to assess our financial results In particular we track trends

on product orders contracted professional services and CaaS orders from quarter to quarter and in comparison to

the prior year and budget Because salaries are our largest expense we monitor staffing levels As noted below

macroeconomic conditions have materially affected the orders we received in certain of our recent quarters We
review leading market indicators to look for trends in economic conditions In addition to orders and revenues

management reviews costs of revenue and operating expenses to ensure we are managing new expenditures and

controlling costs Finally management monitors diluted earnings per share which is key measure of

performance that is also used by analysts and investors For additional discussions regarding trends for 2009 and

our expectations for 2010 see the Financial Highlights beginning on page 47

Business Strategy

In the coming year we intend to continue building our brand awareness to increase our penetration in the

contact center and IP PBX markets During 2010 we willbegin licensing our IPA product for business process

automation and aim to become more established in the market for content management with our initial focus on

the insurance industry We also plan to emphasize our new packaged approach to professional services market

these services and enhanced product functionality to existing customers and focus on growing our CaaS offering

as viable option that allows an organization to pay for communications solution on monthly subscription

basis Our strategy for achieving this overall mission includes multiple objectives described as follows

Market more effectively to our existing customers and go up-market in the contact center market

Offer our IPA application as CBPA solution

Enhance our BPA offering with content management with focus on the insurance vertical

Promote our packaged services offerings

Rapidly grow our CaaS customer base

Continue our innovation and enhance our core product offerings

Expand in our market for enterprise IP telephony

Leverage our relationships with multi-national partners to open new selling opportunities

Develop effective relationships with companies in specific vertical industries and

10 Increase awareness of our all-in-one solution and launch aggressive replacement programs

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We believe our accounting policies listed below are important to understanding our historical and future

performance as these policies affect our reported amounts of revenues and
expenses

and are applied to

significant areas involving managements judgments and estimates Such accounting policies require significant

judgments assumptions and estimates used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements included
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in Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and actual results could differ materially from the amounts

reported based on these policies These policies and our procedures related to these policies are described

below See also Note of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item of this Annual Report

on Form 10-K for further summary of our significant accounting policies arid methods used in the preparation

of our consolidated financial statements

Sources of Revenues and Revenue Recognition Policy

We generate product revenues from licensing the right to use our software applications and in certain

instances selling hardware as component of our solution and generate services revenues primarily from annual

support fees annual renewal fees professional services educational services and our CaaS offering These

revenues are generated by direct sales with customers and by indirect sales through partner channel

Product revenues

Our license agreements are either perpetual or annually renewable For any revenues to be recognized from

license agreement the following criteria must be met

Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists

The fee is fixed or determinable

Collection is probable and

Delivery has occurred

For perpetual license agreement upon meeting the revenue recognition criteria above we immediately

recognize as product revenues the residual amount of the total fees if sufficient vendor specific objective

evidence of fair value VSOE exists to support allocating portion of the total fee to the undelivered elements

of the arrangement If sufficient VSOE of fair value for the undelivered elements does not exist we recognize the

initial license fee as product revenues ratably over the initial term of the support agreement once support is the

only undelivered element The support period is generally 12 months but may be up to 18 months for initial

orders because support begins when the licenses are downloaded when support commences or no more than six

months following the contract date We determine VSOE of fair value for support in perpetual agreements based

on substantive renewal rates the customer must pay to renew the support The VSOE of fair value for other

services is based on amounts charged when the services are sold in stand-alone sales

For an annually renewable license agreement upon meeting the revenue recognition criteria above we

recognize majority of the initial license fee as product revenues ratably over the initial license period which is

generally 12 months and the remainder of the initial license fee is recognized as services revenues over the same

time period

We recognize revenues related to any hardware sales when the hardware is delivered and all other revenue

recognition criteria are met

Services revenues

Services revenues are primarily recognized for support fees for perpetual license agreements and renewal

fees and support related to annually renewable license agreements For annually renewable agreements the

allocation of the order between product revenues and services revenues is based on an average renewal rate for

our time based contracts We apply the allocation of product revenues and services revenues consistently to all

annually renewable agreements Under annually renewable license agreements after the initial license period

our customers may renew their license agreement for an additional period typically 12 months by paying

renewal fee The revenue from annual renewal fees is classified under services revenue and the revenue is
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recognized ratably over the contract period Under perpetual license agreements we recognize annual support

fees as services revenues ratably over the post-contract support period which is typically 12 months however

customers have the option to prepay support up to three years

We also generate revenues from other services that we provide to our customers and partners These

additional revenues include fees for professional services educational services and CaaS Revenues from

professional services which include implementing our products for customer or partner educational services

which consist of training courses for customers and partners and CaaS which allows customers to deploy our

solutions using hosted data center are recognized as the related services are performed

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

We have recorded goodwill and other intangible assets as result of acquisitions discussed in further detail

in Note 13 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item of this Annual Report on

Form 10-K in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 350 IntangiblesGoodwill and Other We review our

goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives for impainnent at least annually Identifiable intangible assets

such as intellectual property trademarks and patents are amortized over 10 to 15
year period using the straight-

line method In addition other intangible assets such as customer relationships and core technology are

amortized over five to six year period based upon historical patterns in which the economic benefits are

expected to be realized We have one reporting segment and therefore our impairment review of goodwill

involves reviewing the impairment of the Company as whole Because of this we believe the risk of

impairment to our goodwill is minimal The guidance requires us to perform the goodwill impainnent test

annually or when change in facts and circumstances indicates that the fair value of an asset may be below its

carrying amount We performed our annual goodwill impairment test as of September 30 2009 and determined

no indication of impainnent existed As there were no changes in facts and circumstances that indicated that the

fair value of the reporting unit may have been below its carrying amount since September 30 2009 no additional

impairment test was performed during the fourth quarter of 2009

Stock-Based Compensation Expense

We account for our employee and director stock options in accordance with FASB ASC 718 which requires

the measurement and recognition of compensation expense for all share-based payment awards made to

employees and directors based on fair values Consistent with FASB ASC 718 we continue to use the Black

Scholes option-pricing model as our method of valuation for share-based payment awards Our determination of

fair value of share-based payment awards on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model is

affected by our stock price as well as assumptions regarding number of highly complex and subjective

variables These variables include but are not limited to our expected stoºk price volatility over the term of the

awards and an expected risk-free rate of return If factors change and we use different assumptions for estimating

stock-based compensation expense associated with awards granted in future periods stock-based compensation

expense may differ materially in the future from that recorded in the current period

We record compensation expense for share-based awards using the straight-line method which is recorded

into earnings over the vesting period of the award Stock-based compensation expense for employee and director

stock options recognized under FASB ASC 718 for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 was $3.3

million $3.0 million and $3.1 million respectively See Note of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in

Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for further information on our stock-based compensation

Income and Sales Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method Deferred tax assets and liabilities are

recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying

amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit
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carryforwards Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to

taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled The

effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that

includes the enactment date

FASB ASC 740 establishes financial accounting and reporting standards for the effect of income taxes We
are subject to income taxes in both the United States and numerous foreign jurisdictions Significant judgment is

required in evaluating our tax positions and determining our provision for income taxes The objectives of

accounting for income taxes are to recognize the amount of taxes payable or refundable for the current year and

deferred tax liabilities and assets for the future tax consequences of events that have been recognized in an

entitys financial statements or tax returns Variations in the actual outcome of these future tax consequences

could materially impact our financial position results of operations or cash flows

In assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets our management considers whether it is more likely

than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized The ultimate realization of

deferred tax assets is dependent upon generation of future taxable income during the periods in which temporary

differences such as loss carryforwards and tax credits become deductible Management considers projected future

taxable income and tax planning strategies in making this assessment and ensuring that the deferred tax asset

valuation allowance is adjusted as appropriate

As of December 31 2009 we had $11.5 million of tax net operating loss cariyforwards which had not been

recognized or recorded In addition we had $6.1 million in tax credit carryforwards recorded as deferred tax

assets During the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 we recorded tax expense
of $6.4 million and $3.5

million respectively and during the
year

ended December 31 2007 we recorded tax benefit of $7.8 million

There was no valuation allowance at December 31 2009 because management considers it more likely than not

that the deferred tax assets will be realized We will continue to evaluate the valuation of deferred tax assets in

accordance with the requirements of FASB ASC 740 See Note 10 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

in Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for further information on our income taxes

Sales tax amounts collected from customers is recorded on net basis

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts Receivable

The allowance for doubtful accounts is our best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in our

existing accounts receivable We evaluate bad debt
expense

based on percentage of revenue reported and other

measures each period We then review the allowance for doubtful accounts each reporting period based on

detailed analysis of our accounts receivable In the analysis we primarily consider the following attributes of the

partner or customer the age of the receivable their creditworthiness the economic conditions of their industry

and general economic conditions If any of these factors change we may also change our original estimates

which could impact the level of our future allowance for doubtful accounts We have considered the impact of

the current economic conditions as part of our overall determination of allowance for doubtful accounts

If payment is not made timely we will contact the customer or partner to try to obtain payment If this is not

successful we will institute other collection practices such as generating collection letters involving our sales

personnel and ultimately terminating the customers or partners access to future upgrades licenses and technical

support Once all collection efforts are exhausted the receivable is written off against the allowance for doubtful

accounts

Research and Development

Research and development expenditures are expensed as incurred FASB ASC 985 requires capitalization of

certain software development costs subsequent to the establishment of technological feasibility Based on our
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product development process technological feasibility is established upon completion of working model The

costs we incur between completion of working model and the point at which product is ready for general

release have historically been insignificant Through December 31 2009 all research and development costs

have been expensed Research and development expense for 2009 2008 and 2007 was $24.1 million $21.5

million and $17.0 million respectively

Legal Proceedings

Liabilities for loss contingencies arising from claims assessments litigation fines and penalties and other

sources are recorded when it is probable that liability has been incurred and the amount of the assessment and/

or remediation can be reasonably estimated Legal costs incurred in connection with loss contingencies are

expensed as incurred

Financial Highlights

For the
year

ended December 31 2009 we achieved 8% revenue growth from 2008 almost doubled our net

income and increased our cash balance by approximately $20 million Factors affecting our revenue

performance in any particular year include macroeconomic conditions customer budget constraints the

availability of personnel to implement our solutions and willingness of customers to implement critical

telecommunications systems Revenues in any particular period can greatly fluctuate from other periods

The following table sets forth information about our total revenues in millions and the annual growth

percentage over the previous year
for the past five

years including the impact of the reclassifications and

adjustments discussed in Note of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Year Revenues Growth

2009 $131.4 8%

2008 121.4 10

2007 109.9 32

2006 83 32

2005 62.9 14

We believe that the slower growth rates in 2008 and 2009 were primarily due to the instabilities of the

economy worldwide which has resulted in longer sales cycles for both new and existing customers Prospective

customers have been more hesitant to commit to new capital purchases and some existing customers have

delayed purchases of additional software and hardware as they maintain or reduce staffing levels When the

economy started to stabilize during the third and fourth quarters of 2009 we began to see improved sales cycles

and believe this trend will continue into 2010

During the fourth quarter of 2009 we received one order from our partner channel which is expected to

generate more than $7.0 million in product and services revenues in 2009 and 2010 We recognized $2.3 million

in product revenues and $128000 in services revenues during the fourth quarter of 2009 related to this order and

anticipate recognizing the remainder of the product revenues during the first two quarters of 2010 and the

majority of the service revenues in 2010

Product revenues increased during 2009 primarily due to 4% increase in the dollar amount of product

orders received compared to 2008 This increase was primarily due to an increase in orders from existing

customers In addition in 2009 we received seven product orders that were greater than $1.0 million compared to

four orders over $1.0 million in 2008 Finally perpetual license orders which typically have significant portion

of the revenue recognized immediately increased to 86% of license orders in 2009 compared to 84% of license

orders in 2008
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Services revenues increased by $7.2 million during 2009 compared to 2008 primarily due to increased

maintenance and support fees from our expanding customer base and higher revenues from our CaaS related

services Revenues from CaaS orders are recognized ratably over the life of these contracts which are typically

three to four years During the third quarter of 2009 we received orders for future CaaS services revenues of at

least $3.6 million with two of the orders over $1.0 million each These orders represent significant increase in

CaaS contract amounts compared to those we received in previous periods Although some costs related to CaaS

are fixed others are variable based on usage
and call volume As result we expect our services expenses to

increase as the revenues from these orders are recognized over the next three to four years

Cost of products increased by $2.0 million during 2009 compared to 2008 primarily as result of an

increase of $1.7 million in cost of goods sold as more customers included more hardware and appliances in their

orders Cost of services decreased by $1.3 million during 2009 compared to 2008 primarily due to decrease in

compensation and travel expenses partially offset by an increase in CaaS related expenses

Total operating expenses which include sales and marketing research and development and general and

administrative expenses increased by $1.8 million or 2% during 2009 compared to 2008 Compensation

expense increased $3.0 million during 2009 primarily due to increased incentive compensation expense as

operating perfonnance improved year-over-year
Allocable corporate expenses including rent and internal

depreciation also increased in 2009 reflecting full years worth of rent and depreciation expense related to

office and building expansions that were completed in 2008 Partially offsetting these increases were decreases in

travel and entertainment
expenses and fees paid to third parties for customer referrals In addition during the

fourth quarter of 2008 we reached settlement with the French Taxing Authority related to value added tax

VAT claim in which we were refunded $577000 and applied this amount as reduction to 2008 operating

expenses split among each department as that is where the expense was initially accrued

On May 15 2009 we entered into stock purchase agreement with AcroSoft provider of insurance

content management solutions pursuant to which we purchased 100% of AcroSofts issued and outstanding

shares of capital stock for an aggregate purchase price of $2.2 million funded with cash available from

operations Ten percent of the purchase price or $240000 was deposited into an escrow account to ensure funds

were available to pay any indemnification claims We acquired AcroSoft to integrate their document

management and workflow functionality into our Interaction Center Platform including our IPA

application Over time we also anticipate extending the integrated solution to other document-intensive industry

vertical and horizontal processes AcroSofts results of operations were included in our consolidated financial

statements subsequent to the acquisition

As of December 31 2009 we had approximately $11.5 million in stock-based compensation deductions

which had not been recorded or recognized available to offset taxable income and $5.9 million of various tax

credit carryforwards In addition we had deferred tax asset of $121000 available to offset future taxable

income related to subsidiary During 2010 we expect taxes paid in cash to increase by approximately $100000
to $200000 each quarter as result of various states where we have utilized all of our tax loss carryforwards and

certain states which have enaºted new revenue enhancing programs

In 2010 we believe that our year-over-year revenues will increase by approximately 10% which should also

improve our net income We expect an increase in operating expenses as we continue to invest in research and

development expand our marketing efforts and hire additional staff in various departments
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Historical Results of Operations

The following table sets forth for the periods indicated our consolidated financial information expressed as

percentage of total revenues

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Revenues

Product 48% 50% 52%

Services 5J 48

Total revenues 100 100 100

Cost of revenues

Product 13 13 13

Services 17 19 19

Total cost of revenues 30 32 32

Gross profit 68 68

Operating expenses

Sales and marketing 30 32 33

Research and development 18 18 16

General and administrative 11 12 12

Total operating expenses 59 62 61

Operating income 11

Other income

Interest income net

Other expense

Total other income

Income before income taxes 11

Income tax benefit expense

Net income 7% 4%

Comparison of Years Ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Revenues

Primary Sources of Revenues

We generate revenues from product revenues which include licensing the right to use our software

applications and in certain instances selling hardware as component of our solutions and ii services

revenues which include annual support fees annual renewal fees professional services fees educational services

fees and our CaaS offering Services revenues are primarily recognized for renewal fees and support related to

annually renewable license agreements and support fees for perpetual license agreements These revenues are

generated by direct sales to customers and by indirect sales through our partner channel

Product Revenues

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

in thousands

Product revenues $63099 $60256 $57673

Change from prior year period 5% 4% 34%

Percentage of total revenues 48% 50% 52%
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Not all software and hardware product orders are recognized as revenues when they are received because of

certain contractual terms or the collection history with particular customers or partners Consequently product

revenues for any particular period not only reflect orders received in the current period but also orders received in

previous periods and recognized in the current period In addition product orders include first year support

which is deferred and recognized over the support period

Product revenues increased by $2.8 million during 2009 compared to 2008 primarily due to 6% increase in

the dollar amount of orders received from existing customers mainly in North America and Europe The dollar

amount of orders from new customers in 2009 was comparable to 2008 In 2009 we received seven orders that

were greater than $1.0 million with three of these orders from existing customers compared to four in 2008

with one of these orders from existing customers We believe the increases in the number and dollar amount of

orders received were due to the economy beginning to stabilize during the second half of 2009 and customers

making purchasing decisions they had previously delayed We believe these increases reflect our developing

abilities to sell to larger customers with the increased scalability of our products Finally perpetual license

orders which typically have significant portion of the revenue recognized immediately were 86% of total

product orders in 2009 compared to 84% in 2008

During the fourth quarter of 2009 we received one order from our partner channel which is expected to

generate product revenues greater than $5.0 million in 2009 and 2010 We recognized $2.3 million in product

revenues during the fourth quarter of 2009 and anticipate recognizing $1.5 million and $1.3 million during the

first and second quarters of 2010 respectively We anticipate higher cost of sales related to this order in the first

quarter of 2010

In 2008 the dollar amount of product orders increased by 5% from 2007 The dollar amount of orders from

new customers increased 24% which we believe resulted from the demonstrated return on investment and

improvement in operations that results from implementing our solutions The dollar amount of orders from our

existing customers however decreased by 6% As the economy began to weaken during the second half of 2008

customers delayed making capital purchases and more closely monitored expenses We also experienced an

increase of 50% in the dollar amount of orders for our media server and gateway appliances along with other

hardware we deliver as part of our solutions which contributed to an increase in product cost The increase in the

dollar amount of third-party hardware orders was primarily due to increased marketing efforts that we made

during 2008 to encourage customers to purchase hardware from us rather than from other vendors

Product revenues can fluctuate from period to period depending on the mix of contracts sold between

perpetual licenses and annually renewable licenses While the majority of our product licenses are perpetual we

have certain customers whose original license contracts were signed prior to 2004 with renewable term licenses

representing 14% 16% and 20% of total product orders in 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively Generally orders

for perpetual licenses result in significant portion of the contract value being recognized when received if

recognition criteria are satisfied while renewable term licenses are recognized ratably over the term of the

agreement generally one year The impact of the mix of contracts on our product revenues occurs only in the

year of product order subsequent renewal fees received for annually renewable licenses and renewal support

fees for perpetual contracts are all allocated entirely to services revenues

Our geographic mix of licenses has been relatively constant over 2009 2008 and 2007 with the Americas

contributing 71% to 74% EMEA contributing 21% to 22% and APAC contributing 5% to 8% of the total

contracts in any one year
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Services Revenues

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

in thousands

Services revenues $68319 $61150 $52228

Change from prior year period
12% 17% 30%

Percentage of total revenues 52% 50% 48%

Services revenues include the portion of license arrangements allocated to maintenance and support from

annually renewable and perpetual contracts renewals of annually renewable licenses and maintenance contracts

and revenues from professional services CaaS and education Revenues related to our renewal and support fees

represented approximately 77% 77% and 76% of our total services revenues for 2009 2008 and 2007

respectively

Services revenues increased by $7.2 million during 2009 compared to 2008 primarily due to increased

maintenance and support fees of $5.4 million resulting primarily from continued growth in our installed base of

customers The increase in services revenues was also due to growth in CaaS revenues of $1.2 million or 59%

during 2009 During the third quarter of 2009 we received four large orders for our CaaS solutions for at least

$3.6 million in future revenues in which the majority will be recognized over the next three to four years We

recognized $115000 related to these contracts in 2009 We believe our CaaS services revenues will continue to

grow as more customers utilize hosted delivery of software for their information technology needs instead of

licensing software and purchasing hardware and hiring additional technical employees

During the fourth quarter
of 2009 we received one order from our partner channel which is expected to

generate more than $2.6 million of services revenues and will be recognized over seven quarters We recognized

$128000 in services revenues during the fourth quarter of 2009 related to this order and anticipate recognizing

$2.0 million during 2010 and $527000 during 2011

The increase in services revenues in 2008 of $8.9 million compared to 2007 was primarily due to increases

in our growing installed base of customers and increases in related payments of annually renewable license fees

and support fees for perpetual licenses Education and CaaS revenues increased by $404000 and $900000

respectively The increase in education revenues was due to larger number of partners and customers attending

our global training sessions CanS revenues increased because more customers opted to purchase hosted

solution

Support and license renewal rates were approximately 90% during each of the last three years Renewal

rates for license and support fees have not materially changed in 2009

Services revenues have and will fluctuate based on dollar amount of orders and license renewals the

number of attendees at our educational classes the amount of assistance our customers and partners need for

implementation and installation and CaaS adoption The actual percentage fee charged for renewal of annually

renewable licenses and perpetual support agreements as compared to the initial annually renewable license fee

and perpetual license respectively is comparable on relative percentage basis and therefore the mix of these

types of contracts in the future is not expected to impact our future services revenues We believe services

revenues will continue to grow as we continue to license our solutions to new customers and expand existing

customer implementations
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Cost of Revenues

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

in thousands

Cost of revenues

Product $17452 $15446 $14159
Services 22402 23692 21094

Total cost of revenues $39854 $39138 $35253

Change from prior year period 2% 11% 47%
Product cost as of product gross revenues 28% 26% 25%
Services cost as of services

gross revenues 33% 39% 40%

Cost of product consist of hardware costs including media servers and Interaction Gateway appliances that

we develop as well as servers telephone handsets and gateways that we purchase and resell royalties for third-

party software and other technologies included in our solutions personnel costs product distribution facility

costs and software packaging costs including product media and documentation duplication Cost of product

can fluctuate depending on which software applications are licensed to our customers and partners the third-

party software that is licensed by the end-user from us as part of our software applications and the dollar amount

of orders for hardware and appliances

Cost of product increased $2.0 million in 2009 from 2008 primarily because more customers purchased

hardware from us when implementing our solutions

The $1.3 million increase in these costs in 2008 compared to 2007 was primarily due to higher sales of our

enterprise solution which includes hardware component as well as an increase in sales of our Interaction

Gateway and media servers

Cost of services consist primarily of compensation expenses for technical support professional services and

educational personnel as well as costs associated with our CaaS offering Cost of services decreased by $1.3

million in 2009 from 2008 primarily due to lower compensation expenses of $1.2 million and travel-related

expenses of $763000 both the result of reduction in services staff during the first three quarters of 2009

Partially offsetting these decreases was an increase of $606000 in CaaS expenses primarily related to data center

and associated hosting costs We believe CaaS expenses will continue to increase as our CaaS business grows

Cost of services increased in 2008 from 2007 primarily due to $1.9 million increase in compensation

expense
for our services personnel as result of an increase in staffing

Gross Profit

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

in thousands

Gross profit $91564 $82268 $74648

Change from prior year period 11% 10% 26%

Percentage of total revenues 70% 68% 68%

Gross profit as percentage of total revenues in any particular period reflects the amount of product and

services revenues recognized and cost of product and services incurred

Gross profit increased during 2009 compared to 2008 primarily due to an increase in product and services

revenues and minimal increases in the cost of product and services
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The overall increase in gross profit from 2007 to 2008 was the result of an increase in our services margin in

2008 due to an increase in license renewal and support revenues

Operating Expenses

Sales and Marketing

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

in thousands

Sales andmarketing expenses $39141 $39307 $36331

Change from prior year period 0% 8% 23%

Percentage of total revenues 30% 32% 33%

Percentage of net product revenues 86% 88% 83%

Sales and marketing expenses primarily include compensation travel and promotional costs related to our

sales marketing and channel management operations These expenses decreased slightly during 2009 compared

to 2008 due to decreases in travel and entertainment expenses of $636000 fees paid to third parties for customer

referrals of $233000 and outsourced services of $223000 as we focused on cost management in 2009 Partially

offsetting these decreases were increases in commissions and incentives of approximately $1.0 million resulting

from increased sales and related revenues We expect marketing costs to increase in 2010 as we increase our

marketing efforts

Sales and marketing compensation expense increased $1.6 million in 2008 from 2007 primarily due to an

increase in staffing Corporate marketing expenses increased $443000 due to increases in advertising public

relations and marketing related events from efforts to continue to increase our brand awareness and distribution

Allocated rent expense and depreciation increased by $203000 and $236000 respectively due to staff additions

in the sales and marketing departments These increases were partially offset by $151000 of the VAT refund

allocated to sales and marketing

Research and Development

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

in thousands

Research and development expenses $24103 $21539 $17040

Change from prior year period 12% 26% 25%

Percentage of total revenues 18% 18% 16%

Research and development expenses are comprised primarily of compensation and depreciation expenses

These expenses increased by $2.6 million during 2009 compared to 2008 primarily due to an increase in

compensation expense of $1.8 million and 16% increase in staff resulting from the AcroSoft acquisition in the

second quarter of 2009 and other hires In addition corporate expenses allocated to research and development

increased $721000 primarily due to an increase in rental rates and new office in Canada Depreciation costs

increased primarily due to the expansion of our world headquarters

In 2008 research and development compensation expense
increased $3.5 million from 2007 due to an

increase in staffing Allocated rent and depreciation expense also increased by $524000 and $330000

respectively due to these staff additions

We believe that investment in research and development is critical to our future growth particularly because

our competitive position in the marketplace is directly related to the timely development of new and enhanced

solutions that are essential to our business As result we expect research and development expenses
will

continue to increase in future periods
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General and Administrative

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

in thousands

General and administrative expenses $13879 $14474 $13171

Change from prior year period 4% 10% 20%

Percentage of total revenues 11% 12% 12%

General and administrative expenses include salary and incentive compensation expense as well as general

corporate expenses that are not allocable to other departments such as legal and other professional fees and bad

debt expense

General and administrative expenses decreased by $595000 during 2009 compared to 2008 This decrease

was due to reductions in salary expense of $655000 resulting from staff reductions fees paid to third parties for

customer referrals of $262000 bad debt
expense of $217000 and travel and entertainment expense of $170000

Partially offsetting these decreases was an increase in incentive expense of $800000 resulting from the increased

operating profit during the year

General and administrative compensation related
expense

increased $595000 in 2008 from 2007 primarily

due to staff additions as well as increases in non-allocable office expense and supplies of $241000 and

professional services related to accounting legal and tax fees of $169000 We also recognized an increase in

foreign exchange translation losses of $110000 in 2008 compared to 2007 These increases were partially offset

by $147000 of the VAT refund allocated to general and administration expense

Other Income Expense

Interest Income Net

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

in thousands

Cash cash equivalents and short-term investments average $55245 $45919 $36707

Interest income gross 281 1288 1729

Return on investments 0.5% 2.8% 4.7%

Interest income net primarily consists of interest earned from investments and interest-bearing cash

accounts Interest expense and fees which are not material for any years reported are also included in this

category

Interest earned on investments decreased in 2009 compared to 2008 and in 2008 compared to 2007 as

result of lower interest rates from decreasing interest yields on investments In response to the financial crisis that

began in 2008 and continued in 2009 we transferred the majority of our liquid investments into money market

funds that are secured by low risk government securities

We continue to monitor the allocation of funds in which we have invested to maximize our return on

investment while utilizing safe investment alternatives within our established investment policy We do not have

any investments in subprime assets

Other Income Expense Net

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

in thousands

Other income expense net $298 $435 $208
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Other income expense net includes foreign currency transaction gains and losses Foreign currency

transaction gains and losses can fluctuate based on the amount of revenue that is generated in certain

international currencies particularly the Euro the exchange gain or loss that results from foreign currency

disbursements and receipts and the cash balances and exchange rates at the end of reporting period In 2007

other income expense included foreign withholding expenses In 2008 and 2009 we determined that we had

sufficient and appropriate foreign source income to record our foreign withholdings as tax credit instead of

deduction to taxable income

Other income in 2009 included $310000 related to foreign currency gains and the expense in 2008

included $399000 related to foreign currency losses both with immaterial foreign tax withholdings The expense

in 2007 consisted of $26000 of gains related to realized foreign currency transactions and $233000 of foreign

tax withholdings

Income Tax Benefit Expense

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

in thousands

Income tax benefit expense $6380 $3464 $7837

As of December 31 2009 we had approximately $11.5 million in stock-based compensation deductions

available to offset taxable income which had not been recorded as an asset but will be recognized when realized

as reduction of taxes payable The tax benefit of these deductions will be primarily recorded as credit to

additional paid-in capital We also had $5.9 million of various tax credit carryforwards and deferred tax asset of

$121000 available to offset future taxable income related to subsidiary There was no valuation allowance at

December 31 2009 2008 or 2007 We recorded income tax expense of $6.4 million in 2009 however due to the

tax net operating loss carryforwards the tax credit carryforwards and stock option compensation deductions cash

payments for income taxes were minimal and we do not expect to have substantial cash payment of income

taxes until 2011

For the
year

ended December 31 2009 $548000 of the income tax expense was expected to result in cash

payments and the remaining amount was offset by the utilization of our net operating losses We have significant

remaining credits and losses to offset taxable income and taxes payable as described in Note 10 of Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements in Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K Our effective tax rate was

43% for the year ended December 31 2009 The tax rate is determined by considering the federal tax rate rates

in various states and international jurisdictions in which we have operations and portion of the amount of

stock-based compensation that is not deductible for income tax purposes

During 2010 we expect taxes paid in cash to increase by approximately $100000 to $200000 each quarter

as result of various states where we have utilized all of our tax loss carryforwards and certain states which have

enacted new revenue enhancing programs

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We generate cash from the collections related to licensing our products as well as from selling hardware

renewals of annual licenses and maintenance and support agreements and the delivery of other services In 2009

we also received $2.2 million in cash from employees exercising stock options We use cash primarily for paying

our employees including salaries commissions and benefits leasing office space paying travel expenses

marketing activities paying vendors for hardware other services and supplies and purchasing property and

equipment During the last six months of 2008 we repurchased $10.0 million of our common stock and during

the second quarter of 2009 we acquired AcroSoft for $2.2 million in cash We continue to be debt free
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We determine liquidity by combining cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments as shown in the

table below Based on our recent performance and current expectations we believe that our current liquidity

position when combined with our anticipated cash flows from operations will be sufficient to satisfy our

working capital needs and current or expected obligations associated with our operationsover the next 12

months Our future requirements will depend on many factors including cash flows from operations territory

expansion and product development decisions and potential acquisitions If our liquidity is not sufficient to cover

our needs we may be forced to raise additional capital either through the capital markets or debt financings and

may not be able to do so on favorable terms or at all

December 31

2009 2008

in thousands

Cash and cash equivalents $48497 $34705

Short-term investments 16482 10805

Total liquidity $64979 $45510

On October 17 2007 October 23 2007 and October 26 2007 we filed separately with the SEC the first

second and third amendments respectively to the registration statement on Form S-3 utilizing the shelf

registration process which was originally filed on October 19 2006 This registration statement as amended

was declared effective by the SEC on October 31 2007 and will allow us to offer and sell up to 3000000 shares

of our common stock from time to time in one or more transactions In addition under this shelf registration

statement as amended Dr Donald Brown our Chairman of the Board President and CEO registered

1000000 shares of our common stock that he owns for sale from time to time Although the shelf registration

statement as amended will permit us to offer and sell up to 3000000 shares of our common stock doing so

remains at the discretion of our Board of Directors and there is no assurance that we would be able to complete

any such offering of our common stock

The following table shows cash flows from operating activities investing activities and financing activities

for the stated periods

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

in thousands

Beginning cash and cash equivalents $34705 $29359 $13531

Cash provided by operating activities 15083 15180 20154
Cash used in investing activities 9676 1162 8085
Cash provided by used in financing activities 8385 8672 3759

Ending cash and cash equivalents $48497 $34705 $29359

Cash provided by operating activities during all three years was generated primarily by our profitability net

of ordinary fluctuations in our operating assets and liabilities The cash used in investing activities increased

during 2009 compared to 2008 due to the transferring of the majority of our liquid investments into money
market funds during 2009 in response to the financial crisis During 2008 and 2007 the cash used in investing

activities related primarily to property plant and equipment purchases due to office expansions and purchases of

available-for-sale investments partially offset by sales of available-for-sale investments Cash provided by

financing activities increased in 2009 primarily due to an increase in proceeds from stock options exercised and

tax benefits from stock-based compensation as well as no repurchases of our common stock in 2009 compared to

stock repurchases totaling $10.0 million in 2008 During 2007 the cash provided by financing activities was

mainly due to proceeds from stock options that were exercised during the year
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Contractual Obligations

The following amounts set forth in the table are as of December 31 2009 in thousands

Payments Due by Period

Less than More than

Contractual Obligations Total Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years Years

Operating lease obligations $38381 $5257 9277 $9085 $14762
Purchase obligations 9277 2161 7116
Other obligations reflected on the consolidated balance

sheet under GAAP 910 910

Total $48568 $7418 $16393 $9995 $14762

As set forth in the Contractual Obligations table we have operating lease obligations and purchase

obligations that are not recorded in our consolidated financial statements The operating lease obligations

represent future payments on leases classified as operating leases and disclosed pursuant to FASB ASC 840

These obligations include the amended operating lease of our world headquarters and the leases of several other

buildings for our offices in the United States and eight other countries See Note .of Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements in Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for further discussion on our lease

commitments

In addition we have signed obligations for activities after December 31 2009 such as the global user forum

and partner conferences which are included in our purchase obligations Finally other obligations include

amounts regarding our tax liabilities and uncertain tax positions related to FASB ASC 740 See Note 10 of Notes

to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for further discussion on our

uncertain tax positions

In addition to the amounts set forth in the table above we have contractual obligations with certain third-

party technology companies to pay royalties to them based upon future licensing of their products and patented

technologies We also have purchase obligation with third party in which the known payments due are

currently classified above in the one to three
year category However after three

years
the payments due will be

based on percentage of our revenues and are therefore unknown We caimot estimate what these future

amounts will be however we expect them to increase as our revenues continue to grow

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Except as set forth above in the Contractual Obligations table we have no off-balance sheet arrangements

that have or are reasonably likely to have current or future impact on our financial condition changes in

financial condition revenues or expenses results of operations liquidity capital expenditures or capital

resources as of December 31 2009

We provide indenmifications of varying scope and amount to certain customers against claims of

intellectual property infringement made by third parties arising from the use of our products Our direct software

license agreements in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 460 Guarantees include certain provisions for

indemnifying customers in material compliance with their license agreement against liabilities if our software

products infringe upon third partys intellectual property rights over the life of the agreement There is no

maximum potential amount of future payments set under the guarantee However we may at any time and at our

option and expense procure
the right of the customer to continue to use our software that may infringe third

partys rights iimodify our software so as to avoid infringement or iiirequire the customer to return our

software and refund the customer the fee actually paid by the customer for our software less depreciation based

on five-year straight-line depreciation schedule The customers failure to provide timely notice or reasonable

assistance will relieve us of our obligations under this indemnification to the extent that we have been actually

and materially prejudiced by such failure To date we have not incurred nor do we expect to incur any material

related costs and therefore have not reserved for such liabilities
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Our software license agreements also include warranty that our software products will substantially

conform to our software user documentation for period of one year provided the customer is in material

compliance with the software license agreement To date we have not incurred any material costs associated

with these product warranties and as such we have not reserved for any such warranty liabilities in our operating

results

ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We develop software application products in the United States and license our products worldwide As

result our financial results could be affected by market risks including changes in foreign currency exchange

rates interest rates or weak economic conditions in certain markets Market risk is the potential of loss arising

from unfavorable changes in market rates and prices

Foreign Currency Exchange Rates

We transact business in certain foreign currencies including the British pound and the Euro However as

majority of the orders we receive are denominated in United States dollars strengthening of the dollar could

make our products more expensive and less competitive in foreign markets We have not historically used

foreign currency options or forward contracts to hedge our currency exposures because of variability in the

timing of cash flows associated with our larger contracts We did not have any such hedge instruments in place at

December 31 2009 Rather we attempt to mitigate our foreign currency risk by generally transacting business

and paying salaries in the functional currency of each of the major countries in which we do business thus

creating natural hedges Additionally as our business matures in foreign markets we may offer our products and

services in certain other local currencies If this were to occur foreign currency fluctuations would have greater

impact on us and may have an adverse effect on our results of operations Historically our gains or losses on

foreign currency exchange transactions have been immaterial to our consolidated financial statements For the

year ended December 31 2009 approximately 18% of our revenues and 13% of our expenses were denominated

in foreign currency resulting in gain of $298000 from foreign currency exchange transactions

As of December 31 2009 and December 31 2008 we had accounts with Euro balances of approximately

$14.6 million and $1.1 million respectively British pound balances of $289000 and $450000 respectively and

balances of seven other foreign currencies totaling $371000 and $161000 respectively For 2010 we plan to

hold minimal Euro and British pound balances in order to mitigate foreign currency risk

Interest Rate Risk

We invest cash balances in excess of operating requirements in securities that have maturities of one year or

less The carrying value of these securities approximates market value and there is no long-term interest rate risk

associated with these investments
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ITEM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

Interactive Intelligence Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Interactive Intelligence Inc the Company
and subsidiaries as of December 31 2009 and 2008 and the related consolidated statements of income

shareholders equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31 2009 In

connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements we have also audited the consolidated

financial statement Schedule TIValuation and Qualifying Accounts We also have audited the Companys
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2009 based on criteria established in Internal

ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway

Commission COSO The Companys management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements

and financial statement schedule for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its

assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion

on these consolidated financial statements and consolidated financial statement schedule and an opinion on the

Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over

financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audits of the consolidated fmancial statements

included examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management and evaluating the

overall financial statement presentation Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining

an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists

and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk

Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We
believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinions

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting

includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made

only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide reasonable

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the

companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the

financial position of Interactive Intelligence Inc and subsidiaries as of December 31 2009 and 2008 and the

results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31
2009 in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles Also in our opinion the related

consolidated financial statement Schedule TIValuation and Qualifying Accounts when considered in relation
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to the consolidated financial statements taken as whole presents fairly in all material respects the information

set forth therein Also in our opinion Interactive Intelligence Inc maintained in all material respects effective

internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2009 based on criteria established in Internal

ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway

Commission

As discussed in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements effective January 2007 the Company

changed the manner in which it accounts for uncertain tax positions

Is KPMG LLP

Indianapolis Indiana

March 16 2010
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Interactive Intelligence Inc

Consolidated Balance Sheets

As of December 31 2009 and 2008

in thousands except share and per share amounts

December 31

2009 2008

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 48497 34705

Short-tenn investments 16482 10805

Accounts receivable net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $1094 in 2009 and

$1004 in 2008 32092 27533

Deferred tax assets net 5808 6017

Prepaid expenses 5976 5507

Other current assets 3935 1995

Total current assets 112790 86562

Property and equipment net 8499 10762

Deferred tax assets net 6505 5136

Other assets net 4874 2723

Total assets $132668 $105183

Liabilities and Shareholders Equity

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 11903 11361

Accrued compensation and related expenses 4946 3486

Deferred product revenues 5567 4754

Deferred services revenues 36225 31457

Total current liabilities 58641 51058
Deferred revenue 6420 6878

Total liabilities 65061 57936

Commitments and contingencies

Shareholders equity

Preferred stock no par value 10000000 shares authorized no shares issued and

outstanding

Common stock $0.01 par value 100000000 shares authorized 17276990 issued

and outstanding at December 31 2009 16928089 issued and outstanding at

December 31 2008 173 169

Treasury stock at cost 815875 shares as of December 31 2009 1164776 shares

as of December 31 2008 6242 9714
Additional paid-in capital 92815 83604

Accumulated deficit 19139 26812

Total shareholders equity 67607 47247

Total liabilities and shareholders equity $132668 $105183

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Interactive Intelligence Inc

Consolidated Statements of Income

For the Years Ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

in thousands except per share amounts

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Revenues

Product 63099 60256 57673

Services 68319 61150 52228

Total revenues 131418 121406 109901

Cost of revenues

Product 17452 15446 14159

Services 22402 23692 21094

Total cost of revenues 39854 39138 35253

Gross profit 91564 82268 74648

Operating expenses

Sales and marketing 39141 39307 36331

Research and development 24103 21539 17040

General and administrative 13879 14474 13171

Total operating expenses 77123 75320 66542

Operating income 14441 6948 8106

Other income expense
Interest income net 281 1288 1721

Other income expense net 298 434 208

Total other income net 579 854 1513

Income before income taxes 15020 7802 9619

Income tax expense benefit 6380 3464 7837

Net income 8640 4338 17456

Net income per share

Basic 0.51 0.24 1.00

Diluted 0.47 0.23 0.91

Shares used to compute net income per share

Basic 17096 17746 17481

Diluted 18268 18740 19251

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Interactive Intelligence Inc

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity

For the Years Ended December 312009 2008 and 2007

in thousands

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Treasury
Stock

Accumulated

Deficit

$48421

Common Stock
Additional

Shares Amount Capital Total

Balances January 2007 17139 $171 $72528 24278

Stock-based compensation 3126 3126
Exercise of stock options 750 3536 3544

Issuances of common stock 12 215 215

Comprehensive income

Net income 17456 17456

Total comprehensive income 17456 17456

Balances December 31 2007 17901 179 79405 30965 48619

Stock-based compensation 2966 2966

Exercise of stock options 207 776 286 185 879

Issuances of common stock 24 284 284

Tax benefits from stock-based payment

arrangements 177 177

Purchase of treasury stock 1204 12 10000 10012

Comprehensive income

Net income 4338 4338

Net unrealized investment loss

Total comprehensive income 4338 4334

Balances December 31 2008 16928 169 83604 9714 26812 47247

Stock-based compensation 3322 3322

Exercise of stock options 321 3129 967 2163

Issuances of common stock 28 91 343 252

Tax benefits from stock-based payment

arrangements 5970 5970

Comprehensive income

Net income 8640 8640

Net unrealized investment gain 13 13

Total comprehensive income 13 8640 8653

Balances December 31 2009 17277 $173 $92815 6242 $19139 67607
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Interactive Intelligence Inc

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

in thousands

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Operating activities

Net income 8640 4338 17456

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating

activities

Depreciation 4171 3659 2659
Stock-based compensation expense 3322 2966 3126
Tax benefits from stock-based payment arrangements 5970 177
Deferred income tax 1114 2200 8353
Accretion of investment income 149 109 447
Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable 4497 6157
Prepaid expenses 439 725
Other current assets 1939 581 404

Other assets 225 339 82
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 6534 1885 1709
Accrued compensation and related expenses 1460 895 556

Deferred product revenues 918 1788 933

Deferred services revenues 3921 4033 9075

Net cash provided by operating activities 15083 15180 20154

Investing activities

Sales of available-for-sale investments 14300 24150 21615
Purchases of available-for-sale investments 19815 17890 24670
Purchases of property and equipment 1912 7430 4086
Acquisition of intangible and other assets net of cash and cash

equivalents acquired 2249 1033
Unrealized gain on investment 89

Net cash used in investing activities 9676 1162 8085

Financing activities

Proceeds from stock options exercised 2163 879 3544
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 252 284 215

Repurchase of treasury stock 10012
Tax benefits from stock-based payment arrangements 5970 177

Net cash provided by used in financing activities 8385 8672 3759

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 13792 5346 15828

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year 34705 29359 13531

Cash and cash equivalents end of year 48497 34705 29359

Cash paid during the year for

Interest

Income taxes 743 431 154

Other non-cash item

Purchase of property and equipment payable at end of year 29 59

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Interactive Intelligence Inc

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

THE COMPANY

Interactive Intelligence Inc the Company is leading provider of software application suites for Voice

over Internet Protocol VoIP business communications and is increasingly leveraging its leadership position in

the worldwide contact center market to offer its solutions to enterprises Businesses and organizations including

those that employ remote and mobile workers utilize the Companys solutions in industries including but not

limited to teleservices financial services banks credit unions accounts receivable management insurance

higher education healthcare retail technology government and business services The Companys innovative

software products and services are designed for

Multichannel contact management and business communications voice and messaging using the

Session Initiation Protocol SIP global communications standard that supports VoIP

Business process automation BPA using communications-based approach and

Content management including document as well as workflow management

With the Companys single software platform organizations can replace various traditional multipoint

communications products The Companys solutions incorporate full-featured media server media gateways

SIP proxy and SIP station voice device for Internet Protocol IP-based communications networks and

infrastructures Customers can deploy the Companys solutions on-premises or in Communications as Service

CaaS model using hosted data center

The Companys solutions integrate with business systems and end-user devices enhance the mobility of

todays remote workforce scale to thousands of users manage content in large volumes provide

communications and data security and satisfy range of business communications and interaction management

needs for

The Contact Center

Enterprise IP Telephony

Business Process Automation

By implementing the Companys all-in-one solutions businesses are able to unify multichannel

communications media phone fax e-mail web chat content and information automate business processes

enhance workforce performance and productivity improve customer service processes and readily adapt to

changing market and customer requirements Contact centers can leverage the Companys platform to support

thousands of agents including remote Work-at-Home agents and handle inbound outbound and blended

inbound/outbound interactions at one location or throughout multi-site contact center operations The

Companys enterprise IP telephony solutions provide call control and messaging for mid- and large-sized

business enterprises with 100 to several hundred thousand users with the ability to scale user counts up or down

as needed Enterprises contact centers and other organizations can utilize the Companys BPA solutions to

automate processes using an approach that incorporates communications functionality such as routing quality

monitoring and the ability to indicate employee availability

The Company commenced principal operations in 1994 and revenues were first recognized in 1997 Since

then the Company has established wholly-owned subsidiaries in nine other countries The Companys world

headquarters are located in Indianapolis Indiana with regional offices throughout the United States and eight

other countries The Company markets its software applications in the Americas Europe the Middle East and

Africa EMEA and Asia/Pacific APAC
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Interactive Intelligence Inc

Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsContinued
December 31 20092008 and 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-

owned subsidiaries after elimination of all significant intercompany accounts and transactions

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts

reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes On an on-going basis management

reevaluates these estimates including those related to revenue recognition allowance for doubtful accounts

stock-based compensation other assets and accounting for income taxes Despite managements best effort to

establish good faith estimates and assumptions actual results could differ from these estimates

Revenue Recognition

The Company generates product revenues from licensing the right to use its software applications and in

certain instances selling hardware as component of its solution and generates services revenues primarily from

annual support fees annual renewal fees professional services and educational services These revenues are

generated by direct sales with customers and by indirect sales through partner channel

Product Revenues

The Companys license agreements are either perpetual or annually renewable For any revenues to be

recognized from license agreement the following criteria must be met

Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists

The fee is fixed or determinable

Collection is probable and

Delivery has occurred

For perpetual license agreement upon meeting the revenue recognition criteria above the Company
immediately recognizes as product revenues the residual amount of the total fees if sufficient vendor specific

objective evidence of fair value VSOE exists to support allocating portion of the total fee to the undelivered

elements of the arrangement If sufficient VSOE of fair value for the undelivered elements does not exist the

Company recognizes the initial license fee as product revenues ratably over the initial term of the support agreement

once support is the only undelivered element The support period is generally 12 months but may be up to

18 months for initial orders because
support begins when the licenses are downloaded when support commences or

no more than six months following the contract date The Company determines VSOE of fair value for support in

perpetual agreements based on substantive renewal rates the customer must pay to renew the support The VSOE of

fair value for other services is based on amounts charged when the services are sold in stand-alone sales

Although the majority of the Companys product licenses are perpetual certain customers whose original

license contracts were signed prior to 2004 have renewable term licenses For an annually renewable license

agreement upon meeting the revenue recognition criteria above the Company recognizes majority of the

license fees under these agreements as product revenues ratably over the initial license period which is generally

12 months and the remainder of the license fees are recognized as services revenues over the same time period
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Interactive Intelligence Inc

Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsContinued

December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

The Company recognizes revenues related to any hardware sales when the hardware is delivered and all

other revenue recognition criteria are met

Services Revenues

Services revenues are primarily renewal fees and support related to annually renewable license agreements

and support fees for perpetual license agreements For annually renewable license agreements the allocation of

the initial order between product revenues and services revenues is based on an average renewal rate for the

Companys time based contracts The Company applies the allocation of product revenues and services revenues

consistently to all annually renewable license agreements Under annually renewable license agreements after

the initial license period the Companys customers may renew their license agreement for an additional period

typically 12 months by paying renewal fee The revenue from annual renewal fees is classified under services

revenue and the revenue is recognized ratably over the contract period Under perpetual license agreements the

Company recognizes annual support fees as services revenues ratably over the post-contract support period

which is typically 12 months but may extend up to three years if prepaid

The Company also generates revenues from other services that it provides to its customers and partners

These additional revenues include fees for professional services educational services and CaaS Revenues from

professional services which include implementing the Companys products for customer or partner

educational services which consist of training courses for customers and partners and CaaS which allows

customers to deploy the Companys solutions using hosted data center are recognized as the related services

are performed

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts Receivable

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount The allowance for doubtful accounts is the

Companys best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in the Companys existing accounts receivable

The Company evaluates bad debt
expense

based on percentage of revenue reported and other measures each

period The Company then reviews the allowance for doubtful accounts each reporting period based on detailed

analysis of its accounts receivable In the analysis the Company primarily considers the
age

of the customers or

partners receivable and also considers the creditworthiness of the customer or partner the economic conditions

of the customers or partners industry and general economic conditions among other factors If any of these

factors change the Company may also change its original estimates which could impact the level of its future

allowance for doubtful accounts

If payment is not made timely the Company will contact the customer or partner to try to obtain the

payment If this is not successful the Company will institute other collection practices such as generating

collection letters involving sales personnel and ultimately terminating the customers or partners access to

future upgrades licenses and tecimical support Once all collection efforts are exhausted the receivable is written

off against the allowance for doubtful accounts

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with maturity of three months or less from date of

purchase to be cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of cash on deposit with financial

institutions and high quality money market instruments
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Interactive Intelligence Inc

Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsContinued

December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Investments

The Companys investments which consist primarily of taxable corporate and government debt securities

are classified as available-for-sale Such investments are recorded at fair value and unrealized gains and losses

are excluded from earnings and recorded as separate component of equity until realized Premiums or discounts

are amortized or accreted over the life of the related security as an adjustment to yield using the effective interest

method Realized gains and losses from the sale of available-for-sale securities are determined on specific

identification basis decline in the market value of securities below cost judged to be other than temporary

results in reduction in the carrying amount to fair value The impairment is charged to earnings and new cost

basis for the security is established Interest and dividends on all securities are included in interest income when

earned

Financial Instruments

The fair value of financial instruments including cash and cash equivalents short-term investments and

accounts receivable approximate their carrying values

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the

estimated useful lives of the assets Leasehold improvements are amortized using the straight-line method over

the lesser of the term of the related lease or the estimated useful life The Company leases its office space under

operating lease agreements In accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards Board the FASB
Accounting Standards Codification ASC Topic 840 Leases FASB ASC 840 for operating leases with

escalating rent payments the Company records these rent payments on straight-line basis over the life of the

lease

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 360 Property Plant and Equipment certain of the Companys assets

such as property and equipment and intangibles subject to amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever

events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable

Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to

estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset If the carrying amount of an

asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows an impairment charge is recognized for the amount by which the

carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The Company reviews its goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives for impairment at least

annually in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 350 IntangiblesGoodwill and Other FASB ASC 350
Identifiable intangible assets such as intellectual property trademarks and patents are amortized over 10 to 15

year period using the straight-line method In addition other intangible assets such as customer relationships and

core technology are amortized over five to six year period based upon historical patterns in which the

economic benefits are expected to be realized The Company has one reporting segment and therefore its

impairment review of goodwill involves reviewing the impairment of the Company as whole Because of this

the Company believes the risk of impairment to its goodwill is minimal This guidance requires the Company to

perform the goodwill impairment test annually or when change in facts and circumstances indicates that the fair

value of an asset may be below its carrying amount The Company performed its annual goodwill impairment

68



Interactive Intelligence Inc

Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsContinued

December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

test as of September 30 2009 and determined no indication of impairment existed As there were no changes in

facts and circumstances that indicated that the fair value of the reporting unit may have been below its carrying

amount since September 30 2009 no additional impairment test was performed during the fourth quarter of

2009

Advertising

The Company expenses all advertising costs as incurred Advertising expense for 2009 2008 and 2007 was

$788000 $1258000 and $733000 respectively

Research and Development

Research and development expenditures are generally expensed as incurred FASB ASC Topic 985

Software requires capitalization of certain software development costs subsequent to the establishment of

technological feasibility Based on the Companys product development process technological feasibility is

established upon completion of working model Costs incurred by the Company between completion of the

working model and the point at which the product is ready for general release have been insignificant Through

December 31 2009 all research and development costs have been expensed Research and development expense

for 2009 2008 and 2007 was $24.1 million $21.5 million and $17.0 million respectively

Stock-Based Compensation

Consistent with FASB ASC Topic 718 CompensationStock Compensation FASB ASC 718 the

Company continues to use the Black-Scholes option-pricing model as its method of valuation for share-based

payment awards The Companys determination of fair value of share-based payment awards on the date of grant

using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model is affected by the Companys stock price as well as assumptions

regarding number of highly complex and subjective variables These variables include but are not limited to

the Companys expected stock price volatility over the term of the awards and an expected risk-free rate of

return If factors change and the Company uses different assumptions for estimating stock-based compensation

expense associated with awards granted in future periods stock-based compensation expense may differ

materially in the future from that recorded in the current period

The Company records compensation expense
for share-based awards using the straight-line method which

is recorded into earnings over the vesting period of the award Stock-based compensation expense for employee

and director stock options recognized under FASB ASC 718 for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and

2007 was $3.3 million $3.0 million and $3.1 million respectively See Note for further information on the

Companys stock-based compensation

Fair Value Measurements

FASB ASC Topic 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures FASBASC 820 as amended defines

fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer liability an exit price in

the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market

participants on the measurement date FASB ASC 820 also establishes fair value hierarchy which requires an

entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring

fair value The standard describes the following three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value

Level Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for

identical unrestricted assets or liabilities
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Interactive Intelligence Inc

Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsContinned
December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Level Observable inputs other than Level prices such as quoted prices for similar assets or

liabilities quoted prices in markets that are not active or other inputs that are observable or can be

corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities

Level Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant

to the fair value of the assets or liabilities

The Companys assets that are measured at fair value on recurring basis are generally classified within

Level or Level of the fair value hierarchy The types of instruments valued based on quoted market prices in

active markets include mostly money market securities and equity investments Such instruments are generally

classified within Level of the fair value hierarchy The Company invests in money market funds that are traded

daily and does not adjust the quoted price for such instruments The types of instruments valued based on quoted

prices in less active markets broker or dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources with reasonable levels of

price transparency include corporate notes commercial paper and certificates of deposits Such instruments are

generally classified within Level of the fair value hierarchy The Company uses consensus pricing which is

based on multiple pricing sources to value its fixed income investments

The following table sets forth summary of the Companys financial assets classified as cash and cash

equivalents and short-term investments on its consolidated balance sheet measured at fair value on recurring

basis as of December 31 2009 in thousands

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using

Quoted
Prices in

Active Significant

Markets for Other Significant

Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs

Description Total Level Level Level

Cash cash equivalents

Money Market Funds $24440 $24440

Short-term investments

Agency Bond 2417 2417
Commercial Paper 4245 4245

Corporate Notes 6033 6033
T-Bill 3787 3787

Total $16482 $16482

Income and Sales Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method Deferred tax assets and liabilities are

recognized for the future tax consequences atthbutable to differences between the financial statement carrying

amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit

carryforwards Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to

taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled The

effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that

includes the enactment date
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Interactive Intelligence Inc

Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsContinued

December 31 20092008 and 2007

FASB ASC Topic 740 Income Taxes FASB ASC 740 establishes financial accounting and reporting

standards for the effect of income taxes The Company is subject to income taxes in both the United States and

numerous foreign jurisdictions Significant judgment is required in evaluating the Companys tax positions and

determining its provision for income taxes The objectives of accounting for income taxes are to recognize the

amount of taxes payable or refundable for the current year and deferred tax liabilities and assets for the future tax

consequences of events that have been recognized in an entitys financial statements or tax returns Variations in

the actual outcome of these future tax consequences could materially impact the Companys financial position

results of operations or cash flows

In assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets management considers whether it is more likely than

not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized The ultimate realization of deferred tax

assets is dependent upon generation of future taxable income prior to the period in which temporary differences

such as loss carryforwards and tax credits expire Management considers projected future taxable income and tax

planning strategies in making this assessment

As of December 31 2009 the Company had $11.5 million of tax net operating loss carryforwards which

have not been recognized or recorded The Company also had $6.1 million in tax credit carryforwards recorded

as deferred tax assets During the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 the Company recorded tax expense

of $6.4 million and $3.5 million respectively and during the year ended December 31 2007 the Company
recorded tax benefit of $7.8 million There was no valuation allowance at December 31 2009 The Company
will continue to evaluate the valuation of deferred tax assets in accordance with the requirements of FASB

ASC 740 See Note 10 for further information on the Companys income taxes

Sales tax amounts collected from customers is recorded on net basis

Net Income per Share

Basic net income
per share is calculated based on the weighted-average number of common shares

outstanding in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 260 Earnings per Share Diluted net income per share is

calculated based on the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding plus the effect of dilutive

potential common shares When the Company reports net income the calculation of diluted net income
per

share

excludes shares underlying stock options outstanding that would be anti-dilutive Potential common shares are

composed of shares of conm-ion stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options The following table sets forth

the calculation of basic and diluted net income
per

share in thousands except per
share amounts

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Net income as reported 8640 4338 $17456

Weighted-average outstanding shares of common stock 17096 17746 17481

Dilutive effect of stock options 1172 994 1770

Common stock and common stock equivalents 18268 18740 19251

Net income per share

Basic A/B 0.51 0.24 1.00

Diluted AIC 0.47 0.23 0.91

Anti-dilutive shares not included in the diluted
per share calculation for 2009 2008 and 2007 were

1.1 million 1.3 million and 616000 respectively
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Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income is comprised of net income and other comprehensive income loss The only item

of other comprehensive income loss that the Company currently reports is unrealized gains losses on

marketable securities

Legal Proceedings

Liabilities for loss contingencies arising from claims assessments litigation fines and penalties and other

sources are recorded when it is probable that liability has been incurred and the amount of the assessment and

or remediation can be reasonably estimated Legal costs incurred in connection with loss contingencies are

expensed as incurred

Reclassfications and Adjustments

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year amounts to conform to the current period

presentation

During the second quarter of 2009 the Company identified an error in the amount of accrued property plant

and equipment included within cash flows from operating activities on the consolidated statement of cash flows

for the year ended December 31 2008 in its 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K In the consolidated statement of

cash flows for the year ended December 31 2008 presented above $594000 has been reclassified from cash

flows from operating activities to cash flows from investing activities This reclassification did not have an

impact on the overall results previously reported

Effective April 2009 the Company began presenting gains and losses resulting from foreign currency

fluctuations within other income net Previously the Company included portion of these gains and losses

within operating expense The Company changed its presentation as such gains and losses arising from the

adjustment of foreign currency fluctuations are incidental to its operations The Company reclassified $193000

of foreign currency losses for the year ended December 31 2008 and $112000 of foreign currency
losses for the

year ended December 31 2007 from operating expense to other income net on the accompanying consolidated

statements of income This reclassification did not have any impact on the overall results previously reported

Effective July 2009 the Company began presenting changes in the issuances of common stock on the

accompanying consolidated statement of shareholders equity under treasury stock and accumulated deficit

Previously the Company had included these changes under additional paid-in capital These changes resulted

from purchases of the Companys stock by its employees under the Employee Stock Purchase Program The

purchased shares will be issued from treasury stock similar to exercises of stock options until the treasury stock

is depleted The Company reclassified $87000 from additional paid-in capital to treasury stock related to 2008

The reclassification did not have any impact on the overall results previously reported

INVESTMENTS

The Companys short-term investments all mature in less than one year and are considered available for

sale In 2009 and 2008 the Company purchased short-term investments for $19.8 million and $17.9 million

respectively As of December 31 2009 and 2008 $16.5 million and $10.8 million in short-term investments were

outstanding respectively which were recorded at their fair values The Company does not invest in subprime

assets
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Gross realized gains and gross realized losses included in interest income net totaled less than $10000 in

each of 2009 2008 and 2007

Interest income was $281000 $1.3 million and $1.7 million in 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment are summarized as follows as of December 31 2009 and 2008 in thousands

2009 2008

Computer equipment 11656 $13313

Leasehold improvements 7904 8173

Furniture and fixtures 4014 4000

Software 836 1404
Office equipment 759 740

Trade show equipment and other 420 451

Total property and equipment 25589 28081

Less accumulated depreciation 17090 17319

Net property and equipment 8499 $10762

Property and equipment is depreciated over useful lives of to years except for leasehold improvements

which are depreciated over the lesser of the term of the related lease or the estimated useful life and vary from

to 15 years During the year ended December 31 2009 the Company reduced assets and accumulated

depreciation by $4.4 million for fully depreciated computer and software equipment that was seven years old or

older and was no longer in use

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Stock Option Plans

The Companys Stock Option Plans adopted in 1995 1999 and 2006 authorize the Board of Directors or

the Compensation Committee as applicable to grant incentive and nonqualified stock options and in the case of

the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan as amended the 2006 Plan stock appreciation rights restricted stock

restricted stock units performance shares performance units and other stock-based awards After adoption of the

2006 Plan by the Companys shareholders in May 2006 the Company may no longer make any grants under

previous plans but any shares subject to awards under the 1999 Stock Option and Incentive Plan and the Outside

Directors Stock Option Plan collectively the 1999 Plans that are cancelled are added to shares available

under the 2006 Plan maximum of 5850933 shares are available for delivery under the 2006 Plan which

consists of 2150000 shares plus ii 320000 shares available for issuance under the 1999 Plans but not

underlying any outstanding stock options or other awards under the 1999 Plans plus iiiup to 3380933 shares

subject to outstanding stock options or other awards under the 1999 Plans that expire are forfeited or otherwise

terminate unexercised on or after May 18 2006 The number of shares available under the 2006 Plan is subject to

adjustment for certain changes in the Companys capital structure The exercise price of options granted under

the 2006 Plan is equal to the closing price of the Companys common stock as reported by The NASDAQ
Global Market on the business day immediately preceding the date of grant During the first quarter of 2010 the

Companys Board of Directors approved an increase of 1200000 shares available for grant under the 2006 Plan

which increase is subject to shareholder approval at the Companys Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held

on May 20 2010
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Stock options granted by the Company are categorized into three types The first type of stock options

granted by the Company to employees and newly-elected non-employee directors is non-performance-based

stock options that are subject only to time-based vesting These stock options vest in four equal annual

installments beginning one year after the grant date The fair value of these option grants is determined on the

date of grant and the related compensation expense is recognized for the entire award on straight-line basis over

the vesting period

The second type is performance-based stock options that are subject to cancellation if the specified

performance targets are not met If the applicable performance targets have been achieved the options will vest

in four equal annual installments beginning one year after the performance-related period has ended The fair

value of these stock option grants is determined on the date of grant and the related compensation expense is

recognized over the requisite service period including the initial period for which the specified performance

targets must be met

Commencing in May 2009 the Company began granting its non-employee directors options annually that

are similar to the non-performance-based options described above except the director options vest one year after

the grant date The fair value of these option grants is determined on the date of the grant and the related

compensation expense is recognized over one year Prior to May 2009 non-employee directors received

non-performance-based stock options that vested over four
years

The plans may be terminated by the Companys Board of Directors at any time

Valuation Assumptions

The Company estimated the fair value of stock options using the Black-Scholes valuation model The fair

value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant and is amortized on straight-line basis over the

vesting period The weighted-average estimated per option value of non-performance-based performance-based

and director options under the stock option plans during the year ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 was

$4.16 $7.29 and $9.56 respectively using the following assumptions

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Valuation assumptions for non-performance-based options

Dividend yield

Expected volatility 67.88-69.56% 63 .21-66.87% 61.18-63.82%

Risk-free interest rate 1.64-2.36% 1.36-3.34% 3.37-5.02%

Expected life of option in years 4.25 years 4.25 years 4.25 years

Prior to May 2009 directors were granted options that vested over four years The fair value of these

options was estimated using the non-performance-based option valuation assumptions set forth above

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Valuation assumptions for performance-based options

Dividend yield

Expected volatility 67.35% 63.66% 67.27%

Risk-free interest rate 1.77% 2.39% 4.48%

Expected life of option in years 4.75 years 4.75 years 4.75 years
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The Company granted performance-based options only during the first quarter of each of 2009 2008 and

2007

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Valuation assumptions for director options

Dividend yield N/A N/A

Expected volatility 71.48% N/A N/A

Risk-free interest rate 2.01% N/A N/A

Expected life of option in years 3.50 N/A N/A

The Company granted annual director options that vest one year after the grant date only during the second

quarter of 2009

Expected Dividend The Black-Scholes valuation model calls for single expected dividend yield as an

input The Company has never declared or paid cash dividends on its common stock and does not expect to

declare or pay any cash dividends in the foreseeable future

Expected Volatility The Companys volatility factor was based exclusively on its historical stock prices

over the most recent period commensurate with the estimated expected life of the stock options

Risk-Free Rate The Company bases the risk-free interest rate on the implied yield currently available on

U.S Treasury zero-coupon issues with an equivalent remaining term commensurate with the estimated expected

life of the stock options

Expected Term The Companys expected term represents the period that the Companys stock options are

expected to be outstanding and was determined using the simplified method as described in FASB ASC 718 The

Company chose to use the simplified method given the lack of historical data at the current expiration term of six

years and the non-employee director options that fully vest in one year FASB ASC 718 permits the continued

use of this option after December 31 2007 if the Company does not believe it has sufficient historical data to

support another method As the Company chose to continue using the simplified method the expected term has

remained the same as it was prior to December 31 2007

Estimated Pre-vesting Forfeitures Beginning January 2006 the Company included an estimate for

forfeitures in calculating stock option expense When estimating forfeitures the Company considers historical

termination behavior as well as any future trends it expects

For most options granted through December 31 2004 the term of each option is ten years from the date of

grant In 2005 the Company began issuing options with term of six years
from the date of grant

If an incentive stock option is granted to an employee who at the time the option is granted owns stock

representing more than 10% percent of the voting power of all classes of stock of the Company the exercise

price of the option may not be less than 110% of the market value per share on the date the option is granted and

the term of the option shall be not more than five years from the date of grant
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Expense Information under FASB ASC 718

The following table summarizes the allocation of stock-based compensation expense related to stock options

under FASB ASC 718 for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 in thousands except per share

amounts

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Stock-based compensation expense by category

Cost of services 239 203 247

Sales and marketing 1128 1094 1305

Research and development 952 833 565

General and administrative 1003 836 1009

Total stock-based compensation expense $3322 $2966 $3126

Effect of stock-based compensation expense on net income per share

Basic 0.19 0.17 0.18
Diluted 0.18 0.16 0.16

During the fourth quarter of 2009 the Company detennined that the performance targets for certain

performance-based awards granted at the beginning of 2009 would not be met Therefore during the fourth

quarter of 2009 the Company reversed stock option expense recorded in previous periods totaling $22000

related to these options

During the third quarter of 2008 the Company determined that it was improbable that the performance

targets for certain performance-based awards granted at the beginning of 2008 would be met Therefore during

the third quarter of 2008 the Company stopped accruing stock option expense and reversed stock option expense

recorded in previous periods totaling $432000 During the fourth quarter of 2008 $64000 of stock-based

compensation expense recorded for additional performance-based options was reversed

During the year ended December 31 2009 the Company granted stock options for 571375 shares of

common stock After taking into account the 47000 options that were cancelled during 2009 the estimated total

grant-date fair value was approximately $2.2 million not accounting for estimated forfeitures as of

December 31 2009 This compared to 599315 shares of common stock granted during 2008 and 252000 options

that were cancelled with an estimated total grant-date fair value as of December 31 2008 of approximately $2.5

million not accounting for estimated forfeitures During the year ended December 31 2007 the Company

granted stock options for 655550 shares of common stock and cancelled 28000 options with an estimated total

grant-date fair value of approximately $6.1 million not accounting for estimated forfeitures at December 31

2007 As required by FASB ASC 718 management has made an estimate of expected forfeitures and is

recognizing compensation expense only for those stock awards expected to vest The Company estimated that the

total stock-based compensation expense for the awards not expected to vest was $103000 with such amounts

deducted to arrive at the fair value of $2.1 million for the
year

ended December 31 2009
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Weighted-

Average
Exercise

Options Price

3300565 9.45

571375 7.81

320993 6.73

The following table sets forth summary of option activity for the years ended December 31 2009 2008

and 2007

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Balances beginning of
year

Options granted

Options exercised

Options cancelled forfeited or

Weighted-

Average
Exercise

Price

8.71

14.12

4.23

13.12

9.46

Options

3232483

599315

206958

324275

3300565

$2.51 $50.50

Weighted-

Average
Exercise

Price

6.12

17.64

4.72

6.47

8.71

Options

3422741

665550

748856

106952

3232483

$2.51 $50.50

expired 125204 14.01

Options outstanding end of year 3425743 9.36

Option price range at end of year $2.51 $50.50

Weighted-average fair value of

options granted during the

year 4.16

Options exercisable at end of

year 2187357 8.07

Options available for grant at end of

7.29 956

2086610 7.30 1774957 6.63

1388969 771409
year 915794

The change in options available for grant at the end of year from 2008 compared to 2007 was related to the

Companys shareholders approving an amendment to the 2006 Plan in May 2008 which increased the number of

shares available for grant by 900000 shares

The following table sets forth information regarding the Companys stock options outstanding and

exercisable at December 31 2009

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Range of Exercise Prices

$2.51$4.27

$4.29$5.17

$5.19$5.84

$5.85 $6.10

$6.22 $6.66

$6.70$13.50

$13.75$14.79

$14.86$20.50

$21.75 $50.50

Total shares/average price

Weighted-

Average
Remaining

Contractual

Life

3.26 years

2.05
years

4.18
years

2.15
years

5.05
years

3.10 years

3.57 years

3.60 years

1.46 years

Number Outstanding

401615

524135

452744

243956

432750

381020

406150

504617

78756

3425743

Weighted-

Average
Exercise

Price

339

4.91

5.69

6.00

6.66

10.01

14.41

18.52

27.97

9.36

Number
Exercisable

401615

443385

452744

243956

4250

222914

147400

201333

69760

2187357

Weighted-

Average
Exercise

Price

3.39

4.87

5.69

6.00

6.25

959

14.48

18.82

28.71

8.07
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The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the
year

ended December 31 2009 was $3.0 million

The aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding as of December 31 2009 was $32.3 million and the

aggregate inthnsic value of options currently exercisable as of December 31 2009 was $23.6 million The

aggregate intrinsic value represents the total intrinsic value based on the Companys closing stock price per

share of $18.45 as of December 31 2009 which would have been realized by the option holders had all option

holders exercised their options as of that date The total number of in-the-money options exercisable as of

December 31 2009 was 2.0 million with weighted average
exercise price of $6.58

As of December 31 2009 there was $3.3 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to

non-vested stock options These costs are expected to be recognized over the weighted average remaining vesting

period of 2.0
years

2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In May 2000 the Company adopted the 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan the 2000 Purchase Plan
total of 500000 shares of common stock were reserved for issuance under the 2000 Purchase Plan On May 19

2005 the shareholders of the Company approved an amendment to the 2000 Purchase Plan that increased the

number of shares of common stock available for purchase and issuance to 750000 The 2000 Purchase Plan permits

eligible employees to acquire shares of the Companys common stock through periodic payroll deductions of up to

20% of their total compensation up to maximum of $1000 per pay period The price at which the Companys
common stock may be purchased is 95% of the fair market value of the Companys closing common stock price as

reported on The NASDAQ Global Market on the last business day of the quarter The actual purchase date is

generally on the first business day of the next calendar quarter An employee may set aside up to $25000 to

purchase shares annually The initial offering period commenced on April 2000 total of 27261 shares 24501

shares and 12027 shares were purchased and issued during 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively under the 2000

Purchase Plan at an average price of $11.13 $12.90 and $18.33 respectively As of December 31 2009 there were

170416 shares available for purchase and issuance under the 2000 Purchase Plan

The 2000 Purchase Plan was modified as of January 2006 to ensure that it was considered

non-compensatory under FASB ASC 718 As result the Company has not recognized any stock-based

compensation expense related to its 2000 Purchase Plan

SHARE REPURCHASE PROGRAM

On July 28 2008 the Companys Board of Directors approved share repurchase program to facilitate the

repurchase of its common stock over the course of one year Under this program the Company was authorized to

purchase shares of its common stock up to maximum aggregate purchase price of $10.0 million Repurchases

could be made from time to time in the open market and in privately negotiated transactions based on business

and market conditions under plans designed to comply with Rule lObS-i and Rule lOb-18 under the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 as amended The program could be amended suspended or discontinued at any time and

did not commit the Company to repurchase shares of its common stock

During 2008 the Company repurchased 1.2 million shares of its common stock at an aggregate cost of

$10.0 million The share repurchase program was completed on November 12 2008 The shares acquired are

now available for stock-based compensation awards and other corporate purposes

LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Companys world headquarters are located in approximately 200000 square feet of space in two office

buildings in Indianapolis Indiana The Company leases the space under an operating lease agreement and
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amendments which expire on March 31 2018 The Company also occupies product distribution center in

Indianapolis Indiana and three regional offices in the United States which are located in Herndon Virginia

Irvine California and Columbia South Carolina The Company also leases offices for each of its Canada EMEA

and APAC operations in Montreal Quebec Berkshire United Kingdom and Kuala Lumpur Malaysia

respectively and has several Other office leases throughout the United States and in 11 other countries The

Company rents office space for sales services development and international offices under month-to-month

leases In accordance with FASB ASC 840 rental expense is recognized ratably over the lease period including

those leases containing escalation clauses

The Company believes that all of its facilities including its world headquarters regional offices and

international offices in EMEA and APAC are adequate and well suited to accommodate its business operations

The Company continuously reviews space requirements to ensure it has adequate room for growth in the future

Rent expense net was $5.7 million $4.9 million and $3.8 million for the years ended December 31 2009

2008 and 2007 respectively Minimum future lease payments under the Companys operating leases as of

December 31 2009 are summarized as follows in thousands

2010 5257

2011 4845

2012 4433

2013 4543

2014 4542

Thereafter 14762

Total minimum lease payments $38382

Prior to and during part of 2008 the Company had sublet portion of its world headquarters office space

The sublease agreement expired without renewal on February 29 2008 The Company received sublease

payments of $33000 and $198000 during 2008 and 2007 respectively No sublease payments were received in

2009

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

No customer or partner accounted for 10% or more of the Companys revenues in 2009 2008 and 2007

One partner accounted for 13% of the Companys accounts receivable as of December 31 2009 and no customer

or partner accounted for 10% or more of the Companys accounts receivable as of December 31 2008 and 2007

The Companys top five partners collectively represented 30% and 20% of the Companys accounts receivable

balance at December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively The Company evaluates the creditworthiness of its

customers and partners on periodic basis The Company generally does not require collateral The Company

manages its operations as single segment for purposes of assessing performance and making operating

decisions No individual country accounted for more than 10% of the Companys revenues with the exception of

the United States for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

RETIREMENT SAVINGS PLAN

The Company maintains 401k retirement savings plan the Plan to provide retirement benefits for

substantially all of its North American employees Participants in the Plan may elect to contribute up to 50% of

their pre-tax aimual compensation to the Plan limited to the maximum amount allowed by the Internal Revenue

Code as amended The Company at its discretion may also make annual contributions to the Plan
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Effective January 2007 the Plan Administrator approved restated Plan Document which included

amendments to the Plan since January 2003 including new benefits added to the Plan such as Company
matching contribution potential and Roth 401k option

For the year ended December 31 2009 and 2008 subject to meeting specified operating targets the

Company matched up to 25% of the first 8% of participants pre-tax compensation contributed to the Plan For

the year ended December 31 2009 the Companys performance resulted in match for the full amount of

$564000 which was contributed to the employees accounts in February 2010 For the year ended December 31
2008 the Companys performance resulted in match of $348000 which was less than the full amount For the

year ended December 31 2007 the Company met the annual performance target and matched up to 25% of the

first 4% of participants pre-tax compensation contributed to the Plan The total amount of the Companys
matching contribution for the

year ended December 31 2007 was $312000

For an eligible participant who has worked for the Company for less than four
years at the time of the

Company matching contribution the contribution will vest in equal installments over four years based on the

anniversary date of the participants employment For an eligible participant who has worked for the Company
for four or more years at the time of contribution the contribution is 100% vested

For 2010 subject to meeting specified operating targets the Company will match up to 33% of the first 9%
of participants pre-tax compensation contributed to the Plan

Although the Company has not expressed any intent to terminate the Plan it has the option to do so at any
time subject to the provisions of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 Upon termination of the

Plan either full or partial participants become fully vested in their entire account balances

10 INCOME TAXES

The following table sets forth information regarding the United States and foreign components of income

tax benefit expense in thousands for 2009 2008 and 2007

Current Deferred Total

2009

United States Federal $5380 $1327 $4053
State and local 1253 213 1466
Foreign jurisdiction 861 861

Total $7494 1114 $6380

2008

United States Federal 829 $208 $2910
State and local 173 118 291
Foreign jurisdiction 263 263

Total $1265 $2199 $3464

2007

United States Federal 206 7212 7006
State and local 13 1141 1128

Foreign jurisdiction 297 297
Total 516 8353 7837
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The tax effects of temporary differences that gave rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets at

December 31 2009 and 2008 are presented below in thousands

2009 2008

Allowance for doubtful accounts
438 402

Accrued expenses
731 890

Deferred revenues
2748 2224

Stock-based compensation expense
1632 1021

Depreciation and amortization expense
706 451

Tax net operating loss carryforwards
121 1436

Foreign tax credit carryforwards
3119 2277

Research tax carryforwards
2818 2452

Netdeferredtaxassets $12313 $11153

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets management considers whether it is more likely than not

that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized The ultimate realization of deferred tax

assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income prior to the periods in which those temporary

differences such as loss carryforwards and tax credits expire Management considers the scheduled reversal of

deferred tax liabilities if any including the impact of available carryback and carryforward periods projected

future taxable income and tax-planning strategies in making this assessment The Company will need to generate

future taxable income of approximately $28 million to realize the deferred tax assets prior to the expiration of the

net operating loss carryforwards in 2028 Based upon the level of historical taxable income and projections for

future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred tax assets are deductible management believes it is

more likely than not that the Company will realize the benefits of these deductible differences at December 31

2009 The amount of the deferred tax asset considered realizable however could be reduced in the near term if

estimates of future taxable income during the carryforward period are reduced

For federal and state net operating loss carryforwards purposes there is an additional $11.5 million of tax

deductible compensation deductions that were generated as result of stock option exercises These have not

been recognized for financial reporting purposes because they have not yet
reduced taxes payable The tax

benefit of these deductions will be recorded as credit to additional paid-in capital when realized

The following table sets forth the items accounting for the difference between expected income tax benefit

expense compared to actual income tax benefit expense recorded in the Companys consolidated financial

statements in thousands

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Expected income tax expense at 35% tax rate $5257 $2731 3367

State taxes net of federal benefit 1217 189 552

Stock-based compensation expense related to non-deductible stock option

expense
461 685 798

Change in deferred tax asset valuation allowance 12727

Research tax credit
393 278 87

Other
162 137 260

Income tax benefit expense $6380 $3464 7837
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During 2009 the Company utilized its remaining net operating loss deferred tax asset generated in prior

years and began utilizing operating losses generated from tax benefits related to the exercise of stock options
The Company does not have deferred tax asset on its balance sheet for the tax benefits from these deductions
and the reduction in taxes payable related to the use of these deductions is recorded as credit to additional

paid-in capital At December 31 2009 the Company had approximately $11.5 million in stock-based

compensation deductions available to offset taxable income and $5.9 million of alternative minimum tax federal

and state research tax credit carryforwards and foreign tax credits available to offset taxes payable In addition
the Company had deferred tax asset of $121000 available to offset future taxable income of subsidiary

FASB ASC 740 prescribes recognition threshold and measurement attributes for the financial statement

recognition and measurement of tax position taken or expected to be taken in tax return The Company has

identified an uncertain tax position related to certain tax credits that the Company currently believes meets the

more likely than not recognition threshold to be sustained upon examination Prior to the fourth
quarter of

2007 this uncertain tax position had not been recognized because the Company had full valuation allowance

established The balance of the reserve was approximately $910000 at December 31 2009

The Company and its subsidiaries file federal income tax returns and income tax returns in various states

and foreign jurisdictions Tax years 2006 and forward remain open for examination for federal tax purposes and
tax years 2005 and forward remain open for examination for the Companys more significant state tax

jurisdictions To the extent utilized in future years tax returns net operating loss and capital loss canyforwards
at December 31 2009 will remain subject to examination until the respective tax year is closed

The Company adopted the provisions related to the accounting for
uncertainty in income taxes under FASB

ASC 740 The Company did not record cumulative effect adjustment to retained earnings as result of the

implementation of this accounting pronouncement The Company recognizes financial statement benefits for

positions taken for tax return purposes when it is more-likely-than-not that the position will be sustained

reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of the
gross unrecognized tax benefits is as follows

in thousands

Balance at January 2007 $328
Increase in balance due to current year tax position 97
Increase in balance due to prior year tax position 325

Balance at December 31 2008 750
Increase in balance due to current year tax position 80
Increase in balance due to prior year tax position 80

Balance at December 31 2009 $910

If recognized the entire remaining balance of unrecognized tax benefits would impact the effective tax rate

Over the next 12 months we do not anticipate the total amount of our unrecognized tax benefits to significantly

change We recognize interest income interest expense and penalties relating to tax exposures as component
of income tax expense There was no interest expense and penalties related to the above unrecognized tax

benefits as of December 31 2009

11 SEGMENT DISCLOSURES

In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 280 Segment Reporting the Company views its operations and

manages its business as principally one segment which is interaction management software applications licensing
and associated services As result the financial information disclosed herein represents all of the material

financial information related to the Companys principal operating segment
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Revenues derived from non-North American customers accounted for approximately 27% 27% and 25% in

2009 2008 and 2007 respectively of the Companys total revenues The Company attributes its revenues to

countries based on the country in which the customer or partner is located The sales and licensing revenues in

each individual non-North American country accounted for less than 10% of total revenues in 2009 2008 and

2007 As of December 31 2009 approximately 10% of the Companys net property and equipment which

included computer and office equipment furniture and fixtures and leasehold improvements were located in

foreign countries of which one country the United Kingdom represented concentration of more than 6%

12 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Legal Proceedings

From time to time the Company has received notification from competitors and other technology providers

claiming that the Companys technology infringes their proprietary rights The Company cannot assure you that

these matters can be resolved amicably without litigation or that the Company will be able to enter into licensing

arrangements on terms and conditions that would not have material adverse effect on its business financial

condition or results of operations

In November 2002 the Company received notification from the French Taxing Authority FTA as

result of tax audit that had been conducted encompassing the
years

1998 through 2001 In December 2005 the

Company received an additional notification from the PTA as result of an updated tax audit that they

conducted which included the years 2002 through 2004 Both of these assessments claimed amounts owed

related to Value Added Tax VAT and corporation taxes in addition to what has previously been paid The

FTA claimed the total amount owed was $5.9 million

During the fourth quarter of 2008 the Company reached settlement with the PTA related to the VAT
claim The settlement included Interactive Intelligence France SARL paying $5.3 million for VAT corporation

and withholding taxes and late penalties and interest In return Interactive Intelligence Inc was granted refund

of VAT paid including the current amount and past payments of $5.6 million Interactive Intelligence Inc

assigned $5.3 million of this refund to pay off the VAT and other taxes and penalties owed The remaining

$300000 was refunded to Interactive Intelligence Inc The Company had previously accrued for corporation

taxes owed therefore the net U.S dollar effect to the Companys financial position was reduction in operating

expenses of $577000 split among each department as that was where the original expense for the VAT was

allocated VAT charges were incurred on various items including rent hotels and supplies

Subsequent to the settlement the Company received letter from another division within the FTA that

claimed Interactive Intelligence France SARL owed $650000 in penalties and interest as of December 31 2008

The Company submitted an appeal for this amount in March 2009 as it believed that these penalties and interest

were agreed to and paid in the previous settlement In December 2009 the Company received notice from the

PTA that the amount was not owed The Company has no liabilities recorded related to this and believes all

matters have been settled

From time to time the Company is also involved in certain legal proceedings in the ordinary course of

conducting its business While the ultimate liability pursuant to these actions cannot currently be determined the

Company believes these legal proceedings will not have material adverse effect on its financial position or

results of operations Litigation in general and intellectual property litigation in particular can be expensive and

disruptive to normal business operations Moreover the results of complex legal proceedings are difficult to

predict
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Guarantees

The Company provides indemnifications of varying scope and amount to certain customers against claims

of intellectual property infringement made by third parties arising from the use of its products The Companys
direct software license agreements in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 460 Guarantees include certain

provisions for indemnifying customers in material compliance with their license agreement against liabilities if

the Companys software products infringe upon third partys intellectual property rights over the life of the

agreement There is no maximum potential amount of future payments set under the guarantee However the

Company may at any time and at its option and expense procure the right of the customer to continue to use

the Companys software that may infringe third partys rights ii modify its software so as to avoid

infringement or iiirequire the customer to return its software and refund the customer the fee actually paid by

the customer for its software less depreciation based on five-year straight-line depreciation schedule The

customers failure to provide timely notice or reasonable assistance will relieve the Company of its obligations

under this indemnification to the extent that it has been actually and materially prejudiced by such failure To

date the Company has not incurred nor does it expect to incur any material related costs and therefore has not

reserved for such liabilities

The Companys software license agreements also include warranty that its software products will

substantially conform to its software user documentation for period of one year provided the customer is in

material compliance with the software license agreement To date the Company has not incurred any material

costs associated with these product warranties and as such has not reserved for any such warranty liabilities in

its operating results

Lease Commitments and Other Contingencies

See Note for further information on the Companys lease commitments

The Company has received and may continue to receive certain payroll tax credits and real estate tax

abatements that were granted to the Company based upon certain growth projections If the Companys actual

results are less than those projections the Company may be subject to repayment of some or all of the tax credits

or payment of additional real estate taxes in the case of the abatements The Company does not believe that it

will be subject to payment of any money related to these taxes however the Company cannot provide assurance

as to the outcome

13 ACQUISITION

AcroSoft Acquisition

On May 15 2009 the Company entered into stock purchase agreement with AcroS oft Corporation

AcroSoft provider of insurance content management solutions pursuant to which the Company purchased

100% of AcroSofts issued and outstanding shares of capital stock for an aggregate purchase price of $2.2

million funded with cash available from operations Ten percent of the purchase price or $240000 was

deposited into an escrow account to ensure funds are available to pay indemnification claims if any The

Company acquired AcroSoft to integrate its document management and workflow functionality into the

Companys Interaction Center Platform including its IPA application Over time the Company also anticipates

extending the integrated solution to other document-intensive industry vertical and horizontal
processes

The

acquisition was accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting in accordance with FASB ASC

Topic 805 Business Combinations FASB ASC 805 and the results of AcroSofts operations were included in

the Companys consolidated financial statements commencing on the acquisition date
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The preliminary purchase price allocations for the Companys acquisition of AcroSoft are based on third-

party valuation report which was prepared in accordance with the provisions of FASB ASC 805 The following

table summarizes the fair value of the intangible and other assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of

the acquisition in thousands

May 152009

Cash 149

Investments

Accounts receivable 62

Prepaid royalties 30

Other current assets

Property plant and equipment 26

Current tax asset 122

Deferred tax asset 287

Accounts payable

Deferred tax liability 212
Intangible assets 530

Goodwill 1695

Total assets acquired $2684

Deferred services revenue 284

Net assets acquired $2400

The fair value of financial assets acquired includes accounts receivable with fair and contractual value of

$62000 The receivables consist of amounts due from customers for products sold and/or services rendered

During the third quarter of 2009 the Company finalized AcroSoft tax return for the period beginning

January 2009 and ending on the acquisition date of May 15 2009 As result goodwill attributed to AcroSoft

increased $61000 which is reflected in the Companys deferred tax assets on the accompanying consolidated

balance sheets During the fourth quarter of 2009 the Company completed an Internal Revenue Code Sec 382

Limitation on Net Operating Loss Carryforwards and Certain Built-in Losses Following Ownership Change
limitations review which determined that the AcroSoft state net operating losses could not be utilized As

result goodwill attributed to AcroSoft increased $90000 which is reflected in the Companys deferred tax assets

on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets

Acquisition-related costs recognized as of December 31 2009 include transaction costs such as legal

accounting valuation and other professional services which were expensed as incurred Acquisition-related costs

totaled approximately $65000 during 2009 These costs are included within general and administrative expenses

on the consolidated statements of income

The premiumpaid over the fair value of the net assets acquired in the purchase or goodwill was primarily

attributed to expected synergies from AcroSoft document management software experienced document

management staff and an existing client base Included within goodwill is the assembled workforce comprised of

12 employees which does not qualify for separate recognition None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible

for tax purposes

85



Interactive Intelligence Inc

Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsContinued

December 31 20092008 and 2007

Customer relationships and core technology are amortized based upon historical patterns in which the

economic benefits are expected to be realized Other finite-lived identifiable intangible assets are amortized on

straight-line basis The following are the identifiable intangible assets acquired and their respective economic

useful lives at the date of acquisition

Economic

Gross Accumulated Net Useful Life

Amount Amortization Amount in years

Customer relationships $210000 $21900 $188100

Core technology 320000 40000 280000

Total $530000 $468100

Alliance Acquisition

On April 17 2007 the Company entered into an asset purchase agreement dated as of the same date with

Alliance Systems Ltd Alliance master distributor of the Company that provides computer infrastructure

such as server and storage solutions that supports wireless VoIP contact center security and video enterprise

communications solutions Pursuant to the asset purchase agreement the Company acquired the professional

services division of Alliance which was focused on licensing implementing and supporting the Companys

contact center automation and enterprise IP telephony software solutions for an aggregate purchase price of

$1.1 million less adjustment for certain costs and pro-rated customer receipts total of 13 professional services

engineers and one sales representative joined the Company in connection with the acquisition The Company

funded the purchase price with cash available from operations

The purchase price allocations for the Companys acquisition of the professional services division of

Alliance were based on estimated fair values in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial

Accounting Standard No 141 Business Combinations The following table summarizes the fair value of the

intangible and other assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition in thousands

Goodwill 996

Customer relationships 50

Property and equipment 36

Total assets acquired 1082

Deferred services revenue 49

Net assets acquired $1033

The premium paid over the fair value of the net assets acquired in the purchase or goodwill was primarily

attributed to expected synergies from the Companys acquisition of professional services team having prior

experience with the Companys solutions and their implementation

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment at least annually in accordance with the provisions of FASB ASC

Subtopic 350-20 IntangiblesGoodwill and Other The goodwill impairment test is two-step test Under the

first step the fair value of the reporting unit is compared with its carrying value including goodwill Fair value

of the reporting unit is determined using discounted cash flow analysis If the fair value of the reporting unit
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exceeds its carrying value step two does not need to be performed If the fair value of the reporting unit is less

than its carrying value an indication of goodwill impairment exists for the reporting unit and the enterprise must

perform step two of the impairment test measurement Under step two an impairment charge is recognized for

any excess of the carrying amount of the reporting units goodwill over the implied fair value of that goodwill

The implied fair value of goodwill is determined by allocating the fair value of the reporting unit in manner

similar to purchase price allocation in accordance with FASB ASC 805 The residual fair value after this

allocation is the implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill The following table presents roll forward of

goodwill which is included within other assets net on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of

December 31 2009 in thousands

Balance as of January 2009 995

AcroSoft goodwill 1846

Balance as of December 31 2009 $2841

The Company performed goodwill impairment test as of September 30 2009 and concluded that no

impairment existed as of September 30 2009 As there were no changes in facts and circumstances that indicated

that the fair value of the reporting unit may have been below its carrying amount no additional impainnent tests

were performed during the fourth quarter of 2009

14 RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In June 2009 the FASB established the FASB Accounting Standards CodificationTM Codification as the

source of authoritative U.S Generally Accepted Accounting Principles GAAP recognized by the FASB to be

applied by nongovernmental entities in the preparation of financial statements This guidance was included in the

Codification under FASB ASC Topic 105 Generally Accepted Accounting Principles All prior accounting

standard documents were superseded by the Codification and any accounting literature not included in the

Codification is no longer authoritative Rules and interpretive releases of the SEC issued under the authority of

federal securities laws will continue to be sources of authoritative U.S GAAP for SEC registrants The

Codification became effective for the Company beginning with the third quarter of 2009 Therefore beginning

with the third quarter of 2009 all references made by the Company in its consolidated financial statements use

the new Codification numbering system The Codification does not change or alter existing U.S GAAP and

therefore did not have an impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements

In April 2009 the FASB established guidance under FASB ASC Paragraph 820-10-65-4 Determining Fair

Value When the Volume and Level ofActivity for the Asset or Liability Have Significantly Decreased and

Identifying Transactions That Are Not Orderly which provides guidance on determining fair values for assets or

liabilities when there is no active market or where the price inputs being used represent distressed sales The

guidance reaffirms the need to use judgment to ascertain if formerly active market has become inactive and

determining fair values when markets have become inactive The guidance became effective for interim and

annual reporting periods ending after June 15 2009 Upon adoption of this guidance during the second quarter of

2009 there was no material impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements

In April 2009 the FASB established guidance under FASB ASC Paragraph 320-10-65-1 Recognition and

Presentation of Other-Than-Temporary Impairments which amended the other-than-temporary impairment

guidance in U.S GAAP for debt securities to make the guidance more operational and to improve the

presentation and disclosure of other-than-temporary impainnents on debt and equity securities in the financial

statements The guidance became effective for interim and annual reporting periods ending after June 15 2009

with early adoption pennitted for periods ending after March 15 2009 Upon adoption of this guidance during

the second
quarter of 2009 there was no material impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements
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In April 2009 the FASB established guidance under FASB ASC Paragraph 825-10-65-1 Interim

Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments which requires the disclosure of the fair value of

financial instruments in summarized financial information at interim reporting periods for publicly traded

companies as well as in annual financial statements The guidance became effective for interim and annual

reporting periods ending after June 15 2009 Upon adoption of this guidance during the second quarter of 2009

there was no material impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements

In May 2009 the FASB established guidance under FASB ASC Topic 855 Subsequent Events which

establishes general standards of accounting for and disclosure of events that occur after the balance sheet date but

before financial statements are issued or are available to be issued This guidance became effective for interim

and annual reporting periods ending after June 15 2009 In February 2010 the FASB amended this guidance

under Accounting Standard Update ASU 2010-09 Amendments to Certain Recognition and Disclosure

Requirements The amended guidance removed the requirement for SEC filers to disclose the date through which

an entity has evaluated subsequent events and was effective upon issuance The Company performed an

evaluation of subsequent events and noted no additional events that warranted disclosure

In September 2009 the FASB issued FASB ASU 2009-13 Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements

which addresses criteria for separating consideration in multiple-element arrangements The guidance requires

companies allocating the overall consideration to each deliverable to use an estimated selling price of individual

deliverables in the arrangement in the absence of vendor-specific objective evidence or other third-party evidence

of the selling price for the deliverables This guidance will be effective for fiscal years beginning on or after

June 15 2010 and early adoption is permitted The Company has not determined the effect that the adoption of

this guidance will have on its consolidated financial statements

In September 2009 the FASB issued FASB ASU 2009-14 Certain Revenue Arrangements that Include

Software Elements which excludes from the scope of the FASB software revenue guidance tangible products

that contain both software and non-software components that function together to deliver products essential

functionality This guidance will be effective prospectively for revenue arrangements entered into or materially

modified in fiscal years beginning on or after June 15 2010 with early adoption permitted If company chooses

to early .adopt this guidance and the adoption is not at the beginning of its fiscal year the requirements must be

applied retrospectively to the beginning of the fiscal year The Company has not determined the effect that the

adoption of this guidance will have on its consolidated financial statements

In January 2010 the FASB issued FASB ASU 2010-06 Improving Disclosures About Fair Value

Measurements which amends FASB ASC 820 The updated guidance requires new disclosures about recurring

or nonrecurring fair-value measurements including significant transfers into and out of Level and Level fair-

value measurements and information on purchases sales issuances and settlements on gross basis in the

reconciliation of Level fair-value measurements The guidance also clarified existing fair-value measurement

disclosure guidance about the level of disaggregation inputs and valuation techniques The guidance became

effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning on or after December 15 2009 with an exception

for the disclosures of purchases sales issuances and settlements on the roll-forward of activity in Level fair

value measurements Those disclosures will be effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2010 and

for interim periods within those fiscal
years Upon adopting the guidance there was no material impact on the

Companys consolidated financial statements
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15 UNAUDITED SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected quarterly data should be read in conjunction with Managements Discussion and

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations This information has been derived from unaudited

consolidated financial statements of the Company that in managements opinion reflect all recurring

adjustments necessary to fairly present the Companys financial infonnation when read in conjunction with its

consolidated financial statements and notes thereto The results of operations for any quarter are not necessarily

indicative of the results to be expected for any future period As discussed in Note certain reclassifications

have been made to the prior year amounts to conform to the current period presentation in thousands except per

share amounts

2009

Quarter Ended

Mar 31 Jun 30 Sep.30 Dec 31

Total revenues $29476 $32895 $33170 $35877

Gross profit 20446 22346 23671 25102

Operating income 2417 2979 4278 4770

Net income 1223 2097 2803 2519

Net income per share

Basic 0.07 0.12 0.16 0.15

Diluted 0.07 0.12 0.15 0.14

Shares used to compute net income per share

Basic 16948 17015 17148 17267

Diluted 17635 18070 18486 18643

2008

Quarter Ended

Mar 31 Jun 30 Sep.30 Dec 31

Total revenues $29483 $30610 $30056 $31257

Gross profit 20456 20613 20295 20904

Operating income 1369 1291 1571 2718

Net income 1117 845 924 1452

Net income per share

Basic 0.06 0.05 0.05 0.09

Diluted 0.06 0.04 0.05 0.08

Shares used to compute net income per share

Basic 17940 17972 17976 17082

Diluted 19216 19077 18855 17711
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For the Years Ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Charged

Credited
to Revenue

Balance at and Reduction Balance at

Beginning of Expenses of End of

Description Period net Allowance Period

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts Receivable

2009 $1 004 000 627 000 537 000 $1 094 000

2008 $1076000 $1258000 $1330000 $1004000
2007 596000 $1589000 $1109000 $1076000

Uncollectible accounts written off net of recoveries

ITEM CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Not applicable

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain set of disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information

required to be disclosed by us in the reports filed by us under the Exchange Act is recorded processed

sunm-iarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SECs rules and forms and accumulated

and communicated to our management including our principal executive and principal financial officers to

allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures We carried out an evaluation under the supervision and

with the participation of our management including our President and Chief Executive Officer principal

executive officer and our Chief Financial Officer principal financial officer of the effectiveness of the design

and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31 2009 pursuant to Rule 3a- 15 of the

Exchange Act Based on that evaluation our President and Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial

Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The management of Interactive Intelligence Inc the Company is responsible for establishing and

maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting for the Company Internal control over financial

reporting is defined in Rule 13a-15f and 15d-15f promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as

amended as process designed by or under the supervision of the Companys principal executive and principal

financial officers and effected by the Companys Board of Directors management and other personnel to

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated

financial statements for external reporting purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted

in the United States of America and includes those policies and procedures that

Pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the Companys assets

Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that the

Companys receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations of its

management and directors and
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Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use

or disposition of the Companys assets that could have material effect on the consolidated financial

statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate

The Companys management with the participation and under the supervision of the Companys principal

executive and principal financial officers conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the Companys internal

control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by

the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO Based on this evaluation

and the criteria in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by COSO management concluded that the

Companys internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31 2009 The Companys

independent registered public accounting firm KPMG LLP has audited the effectiveness of the Companys
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2009 as stated in their report dated March 2009

which is included in Item of Part II of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter

ended December 31 2009 that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal

control over financial reporting

Attestation Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

See Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm report in Item of Part II of this Annual Report on

Form 10-K

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

None
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PART III

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information required by this Item concerning our directors and executive officers audit committee

members and financial expert code of ethics disclosure of delinquent Section 16 filers and shareholder director

nomination procedures is incorporated herein by reference from our Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of

Shareholders to be held on May 20 2010 which will be filed with the SEC no later than 120 days after

December 31 2009

The following is the current biographical information with respect to our directors and our executive

officers

Board of Directors Executive Officers

Donald Brown M.D Donald Brown M.D
Chairman of the Board President Chairman of the Board President

and Chief Executive Officer and Chief Executive Officer

Richard Halperin Gary Blough

Former Chief Executive Officer of Coherent Networks Executive Vice President of Worldwide Sales

International Inc GIS software company
William Gildea ifi

Edward Hamburg 1% Vice President of Business Development

Venture Partner Morgan Stanley Private Equity Former

Executive Vice President of Corporate Operations Stephen Head

Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary of Chief Financial Officer Vice President Finance and

SPSS Inc provider of predictive analytics software Administration Secretary and Treasurer

technology and services

Hans Heltzel

Michael Heim Vice President of Support and Professional Services

Senior Vice President Information Technology and

Chief Information Officer Eli Lilly and Company Pamela Hynes

pharmaceuticals company Vice President of Customer Services

Mark Hill Joseph Staples

Managing Partner Collina Ventures LLC private Chief Marketing Officer

investment company

Richard Reck

President Business Strategy Advisors LLC business

strategy consultancy

Member of Audit Committee

Member of Compensation and Stock Option Committee

Member of Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item concerning remuneration of our executive officers and directors

material transactions involving such executive officers and directors and Compensation Committee interlocks as

well as the Compensation Committee Report and the Compensation Discussion and Analysis are incorporated

herein by reference from our Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May 20

2010 which will be filed with the SEC no later than 120 days after December 31 2009
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ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this Item concerning the stock ownership of management five percent

beneficial owners and securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans is incorporated herein

by reference from our Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May 20 2010

which will be filed with the SEC no later than 120 days after December 31 2009

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSifiPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR

INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item concerning certain relationships and related person transactions and

director independence is incorporated herein by reference from our Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of

Shareholders to be held on May 20 2010 which will be filed with the SEC no later than 120 days after

December 31 2009

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item concerning the fees and services of our independent registered public

accounting firm and our Audit Committee actions with respect thereto is incorporated herein by reference from

our Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May 20 2010 which will be filed

with the SEC no later than 120 days after December 31 2009

PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Financial Statements

The Consolidated Financial Statements are set forth under Item of Part II of this Annual Report on

Form 10-K

Financial Statement Schedule

Schedule IlValuation and Qualifying Accounts is set forth under Item of Part II of this Annual Report

on Form 10-K

All other schedules are omitted because they are either not required not applicable or the required

information is otherwise shown in the Consolidated Financial Statements the Notes thereto or Schedule II

Valuation and Quantifying Accounts

Exhibits

The following documents are filed as Exhibits to this Annual Report on Form 10-K or incorporated by

reference herein and pursuant to Rule 12b-32 of the General Rules and Regulations promulgated by the SEC

under the Exchange Act reference is made to such documents as previously filed as exhibits with the SEC
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit Incorporated by Reference to
FiledNumber Exhibit Description Form Exhibit Filing Date Herewith

3.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation of the s-i 3.1 5/28/1999

Company as currently in effect Registration No
333-79509

3.2 Amended By-Laws of the Company as 8-K 3.2 7/28/2009

currently in effect

10.1 Restated 1995 Incentive Stock Option S-i/A 10.1 7/23/1999

Plan as currently in effect
Registration No

333-79509

10.2 1995 Nonstatutory Stock Option Incentive s-i 10.2 5/28/1999
Plan

Registration No
333-79509

10.3 Amended 1999 Stock Option and 8-K 10.3 3/17/08

Incentive Plan as currently in effect

10.4 Amended Outside Directors Stock Option DEF i4A Appendix 4/8/2004

Plan as currently in effect

10.5 Form of Change of Control and Retention 8-K 10.5 3/17/2006

Agreement by and between the Company
and each of Stephen Head Joseph

Staples Pamela Hynes Gary Blough
and William Gildea III

10.6 Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of 8-K 10.6 4/23/2007

April 17 2007 between the Company and

Alliance Systems Ltd

10.8 Patent License Agreement dated 10-K 10.8 3/28/2005

December 31 2004 between the Company
and AudioFAX IP LLC confidential

treatment has been granted for certain

portions of this exhibit and accordingly

those portions have been omitted from this

exhibit and filed
separately with the

Securities and Exchange Commission

10.10 Employment Agreement Non-Disclosure 8-K 10.6 5/31/2006
and Non-Competition between the

Company and Gary Blough dated

May 26 2006

10.11 Employment Agreement between the 10-K 10.11 3/25/2004

Company and Stephen Head dated

November 2003

10.13 Employment Agreement between the iO-Q 10.13 5/12/2004

Company and Pamela Hynes dated

November 1996 and the First

Amendment to Employment Agreement

between the Company and Pamela Hynes
dated February 23 2000
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Exhibit Incorporated by Reference to
Filed

Number Exhibit Description Form Exhibit Filing Date Herewith

jjLetter of Assignment between the 10-K 10.20 3/15/2007

Company and Pamela Hynes dated as of

January 2007

10.14 Stock Option Agreement between the S-i 10.14 5/28/1999

Company and Donald Brown M.D dated Registration No
September 22 1998 333-79509

10.16 Office Lease dated April 2001 between 10-K 10.16i 3/17/2008

the Company and Duke-Weeks Realty

Limited Partnership Exhibits thereto will be

furnished supplementally to the Securities and

Exchange Commission upon request

ii Lease Modification Agreement dated 10-K 10.1 6u 3/17/2008

September 19 2001 between the Company
and Duke-Weeks Realty Limited Partnership

Exhibits thereto will be furnished

supplementally to the Securities and

Exchange Commission upon request

iiiThird Lease Amendment dated June 19 8-K 10 6/25/2007

2007 between the Company and Duke Realty

Limited Partnership formerly Duke-Weeks

Realty Limited Partnership

iv Fourth Lease Amendment dated 10-Q 10.16 5/12/2008

March 14 2008 between the Company and

Duke Realty Limited Partnership formerly

Duke-Weeks Realty Limited Partnership

10.18 Consolidated Subordinated Promissory Note s-i 10.18 5/28/1999

made by the Company in favor of Donald Registration No
Brown M.D dated May 1999 333-79509

10.21 Form of Agreement for Incentive Stock 10-K 10.21 3/17/2008

Options under 1999 Stock Option and

Incentive Plan

10.22 Form of Agreement for Nonqualified Stock 10-K 10.21 3/17/2008

Options under 1999 Stock Option and

Incentive Plan

10.23 Form of Indemnity Agreement between the S-i/A 10.23 7/14/1999

Company and each of its directors and Registration No
executive officers 333-79509

10.24 Form of Agreement for Outside Directors 10-Q 10.24 11/15/2004

Stock Option under Outside Directors Stock

Option Plan

10.25 Employment Agreement dated January 8-K 10.25 1/6/2005

2005 between the Company and Joseph

Staples
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10.26 Sulmiiary of Certain Director and Executive

Officer Compensation

10.28 Amended Interactive Intelligence Inc 8-K 10.28 1/5/2006

Employee Stock Purchase Plan as currently in

effect

10.29 Interactive Intelligence Inc 401k Savings S-8 4.3 3/31/2000

Plan Registration No
333-33772

10.33 Interactive Intelligence Inc 2006 Equity 8-K 10.33 6/4/2008

Incentive Plan As Amended May 30 2008

10.35 Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement 8-K 10.35 2/22/2007

under 2006 Equity Incentive Plan

10.36 Foi of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement 8-K 10.36 2/22/2007

under 2006 Equity Incentive Plan

10.37 Fonn of Non-Employee Director Stock Option 10Q 10.37 8/9/2007

Agreement under 2006 Equity Incentive Plan

10.38 Fonn of Non-Employee Director Change of 10-Q 10.38 8/9/2007

Control Agreement

10.40 Employment Agreement dated January 2010 between the Company and William

Gildea III

21 Subsidiaries of the Company as of December 31 2009

23 Consent of KPMG LLP Independent Registered Public Accounting Finn

31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 3a- 14a/i 5d- 14a of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes

Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 3a-14a/15d- 14a of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes

Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 Section 1350 as

adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 Section 1350 as

adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The indicated exhibit is management contract compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed by

Item 601 of Regulation S-K
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant

has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

Interactive Intelligence Inc

Registrant

Date March 16 2010 By Is Stephen Head

Stephen Head

Chief Financial Officer Vice President of

Finance and Administration Secretary and

Treasurer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by

the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

SIGNATURES CAPACITY DATE

Is Donald Brown M.D Chairman of the Board of Directors March 16 2010

Donald Brown M.D President Chief Executive Officer

Principal Executive Officer

Is Stephen Head Chief Financial Officer March 16 2010

Stephen Head Vice President of Finance and

Administration Secretary and

Treasurer

Principal Financial Officer and

Principal Accounting Officer

Is Richard Halperin Director March 16 2010

Richard Halperin

Is Edward Hamburg Ph Director March 16 2010

Edward Hamburg Ph

Is Mark Hill Director March 16 2010

Mark Hill

Is Michael Heim Director March 16 2010

Michael Helm

/s Richard Reck Director March 16 2010

Richard Reck
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